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RN &
YUEN MAN YING

F/E Chairman

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of EGL Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries, |
hereby present to you the annual results of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

2019 was a year with unpredictable changes. Amid the Sino-
US trade frictions, fluctuations in the Hong Kong economy in
the latter half year and volatile market sentiments have put the
tourism sector in great turmoil. The Company has for decades
sailed through difficult times together with Hongkongers and
continues in steadfast strides to face these challenging times
now with composure gained from our years of experience
and professionalism, and to forge forward together as always.
With respect to business operating results for the Year, both
revenue and gross profit of the travel related business recorded
decreases, while revenue and gross profit of the hotel business
recorded increases. For gross profit margins, both the travel
related business and the hotel business, however, recorded
a slight increase. Since our hot spring bath building in Osaka
commenced operation in April 2019, operating expenses of the
hotel business has increased accordingly, which was primarily
due to the significant increase in the depreciation charges of
property, plant and equipment. Therefore, the hotel business
recorded a loss during the Year. On the whole, the Group recorded
total revenue for the Year of approximately HK$1,728.3 million
(2018: HK$1,776.6 million), representing a decrease of 2.7%
as compared with last year, whereas the gross profit margin
increased from 17.7% in last year to 18.1%. Profit attributable to
owners of the Company was approximately HK$14.0 million (2018:
HK$34.8 million), representing a decrease of 59.8% as compared
with last year. For the details of our business performance,
please refer to the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” below.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (the total dividend for the full year of 2018 was HK5.0
cents per share, including the interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per
share).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group has always been committed to providing and exploring
diversified travel product portfolio for our customers, to pursue
our goal of “Bringing More Happiness to Customers (%% &
A% —5F )" For the hotel business, the hot spring bath
building adjacent to Osaka Hinode Hotel ( ABR%EMD F5E & ) was
grandly opened in April 2019, customers could relieve fatigue and
refresh in large bathing facilities with deep hot spring water of
pure quality and rich minerals, thus offering customers superior
accommodation experience with greater comfort and enjoyment.

In the travel related business, the Company launched a new brand
“Guru & Guru” during the Year, which is an online reservation
platform managed by a team with extensive travel planning
experience to provide customers with diverse worldwide travel
products and experience. The platform has designated personnel
who offer customers online support and post articles to share
information and tips for travelling around the world with travel
enthusiasts, thus helping each customer to become a travel
expert, enabling each customer to flexibly and independently
design a customised journey based on personal preference,
developing more interesting and authentic locale travelling
experience and sharing the joy of travelling.

The Group has launched well-designed creative theme travels,
and during the Year sponsored outdoor promotional activities
about “EGL Mountain Travel — Japan Fairyland “Forest Bath”
Hiking (TEGLIL ROk — B ARMIE [ZRMOB] #171)” in three
famous hiking trails in Hong Kong. The Group also partnered
with PROTREK and JOYEE WALKER, the online hiking celebrity,
to introduce mountain hiking to customers and to initiate the
challenge of reaching the summit of Japan’s “Highest Peak”,
Mount Fuji, and travelling to Hakuba, Nagano Prefecture, for
stargazing. In addition, the Group is passionate about promoting
tourism culture all over the world and was committed to promote
cultural exchanges and interactions. During the Year, the Group
worked with Tourism Australia and Outback Steakhouse to launch
promotion activities to convey Australia’s hospitality to foreign
visitors and develop more travelling interactions with Australia.

The Group’s travel related business has moved towards its 33rd
year. To celebrate the 33rd anniversary, the Group for the first
time held a splendid “EGL Happy 33 Travel Carnival (EGLE#
#Happy 33Mk#IEFZFE) ". 14 prefectures’ representatives from
Japan and over 30 business partners were specially invited to
attend the two-day carnival. Travel concessions on spot were
offered to participants at the venue, game booths were organised
and exquisite gifts distributed as well. A total of 18 travel related
seminars were also held with a full-house audience during the
two-day event, showcasing an unprecedented scenario.

2019% % Annual Report 2019 007
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SOCIAL PERFORMANCE

The Group has always committed to fulfilling its corporate
social responsibilities with respect to community development,
consumers, staff and many other areas, together to build an even
better society. The “EGL Caring Society Team” was established
by the Group in order to host and organise charitable events
to promote community development with the benefit of our
knowledge of the tourism industry as well our own resources. The
Group continues to participate in the “Good Employer Charter”
held by the Labour Department of Hong Kong to promote jointly
a decent human resources management culture, and pledges
to adopt up-to-date, employee-oriented and effective human
resource management measures, so as to build a harmonious
relationship in the workplace. The Group was honored with
the “Partner Employer Award 5+” label during the Year, which
recognised the Group’s efforts over the past five year in hiring
people with different needs, caring about the underprivileged and
promoting social inclusion. The Group earnestly performs social
responsibilities to promote the development of social capital.
During the Year, the Labour and Welfare Bureau granted the Social
Capital Builder Logo Award 2018-20 to recognise the Group’s
achievements in building social capital in Hong Kong.

Stepping into the 33rd anniversary year, the Company hosted
the 33rd anniversary gala dinner to encourage employee
communication and exchange beyond workspace, as well as to
acknowledge and praise employees’ effort and contribution. At
the gala dinner, apart from the participation of business partners,
distinguished guests and staffs, 33 Japan mascots were assigned
by respective Japanese prefectures to join the celebration,
marking their first ever joint performance. The response from the
guests was overwhelming, and the dinner was full of happiness
and joy. During the Year, the Group organised a number of staff
activities, including stretch workshops for improving physical
health, coding robot parent-child workshops for learning design
thinking and children’s day at parents’ workplaces which
strengthen harmonious family relationship, financial management
seminars to enhance personal financial planning, as well as
activities to soothe mental health, such as making popular floral
aromatic waxes, leather card holders, starry sky porcelain plates
and floral light bulbs. These activities inspire employees’ diversified
thinking and creativity, also allow them to relax during their leisure
time.
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Following our superb performance last year in the charitable
football match held by the organiser, Fair Trade Hong Kong, the
Group has been honored with “2019 Fair Enterprise Award —
Bronze” ([ 2 F ¥ 4220194 28 | ) this year, which recognised
the Group’s organising fair trade activity and experience during
the Year to improve group-wide understanding about the issue of
alleviating poverty and social inequality by fair trade economy.

In addition, the Group is committed to advocating the concept
of “Green Office” and steps up to implementing energy-saving
measures to reduce energy consumption by the Group. Apart from
the Group’s offices, the Group actively improves energy efficiency
during the course of providing travel agency related services.
The Group believes that the efficient use of energy can save
operating costs and reduce the consumption of natural resources
at the same time. The Group makes great efforts to enhance the
environmental awareness of its employees and customers by
encouraging them to use the resources in a responsible manner,
particularly in terms of energy-saving and waste management,
with a view to minimising the impact of the Group’s business
operations on the environment.

BUSINESS PROSPECT

The Group adheres to the mission of quality service, spares
no effort to incorporate unique elements into travel details
and continues to emphasise customer needs in our business
development and products and services innovation. The
construction of the hotel development project in Okinawa of the
Group was carried out in March 2019. The Group expects the
hotel development project to be completed and to commence
operation in the fourth quarter of 2020, which will allow the
Group’s travel related business to enjoy the benefits from synergy.

It is expected that “Guru & Guru”, the new brand launched during
the Year, will develop more innovative travel product portfolios in
the future and create individual travel products that will bring joy to
customers and fulfill their desires.

The novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) is now spreading around
the world, countries and regions have imposed different levels of
immigration restrictions and quarantine measures on tourists. In
addition to the issue of a red outbound travel alert on overseas
countries and regions in mid-March, the Hong Kong government
also imposed compulsory quarantine orders for 14 days on the
tourists arriving Hong Kong from all places outside of the PRC
since 19 March 2020 for a period of three months. The Group
has cancelled and suspended package tours and FIT Products in
different countries and regions from sale by different duration with
last departure date till mid-June. Moreover, the Group has adopted
corresponding cost saving measures for its business management.
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For example, the Group has endeavored to negotiate partial
reduction on shop rentals, arranged no paid leave for employees,
suspended operations of certain branches, and suspended the
accommodation services of Osaka Hinode Hotel during the period
from mid-March to end of April. It is expected that revenue and
other financial results of the Group for six months ending 30 June
2020 will be adversely impacted, and relevant influence on the
Group’s operation, financial performance, cash flows and financial
position will be material. However, given that the situation will
constantly change, relevant estimates cannot be made by the
Group as at the date of this report. The Group will continuously
assess the impact of the pandemic on the Group’s operation and
financial performance, and will closely monitor the development of
the pandemic and the risks and uncertainties it may bring to the
Group. Meanwhile, the Group will strictly implement the pandemic
preventive measures and do its upmost to offer employees a
safe working environment and provide employees with pandemic
prevention education. So far, the Group has established a well-
performing strategy and mechanism to work out resolutions under
different situations.

As a travel agent based in Hong Kong, our business milestone
has reached the 33rd anniversary. The Group aims to bring
to each customer more delight with unique travel experience.
Facing adversity in these times, we must stay strong and support
each other. Under the suffocating prevailing pandemic, we will
make careful selection to offer customers safe and enjoyable
travel itinerary for relaxation. When the local economic outlook is
uncertain, we will repay customers with discounted travel routes to
let them travel with great pleasure without hesitation.

I would like to express my sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
customers, business partners for their trust and support, and
to the management and team members for remaining at the
post amid the rampant pandemic and fulfilling duties with
professionalism, dedication, diligence and unremitting efforts. Over
the past 33 years, we have built a solid foundation of sustainable
development, | believe that by continuously and appropriately
adjusting our strategies and plans in the prevailing pandemic, as
soon as it is contained any time in the future, we are bound to
return to the level before the pandemic ever began.

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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GROUP OVERVIEW

During the Year, the Company’s operations were adversely
impacted by deteriorating general economic conditions and
market sentiment in Hong Kong, which affected the Company’s
travel business markedly where demand was weakened and
decimated the Company’s profitability in the second half of the
Year. In this challenging environment, despite gross profit margin of
the Group increased from 17.7% to 18.1% under management’s
focused effort in adopting competitive pricing strategy towards the
market changes, revenue decreased by 2.7% from approximately
HK$1,776.6 million in 2018 to approximately HK$1,728.3 million
in 2019, gross profit decreased by 0.9% from approximately
HK$315.3 million in 2018 to approximately HK$312.5 million in
2019. The operating result of the Company had also constrained
by the increase in operating expenses of the Group’s hotel
business, which mainly arose from the increase in depreciation
on property, plant and equipment following the completion of the
construction work of the Group’s hot spring bath building in March
2019. Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased
by 59.8% to approximately HK$14.0 million in 2019 (2018:
HK$34.8 million).
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Basic earnings per share for profit attributable to owners of the
Company for 2019 was HK2.79 cents (2018: HK6.93 cents). Net
proceeds from IPO had been fully utilised on intended uses of
proceeds before June 2019. Details will be discussed in the sub-
section headed “Report of the Directors—Use of proceeds from
the IPO” below.

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The principal activities of the Group comprise provision of package
tours, free independent travellers (“FIT”) packages, individual
travel elements (together with FIT packages referred to as “FIT
Products”) and ancillary travel related products and services as
well as the ownership, development and management of hotel
business.

Revenue and gross profit from various business segments for the
years are set out as follows:

2019 2018
& ER  EAE & EH O EMNE
Gross Gross
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue profit margin  Revenue profit margin
TExr TFTAEx Bk TET  TETL  BAX
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$000 HK$'000 %
I&TTE Package tours

—-BR - Japan 900,682 124,231 13.8 926,968 123,659 13.3
e A=K - Non-Japan 567,043 67,425 11.9 569,895 66,249 11.6
IRTTE A5t Total package tours 1,467,725 191,656 13.1 1,496,863 189,908 12.7

BHTEMRMEBERT FIT Products and ancillary travel
HEELRRE related products and services 188,828 68,770 36.4 212,527 75,461 35.5
L L8 Hotel operation 71,775 52,067 725 67,224 49,920 74.3
o Total 1,728,328 312,493 18.1 1,776,614 315,289 17.7

2019% % Annual Report 2019 013
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FPACKAGE TOURS

Revenue from package tours mainly represents tour fees received
from customers for outbound package tours. The main source
of the Group’s revenue is derived from package tours, which
contributed 84.9% to the Group’s total revenue during 2019
(2018: 84.2%).

Japan-bound package tours remain the major source of the
Group’s revenue, which contributed 52.1% (2018: 52.2%) to
the Group’s total revenue during 2019. Demand for Japan-
bound package tours was weakened by deteriorating general
economic conditions and market sentiment in Hong Kong,
number of customers decreased from 98,679 in 2018 to 91,718
in 2019, whilst revenue decreased by 2.8% from approximately
HK$927.0 million in 2018 to approximately HK$900.7 million
in 2019. Nevertheless, gross profit and gross profit margin
increased slightly by 0.5% and 0.5 percentage point respectively
as compared to 2018 by adopting competitive pricing strategy
towards the market changes.

Impact of deteriorating general economic conditions and market
sentiment in Hong Kong affected not only the performance of
Japan-bound package tours, but also hindered the efforts put on
performance of non-Japan-bound package tours. Non-Japan-
bound package tours contributed 32.8% (2018: 32.0%) to the
Group’s total revenue during 2019. Number of customers for
non-Japan-bound package tours decreased from 82,202 in
2018 to 77,900 in 2019 and revenue decreased slightly by 0.5%
from approximately HK$569.9 million in 2018 to approximately
HK$567.0 million in 2019, whilst gross profit and gross profit
margin increased by 1.8% and 0.3 percentage point as compared
to 2018. Notwithstanding that tours bound to long haul destination
were still well-perceived by customers where reducing number
of terrorist attacks in 2019 stimulated customers’ sentiments,
the improved results were eroded by decline in demand for tours
bound to Southeast Asia region impacted heavily by deteriorating
general economic conditions and intensifying impacts of social
instability, and tours bound to Australia impacted heavily by
catastrophic bushfire in the second half of 2019 and cessation of
certain flight routes or reduction of scheduled flights by airlines.
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FIT PRODUCTS AND ANCILLARY TRAVEL RELATED
PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

Revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related products
and services mainly represents income from sale of air tickets,
hotel accommodation, public transportation tickets, theme park
admission tickets, commission income from travel insurance
services and handling fees for remittance services provided to
souvenir and merchandise suppliers in Japan.

Subject to influence by intensive market competition from
budget airlines and online sales platforms and deteriorating
general economic conditions and market sentiment in Hong
Kong, revenue from FIT Products and ancillary travel related
products and services decreased by 11.2% from approximately
HK$212.5 million in 2018 to approximately HK$188.8 million in
2019, it contributed 10.9% (2018: 12.0%) to the Group’s total
revenue during 2019. Gross profit decreased by 8.9% whilst gross
profit margin increased by 0.9 percentage point as compared to
2018.

HOTEL OPERATION

The Group’s first hotel, Osaka Hinode Hotel, provides quality
hospitality services for guests worldwide. In April 2019, hot spring
bath building beside Osaka Hinode Hotel starts to commence its
operation which enables guests to enjoy hot spring with relaxation
near the hotel. Revenue from hotel operation mainly represents
income generated from letting the hotel rooms, which contributed
4.2% to the Group’s total revenue during 2019 (2018: 3.8%). On
the Company’s continual endeavour to provide guests with unique
and comfortable Japanese-style accommodations, higher average
hotel room occupancy rate was recorded from 59.9% in 2018 to
69.3% in 2019. Revenue increased by 6.8% from approximately
HK$67.2 million in 2018 to approximately HK$71.8 million in
2019 whilst gross profit increased by 4.3% from approximately
HK$49.9 million in 2018 to approximately HK$52.1 million in 2019,
despite gross profit margin decreased slightly by 1.8 percentage
points.
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Company.

REVENUE AND GROSS PROFIT

Please refer to the discussion on the Group’s revenue and gross
profit in the sub-section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis —Business Overview” above.

SELLING EXPENSES

Frontline employee costs, advertising and promotion expenses
for media advertising and promotional activities are key elements
of selling expenses. Selling expenses of the Group decreased by
3.2% to approximately HK$83.7 million (2018: HK$86.4 million)
which was primarily contributed by the decrease in advertising
and promotion expenses for media advertising and promotional
activities in the second half of 2019 as compared to 2018, with
marketing strategy closely adjusted with weak market sentiments
in Hong Kong.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Employee costs, Directors’ remuneration, bank charges, rent and
rates and management fee and depreciation on property, plant
and equipment contributed to majority of administrative expenses.
Administrative expenses of the Group increased by 5.9% to
approximately HK$216.7 million (2018: HK$204.7 million), the
increase was primarily contributed by increase in staff costs for
travel related business of approximately HK$5.3 million, increase
in expenses for hotel business of approximately HK$12.4 million
which was mainly driven by the increase in depreciation on hotel's
property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$7.9 million,
cleaning expenses of approximately HK$1.5 million and sundry
taxes of approximately HK$1.4 million following the completion
of hot spring bath building construction in March 2019, patrtially
offset by decrease in Directors’ remuneration of approximately
HK$1.7 million.

FINANCE COSTS

Imputed interests of approximately HK$358,000 (equivalent to
approximately JPY5.0 million) incurred on the bank borrowings
for construction of hot spring bath building and a hotel building
located in Okinawa were capitalised into construction in progress
in 2019 (2018: HK$126,000 (equivalent to approximately
JPY1.8 million) on the bank borrowings for construction of
hot spring bath building). Upon the completion of hot spring
pbath building construction in March 2019, imputed interests
on construction of hot spring bath building were transferred
thereupon to property, plant and equipment.

After capitalisation of the above-mentioned imputed interests,
finance costs of approximately HK$3.2 million was incurred (2018:
HK$3.9 million on the bank borrowings for construction and
decoration of hotel building, acquisition of travel bus and daily
operations of travel related business) on the bank borrowings
which were used to finance the construction and decoration of
hotel buildings and hot spring bath building, acquisition of travel
buses and daily operations of travel related business.
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Following the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” by the Group
on 1 January 2019, finance costs incurred on lease liabilities in
2019 amounting to approximately HK$3.4 million (2018: Nil) was
recorded.

INCOME TAX CREDIT

The income tax credit of the Group in 2019 amounted to
approximately HK$2.9 million (2018: HK$2.1 million), it was
resulted from the decrease in income tax of approximately
HK$3.4 million offset the decrease in deferred tax credit of
approximately HK$2.6 million.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” have been
assessed and opening adjustments have been made of which
details are set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements. The other new or amended HKFRSs that are effective
from 1 January 2019 did not have material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.

INTEREST COVERAGE RATIO

Interest coverage ratio of the Group decreased from 9.4 times
in 2018 to 4.6 times in 2019. This was mainly contributed by
decrease in profit before interest expenses and taxation resulted
from the factors driven to higher administrative expenses as
mentioned above, and more finance costs on bank borrowings
were borne for hotel business as compared to 2018.

Interest coverage ratio is calculated by dividing profit before
interest expenses on bank borrowings and taxation by interest
expenses on bank borrowings over the respective years.
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GROSS PROFIT MARGIN, OPERATING PROFIT MARGIN
AND NET PROFIT MARGIN

For the increase in gross profit margin, please refer to the factors
already discussed in the sub-section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis —Business Overview” above.

Operating profit margin of the Group decreased from 2.1% in 2018
to 0.9% in 2019 whilst net profit margin decreased from 2.0% in
2018 to 0.8% in 2019, these were primarily attributable to higher
administrative expenses and finance costs driven by the factors as
mentioned above.

CURRENT RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s current ratio was 1.1 times
(as at 31 December 2018: 1.3 times). The slight decrease in
current ratio was mainly attributable to increase in contract
liabilities of approximately HK$34.9 million and lease liabilities of
approximately HK$47.3 million, offset by the decrease in cash at
banks and on hand by approximately HK$23.9 million.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gearing ratio was 34.1%
(as at 31 December 2018: 29.6%) as the Group had further
drawn down the bank borrowings, whilst its impact was net-
off by additions of property, plant and equipment, construction
in progress for construction of hotel located in Okinawa and
recognition of right-of-use assets following the adoption of HKFRS
16 in 2019.

Gearing ratio is calculated by dividing the total interest-bearing
loans by the total assets as at the respective year ends.

RETURN ON TOTAL ASSETS AND RETURN ON EQUITY
ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMFANY

Return on total assets and return on equity attributable to owners
of the Company in 2019 were 1.3% (2018: 3.8%) and 4.0% (2018:
9.8%) respectively. The decrease in return on total assets and
return on equity were mainly due to decrease in profit attributable
to owners of the Company in 2019 as compared to 2018.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE, LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL
RESOURCES

To finance the construction of hotel located in Okinawa,
the Group had withdrawn bank borrowing of approximately
JPY1,735.0 million (equivalent to approximately HK$122.4 million),
the carrying amount of the bank borrowing as at 31 December
2019 amounted to approximately JPY1,682.9 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$119.8 million) (as at 31 December 2018: Nil).

Also, for construction of hot spring bath building which was
completed in March 2019, the Group had already withdrawn
bank borrowings of approximately JPY349.0 million (equivalent
to approximately HK$24.7 million) in 2018, and made further
withdrawal of approximately JPY151.0 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$10.6 million) in 2019, which in turn increased
the total bank borrowings withdrawn by the Company on
construction of hot spring bath building to JPY500.0 million
thereon. The carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at
31 December 2019 amounted to approximately JPY471.5 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$33.6 million) (as at 31
December 2018: JPY346.1 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$24.5 million)).

Regarding to the construction of Osaka Hinode Hotel completed
in 2017, the carrying amount of the bank borrowings as at 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately JPY3,013.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$214.6 million) (as at 31
December 2018: JPY3,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$238.5 million)).

For acquisition of five travel buses in 2017, the carrying amount
of the bank borrowing as at 31 December 2019 amounted to
approximately JPY68.3 million (equivalent to approximately
HK$4.9 million) (as at 31 December 2018: JPY92.9 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$6.6 million)).
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To meet short-term needs for travel related business operation, the
Group had withdrawn bank borrowing of HK$10.0 million in 2019
(2018: HK$214.4 million), it had been fully paid and there was no
bank borrowing as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31 December
2018: Nil).

Other than the above, the Group financed its operation with its
own capital, with the total equity attributable to owners of the
Company as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$350.6 million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$355.0 million). As
at 31 December 2019, the Group’s cash at banks and on hand
amounted to approximately HK$206.1 million (as at 31 December
2018: HK$230.0 million). Cash at banks and on hand were mainly
denominated in HKD accounting for approximately 53.4% (as at
31 December 2018: 50.9%), MOP accounting for approximately
10.3% (as at 31 December 2018: 8.1%), Euro accounting for
approximately 7.2% (as at 31 December 2018: 6.3%), TWD
accounting for approximately 2.8% (as at 31 December 2018:
3.0%), Renminbi accounting for approximately 2.0% (as at
31 December 2018: 2.3%) and JPY accounting for approximately
17.7% (as at 31 December 2018: 23.3%).

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had pledged bank deposits
of approximately HK$6.7 million (as at 31 December 2018:
HK$6.3 million), majority of which were pledged to certain
licensed banks in Hong Kong and Macau to secure letters of
guarantees issued to certain third parties on behalf of the Group.
Together with corporate guarantee provided by the Company
and undertakings provided by the executive Directors to maintain
the control over the management and business of the Group,
the Group’s total guarantees amounted to approximately
HK$22.5 million (as at 31 December 2018: HK$17.9 million),
which were mainly issued to the Group’s suppliers, such as airlines
and hotels, to guarantee the Group’s trade payable balances due
to the suppliers.
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Also, as at 31 December 2019, property, plant and equipment
of Osaka Hinode Hotel, hot spring bath building and hotel
construction project in Okinawa, travel buses and certain pledged
bank balances in Japan of approximately HK$386.4 million in
total (as at 31 December 2018: HK$287.6 million) were pledged
for the bank borrowings as mentioned in the sub-section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Capital
Structure, Liquidity and Finance Resources”.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no other pledge of assets
as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: Nil).

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND FUTURE CAPITAL
EXPENDITURES

The Group had capital commitments of construction work and
relevant preliminary works for hotel development in Okinawa of
approximately HK$134.9 million (equivalent to approximately
JPY1.9 billion) as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018:
HK$4.8 million (equivalent to approximately JPY68.3 million) for
preliminary construction work for hotel development in Okinawa),
it mainly included the residual outstanding commitment for the
construction contract for the new hotel in Okinawa with contract
sum of JPY3,750.0 million as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 12 March 2019.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had capital commitment
of approximately HK$1.2 million (as at 31 December 2018:
HK$2.5 million) to acquire property, plant and equipment for its
travel related business.

For future capital expenditures other than above-mentioned, the
Group currently intends to finance such expenses by internal
resources.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Directors considered that there were no material contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2019 (as at 31 December 2018: Nil).
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FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RISK AND
TREASURY POLICIES

Foreign currency exchange risk exposure is encountered by the
Group to the extent that receipt from customers and payments
to suppliers may not be reconciled, subject to prevailing foreign
currency fluctuations. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
one floating to fixed interest rate swap contract with a bank
in Japan to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk and cash
flow changes of its floating-rate bank borrowings. Other than
the aforesaid swap contract, the Group did not rely on hedging
arrangements. The Group had implemented foreign exchange risk
management procedures to closely monitor the risk exposure. The
procedures were established to prevent carrying excessive cash
balance in foreign currencies, of which the purchase amounts
were limited to the corresponding costs of travel elements based
on estimated sales amount for one week, to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection. The objective of our foreign
exchange risk management procedures is to cover the foreign
exchange risk exposure in connection with those costs of travel
elements denominated in foreign currencies to be incurred for one
week. The procedures do not allow us to exercise any judgement
over the future direction of foreign exchange fluctuation and are
strict procedural steps for our operational staff to follow. The
Group will review the procedures from time to time and make
appropriate changes when necessary. Other than the transactional
foreign currency exchange risk, assets and liabilities of the
group entities are mainly denominated in its respective functional
currency. The Group’s treasury management policy is to place
surplus cash into bank deposits with licensed banks in mainly
Hong Kong, Macau and Japan. Also, working capital are centrally
managed to ensure proper and efficient collection and deployment
of funds, and sufficient funds to settle liabilities when they fall due.
Net exchange gain of approximately HK$2.4 million was recorded
in 2019 (2018: HK$6.1 million).
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND EMPLOYEE'’S
REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total workforce of
625 employees (as at 31 December 2018: 635), of which 196
(as at 31 December 2018: 207) were full-time tour escorts.
Employees’ remuneration packages are determined with reference
to the market information and individual performance and will
be reviewed on a regular basis. The remuneration policy will
be reviewed by the Board from time to time. Emoluments of
Directors are determined by the remuneration committee of the
Board after considering the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparing with market conditions. In addition to
basic remuneration, the Group also provides medical insurance,
provident funds and other benefits in kind to the employees.
To intensify personnel training and development, the Group
provides a series of employee training programmes, which aims
to accelerate professional growth and identify competences and
talents of diversified teams. Through operating talent development
scheme and also Youth Upward Mobility Mentorship Program,
the Group has successfully extended the recruitment channels
and enhanced the opportunities on the hiring of high quality
and suitable staff. High potential staff will be groomed and
developed intensively according to the promotion plan towards
the management level. To attract and retain the suitable personnel
for the development of the Group, the Group has adopted a
Share Option Scheme since November 2014. Pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme, share options may be granted to eligible
employees of the Group as a long-term incentive. No share
options were granted, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in 2019.
During 2019, there was no significant change in the remuneration
policies, bonus, Share Option Scheme and training scheme of the
Group.
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EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

Outbreak of novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”) since January 2020
across countries gives a serious shock to tourism industry.
certain countries and territories have imposed different levels
of travel restrictions and quarantine arrangements to travellers
that significantly affect customer sentiments and demand for
travel related products and services and hotel accommodations.
In early 2020, various measures were imposed by the PRC
government and Hong Kong government on preventing the
spread of COVID-19 contagious disease, such as trave
restrictions, home confinement and new border control measures.
There was temporarily suspension of service for the Group’s
subsidiary located in the PRC, the Directors estimated the
extent of influence is relatively low to the Group. In mid-March,
Hong Kong government had issued the red outbound trave
alert on all overseas countries and territories and also imposed
14-day compulsory quarantine orders on all persons arriving
from all places outside the PRC for 3 months starting from 19
March 2020. In response to this sudden change, the Group had
cancelled and suspended package tours and FIT Products in
different countries and territories from sale by different duration
with the last departure date till mid-June, the Group also
implements cost-saving measures to reduce operational costs,
such as bargaining for rent concession, making no-pay leaves
arrangement for staff, suspension of services in some branches,
and also suspension of hotel accommodation service in Osaka
Hinode Hotel from mid-March to end of April. It is expected
that the Group’s revenue and other financial results for the six
months ending 30 June 2020 will be adversely affected. Under
the circumstance that there is high degree of uncertainties on
the duration of the outbreak and action to be taken by various
travel destinations that the influence is not predictable, the
related impact on the Group’s operation, financial performance,
cash flows and financial position will be material, but cannot be
reasonably estimated as at the date of this report. Notwithstanding
the potential risks or uncertainties the Company may face, the
Company pays its best effort on implementation of preventive
measures in office environment and development of contingency
plans to maintain its operation. The Company is also closely
monitoring the immigration restrictions, quarantine measures and
home confinement that other countries imposed to outbound
travellers, and responds actively to comply with regulations and
rules in place.
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OUTLOOK

As always, the Group does its utmost to enable its customers to
obtain unique and tailored travel experience through its quality
services and products in well-diversified business mix. Following
the operation of the Group’s first hotel “Osaka Hinode Hotel” in
November 2017, the Group is now constructing a new hotel in
Okinawa with construction work commenced from March 2019
as disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 12 March
2019, and it is expected that the hotel construction work will be
completed and put into operation in the fourth quarter of 2020.

In 2019, the Group released a new brand “Guru & Guru” which
allows its customers to customise their itineraries on their
preferences, it is expected that more new product mix and
featured products will be developed and explored.
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2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
, TET FET FET TET FET
#45 Results HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
g Revenue
IR1T Package tours 1,467,725 1,496,863 1,457,902 1,505,955 1,660,538
BRITERKEHE FIT Products and ancillary travel
IRTTHE B I R 7S related products and services 188,828 212,527 164,102 174,277 197,803
R E Hotel operation 71,775 67,224 2,580 - -
1,728,328 1,776,614 1,624,584 1,680,232 1,858,341
£ Gross Profit
RiTE Package tours 191,656 189,908 209,661 164,573 304,729
B ERTEm R FIT Products and ancillary travel
IRTTHE A I R 7S related products and services 68,770 75,461 79,160 99,350 130,022
HEEE Hotel operation 52,067 49,920 2,946 - -
312,493 315,289 291,767 263,923 434,751
Hp A R s 5 58 Other income and gain, net 4,479 9,590 14,096 10,038 1,111
3 A=NEIE S Share of results of associates 2,198 3,081 2,148 3,462 1,485
R REER ZAE Impairment on interest in an associate - - (3,839) - -
BR A B KA SRR Profit before interest and income tax 14,973 36,857 38,188 23,048 175,687
BE A Finance costs (3,225) (3,913) (370) - -
FisBEe,/ (AX) Income tax credit/(expense) 2,877 2,120 (9,314) (3,714) (25,253)
FEHEF Profit for the year 14,625 35,064 28,504 19,334 150,434
TR ERS (Profit)/Loss attributable to
[E{R CER) /BB non-controlling interests (624) (247) 55 (664) 35
ERREEA Profit attributable to
JE 165 % F owners of the Company 14,001 34,817 28,559 18,670 150,469
BREE Per share data
SREF Earnings per share
—EARREE (B) - - Basic and diluted (HK cents)* 2.79 6.93 5.68 3.72 29.95
B ISt = Financial ratios
EME Gross profit margin 18.1% 17.7% 18.0% 15.7% 23.4%
RERBX Operating profit margin 0.9% 2.1% 2.4% 1.4% 9.5%
| & Net profit margin* 0.8% 2.0% 1.8% 1.1% 8.1%
FIEBEX Interest coverage ratio 4.6f5times  9.4f3times 103.2f%times ZNil ZNil
188 FE o R~ Return on total assets* 1.3% 3.8% 3.4% 3.0% 24.1%
R O R x~ Return on equity* 4.0% 9.8% 8.5% 5.8% 41.9%
B R Current ratio 1.1{&times  1.3f%times  1.6(Ztimes  1.7f&times  2.3f&times
TRIR L & Gearing ratio 34.1% 29.6% 29.7% 8.4% ZNil
* WA AFE FHEARAGHEE ATEE ST o * Profit in calculation refers to profit attributable to owners of the
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As at 31 December
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
THERT FAET FHET TAET FHET

EEREE Assets and Liabilities HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BEE Total assets 1,091,880 912,476 845,660 632,556 624,114

BEE Total liabilities (738,859)  (554,325)  (506,699)  (308,851)  (263,041)

ey Total equity 353,021 358,151 338,961 323,705 361,073

FABAER Bank borrowings included in

RITER total liabilities (372,875)  (269,638)  (250,931) (53,287) -

A% Total equity

RRBEBA Equity attributable to

eI % owners of the Company 350,577 355,015 336,154 321,120 359,209
RS M Non-controlling interests 2,444 3,136 2,807 2,585 1,864
353,021 358,151 338,961 323,705 361,073

Biat - Notes:

1. EEETERNAFE RN RBKE (2018F:BEF 1. The Board does not recommend payment of final dividend for the
R MRS SR B A HE5.08 - EReiEF R EE Year (2018: total dividend per share amounted to HK5.0 cents,
AR ) - including the interim dividend of HK1 cent per share, was declared

and paid).

2. AEER2019F1A1BEVIREREBMEREER 2, The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 at 1 January 2019.
F16F - BBEMBEZBES ERYBER T RESE Under the transition method chosen, comparative financial
o ESFBER 2 S EFIBENERE M BIREM = information is not restated. Further details of the changes in
3(a) i © accounting policies are disclosed in note 3(a) to the consolidated

financial statements.
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The Directors submit herewith their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2019, distributable reserves of the Company

amounted to approximately HK$43.5 million (2018: approximately
HK$63.0 million).
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Year and the state of affairs of
the Company and the Group as at 31 December 2019 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to
221 of this annual report. According to the Company’s existing
divided policy, the Company, subject to consideration of, among
other things, its results of operations, cash flows and financial
condition, operating and capital requirements and such other
factors which the Directors deem relevant, pay annual dividends of
not less than 50% of the Group’s consolidated profit attributable
to the Shareholders. Having considered, among other factors,
the current financial and operational conditions of the Group (in
particular, those conditions as set out in the sub-section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Events after Reporting
Date” on page 25 of this report relating to the impact of novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19”) to the financial position of the Group),
the Directors do not recommend the payment of final dividend for
the Year (2018: HK4.0 cents per Share).

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the Year and a
discussion of the Group’s future business development are set
out in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 10 and the
sub-sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis
— Business Overview” on pages 13 to 15 and “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Outlook” on page 26 of this annual
report respectively.

20194 % Annual Report 2019 031
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Certain principal risks and uncertainties facing by the Group may

affect its business, operating results and financial conditions,

including:

(i)

(i)

OCCURRENCE OF NATURAL DISASTERS,
ACTS OR THREATS OF TERRORISM, WARS,
TRAVEL RELATED ACCIDENTS, OUTBREAK
OF CONTAGIOUS DISEASES OR OTHER
CATASTROPHIC EVENTS

The demand for the Group’s travel related products, services
and hotel accommodations may be materially and adversely
affected by natural disasters, acts or threats of terrorism,
wars, travel related accidents, outbreak of contagious
diseases or other catastrophic events. Such events may
significantly and adversely affect customer sentiments and
demand for travel related products, services and hotel
accommodations to the affected destinations or for travel
activities in general. The occurrence and timing of such
events cannot be predicted or controlled by the Group and
may have significant and adverse impact on its assets,
business operations and operating results, particularly if the
Group is, or is perceived to be, not reacting appropriately in
the wake of any such event.

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC CONDITIONS OF MAJOR
MARKETS

The Group’s business is based in Hong Kong and Macau
and its revenue is mainly derived from the sale of travel
related products and services in Hong Kong and Macau. Any
economic downturn or recession in Hong Kong or Macau
could lead to decline in demand for the Group’s products or
services and its overall business and operating results may
be materially and adversely affected.
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(1)

(iv)

CHANGE IN ECONOMIC, SOCIAL OR POLITICAL
CONDITIONS AND LAWS AND REGULATIONS
RELATED TO JAPAN

The business and operating results of the Group might be
adversely affected if there is any material adverse change in
the economic, social or political situations relating to Japan,
including its foreign relationship with other Asian countries,
or laws and regulations, including building regulations and
health and safety regulations or if there are any serious
natural disasters or disastrous accidents occurring in Japan,
which may adversely impact customer demand for travel
related products and services of the Group related to Japan
and as well as the hotel accommodations in Japan.

HIGHLY COMPETITIVE HOSPITALITY INDUSTRY IN
JAPAN

Osaka Hinode Hotel,
face competition from other accommodation options in

which is located in Osaka, might

Japan currently existing or which may come into operation
in the future. The success of the Group’s hotel operation
will depend on its ability to compete in aspects such as
room rates, quality of accommodation, service level and
convenience of location.

Further description of possible capital risks and financial risks

facing by the Group are set out in note 38 and note 39 to the

consolidated financial statements and the sub-section headed

“Management Discussion and Analysis — Foreign Currency

Exchange Risk and Treasury Policies” on page 23 of this annual

report.
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An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the “Five Year
Financial Summary” on pages 27 to 29 and the sub-section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review”
on pages 16 to 25 of this annual report respectively. Particulars
of important events affecting the Group that have occurred since
the end of the Year, if any, can also be found in the above sections
of this annual report and notes to the consolidated financial
statements.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented certain policies to minimise
the impact on the environment caused by its business activities.
The Group has implemented internal recycling program on a
continuous basis for consumables such as toner, cartridges and
paper to minimise the operation impact on the environment and
natural resources. Recycled papers have also been used as
printing materials. The Group also implemented energy saving
practices in offices and branch premises, where applicable. To the
extent practicable, the Group completed the upgrade of electricity
systems to achieve the energy saving to workplace. The Board is
of the opinion that the Group has complied with the relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group in all
material respects during the Year. The Group endeavours to refine
the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance and
should generate greater value for all of its stakeholders including
its shareholders, employees, customers, and suppliers as well as
the communities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the
Company prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Listing
Rules will be published within three months after the publication of

this annual report.
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EARREVERHERRR AKEEEETHMA
SEEEHER KRG HER 2 RBETRT  WERE
ERBUMERMERSE-

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group recognises that employees, customers and suppliers
are keys to its sustainable development. The Group is committed
to establishing a close and caring relationship with its employees,
providing quality services to its customers and enhancing
cooperation with its business partners. The Group provides a
fair and safe workplace, promotes diversity to its staff, provides
competitive remuneration and benefits and career development
opportunities based on their merits and performance. The Group
also puts ongoing efforts to provide adequate trainings and
development resources to the employees so that they can keep
abreast of the latest development of the market and the industry
and, at the same time, improve their performance and self
fulfillment in their positions.

The Group understands that it is important to maintain good
relationship with customers and provide products and services
which satisfy the needs and requirements of the customers.
The Group enhances its customer relationship by continuous
interaction with customers to gain insight on the changing market
demand for different products and services so that the Group can
respond proactively. The Group has also established procedures
in handling customers’ feedbacks and complaints to ensure
customers’ opinions are dealt with in a prompt and timely manner.

The Group maintains sound business relationship with its
suppliers and service providers, including land, airlines and
hotel operators, globally. In order to have a better and close
monitoring of suppliers’ performance, the Group’s management
conducts performance review regularly targeting the Group’s major
suppliers and service providers, and communicates with them for
rectification and improvements.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are set out on pages
27 to 29 of this annual report.

L ERE = PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
REFBRAKNEENYE BENRSE 15574  Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
B BHRKRN T4 - Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.
D EXIES LIST OF PROPERTIES
2019612 A31H A EEHEABEREMEELTAEA  As at 31 December 2019, details of the properties held for
MIEFIBWOT development and owner occupation which are owned by the
Group are as follows:
L/ EX0 9 PROPERTY FOR DEVELOPMENT
W% B4 A R2019%F
Pt B AEE EHERE 12A318
it & At (FAK) (FFHX) RELHAR TEIRE
Stage of
Approx. Approx. Completion
Percentage Aggregate Gross as at
Interest in the Site Area Floor Area Existing 31 December
Description Location Property (sq. m.) (sg. m.) Land Use 2019
WERIE (H5E) B 48 70 8 T 13346 - 100% 2,330.34 6,350.68 BE  LERZEEIV
3-348-1 +3-350 * 3-353-6 * Hotel  Superstructure in
3-353-723-361-11 progress
A site at Makishi (Note) 3-346, 3-348-1, 3-350, 3-353-6,
3-353-7 and 3-361-11,
Makishi, Naha City, Okinawa, Japan
Biat - Note:

AN B F201851 A & 42K (970,000,000 R B (% R 4
67,900,000 7T ) A — & J& 37 55 = J5 W BES P 18 Hh 38 - AN & B A
201847 A & 4 £ (846,000,000 F [ (48 % 7 #93,220,00078
TL)R— BB E = IRE R IR IEH R

036 =Z=miERARAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Four land parcels were acquired by the Group in January 2018 at the
aggregate consideration of JPY970,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$67,900,000) from an independent third party. Another two land parcels
were acquired by the Group in July 2018 at the aggregate consideration
of JPY46,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$3,220,000) from an
independent third party.
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REEFF BRI F PROPERTIES OWNED BY THE GROUP
Frib R BAwBRARE BOBEER
= E Bakk AHERE (EHK) (F7K)
Approx. Approx.
Percentage Aggregate Gross Floor
Interest in the Available Site Area Area
Name Location Property Rooms (sg. m.) (sg. m.)
AR DFBIE B 7R KRR A BR 7 R 3 [ 100% 354 1,602.07 9,883.83
BXEZEM—TA (HtzE)
2% 13 2%33 (Note)
Osaka Hinode Hotel 2-18 and 2-33 Ebisunishi,
1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan
BOXRENOR R B AR BR T R BR R 3% & 100% 16 266.01 1,008.33

EXEm—TER
2731 K 2#32

2-31 and 2-32, Ebisunishi,
1-Chome, Naniwa-Ku,
Osaka-Shi, Osaka-Fu, Japan

Hinode Deep-water Hot
Spring

iz

PR i - B 44 B R U 8 10 T B A R A2 ¢ 8 2
REE REE AR

Note:

During the Year, increase in number of available rooms due to the change

in use of hotel rooms, from office use to accommodation use.
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BE HESELOALRZ EHHES

RAFE ARAREEMAMBLARAMERE HEX
BRAQRBERMLETES -

BEBE#

HEERANASREZEMERERELREE
B2 MEARBAZLLPIRRABRREEHRK

{/\ °

ZERN

AEBRAFEEREBEZSBRY154,0008 T
(20184F : 49231,000/8 7T) °

TEEPRMLER

RAFE AEBRATPZBEXBRRAEERER
FEATRB0% °

AEETEHEIRAFEMGRBEEOOLLAT

SHARE CAPITAL

There was no movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year
amounted to approximately HK$154,000 (2018: approximately
HK$231,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the
Group’s five largest customers represent less than 30% of the
Group’s total turnover.

The percentages of purchases for the Year attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers are as follows:

EAEE
BB
BB
Approximate
Percentage of
the Group’s Total

Purchases
BARHEER The largest supplier 13.2%
hAARHEEE & Five largest suppliers in aggregate 30.6%

REEMA SEES HZEBREATIETAEES
FRAER AR R BEITIRAS%IA 2 IR - RAFE
BREAKRBEMNAAEPAMHERNEMNZERE-

038 =Z=miiERARAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of
the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) has any interest during the Year in any of the Group’s five
largest customers or suppliers.
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AZBEAETIR =D —NEFABNESTERE
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FZHEMEZRAE LREEEEREZ EARESR
RRZEF HOEBE—REFTLRIINA-—BEE
B MBS ABEREE (BRIFERERTENX
Whik) REESEEREBREMT - Bt - RKENEE
BES XL RREBELERR2020FMRBF ARG L
RE ATAERBESEEL-

DIRECTORS

The Directors in office during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time
being or, if their number is not 3 or a multiple of 3, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. Any Directors
to retire shall be those who have been the longest in office since
their last re-election or appointment but as between persons who
became or were last re-elected Directors on the same day, those
to retire shall (unless they otherwise agree among themselves)
be determined by lot. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Accordingly, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and
Mr. Chan Kim Fai will retire from office and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2020 AGM.

039
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RIFELETHRAE1351BO)RHEERTE

FRAFEESMENEDFBERNGEMBERERNM
120

BEEFRERT

RAFERARBEARE AR/ ARBREGEESR
M BAEARRARES (BRMNESR) AREAN
(B RS - BERFRE RN A ERMAR - A RRA
SEAREHERFEFRENEARREFNERE
BEERKAMEBNEELSABEETRRTAM
MR °

BEEBEEX
RAFEER - BT TR R By RA R BT RN

ERRERNEZRINEERTRAEBNALN (BRE
BRIRRAE LIRS

R R S0 17
TR (AR B — ST R B ARE S RIS -
S5 8137 48 5T ST AR SEEMA 38 - AN R IV DA IR

S -
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior management of
the Group as at the date of this report are set out on pages 77 to
80 of this annual report.

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION
UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

Details of the change of emoluments of the Directors for the Year
are set out in note 12 to the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Company
has in force indemnity provisions as permitted under the relevant
statutes for the benefit of the Directors (including former Directors)
of the Company. The permitted indemnity provisions are provided
for in the Articles of Association and in the directors and officers
liability insurance maintained for the Group in respect of potential
liability and costs associated with legal proceedings that may be
brought against such Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts or appointment
letters, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of any business of the Group were
entered into or subsisted during the Year.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group, or subsisted during
the Year.
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Mz R ERR  FARBRETRANE AR B
Pzt & mEZZDT-

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
2020 AGM has a service contract with the Company or any of
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which the directors
and chief executive of the Company were deemed or taken to
have under such provisions of the SFO) or which were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be recorded in the register
therein, or were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:
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EEHE B LEER
Name of
Associated

Name of Director Corporation

INTERESTS IN SHARES OF THE
CORPORATION OF THE COMFANY

ESLERiE)

EER DB
Total Number of
Shares Held in
the Associated

EEtE

Nature of Interest Corporation

ASSOCIATED

'fE*E Hg /j&— .*Efm
BB DL
Approximate %
of Interest in
the Associated
Corporation

RXEEE ([REE]) 12 % & 12
(EFEFRATESE)

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”) Evergloss
(Chairman & Executive Director)

WEE2EE ([BEE]) 1 fe B IR
(FITESE)

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”)  Evergloss
(Executive Director)

2RETEAE (REE]) 12 B B I8
(FITEF)

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”)  Evergloss
(Executive Director)
Bt (IF&L]) 1 B B 3R
(FITESE)

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Ms. Lee”) Evergloss

(Executive Director)

BIBEFERRLA (B aE1) 8,850 (L)
Founder of a discretionary

trust (Note 1)

S PPNE ok Fa
(Ktet2)

Interest of a controlled

7,650 (L)

corporation (Note 2)
E=mEAA 3,300 (L)

Beneficial owner

1;:1 H{ZXﬁIL/\& B m

(BaE13)
Beneficiary of a trust &

wmHEB A 9,150 (L)

beneficial owner
(Notes 1 & 3)

26.70

23.08

9.95

27.60

042 smEERAERLDT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

L Long position
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F B (Fiducia Suisse SAZ Z2E W B AR IFHREE
1#8,850/% i% 1% * Fiducia Suisse SA&The Yuen Family
2014 Trustf) 2 5L A » M The Yuen Family 2014 Trust&
EREPFNEETF T LI REZEEHELL (HWAR
EENBEAN) ANEZ R ARZHWIEET-

BE(ABELEER2EHE) FARKEEIRT7 650K

e

9,150/% 2 E 2% 15 7 + 5 (Fiducia Suisse SAZ &
EHIBAE) 48,8500 %1% * Fiducia Suisse SAAThe
Yuen Family 2014 Trustf)Z7EA c BT X T AZETX @
AZ— A TE00RIBEEERNETLLIEATHE
BAFA-

B EatFr i EESN  R2019F12A31H - iEE = AN
AREITBRABRARRSKEAMMEEEE (TER
BEREEEGIEXVED) 2G5 - HERDKEST#E
BREES RS EHEI521EREN AR T AT HT
2B SRR ESTRIZBMNE A AR KB Z T
fAREZS SR E ©

Notes:

The 8,850 shares in Evergloss were held by Likang, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is the trustee of The
Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by
Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen
Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen respectively and both an
associate of Mr. Yuen.

The 7,650 shares in Evergloss were held by Kwok Lai, which is
directly wholly-owned by Mr. Huen.

Out of the 9,150 shares in Evergloss, 8,850 shares were held by
Likang, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Fiducia Suisse SA which is
the trustee of The Yuen Family 2014 Trust. Ms. Lee is one of the
beneficiaries of the trust. The remaining 300 shares in Evergloss
were held by Ms. Lee as the beneficial owner.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none of the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company, or any of its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which had been recorded in the
register maintained by the Company pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO or which had been notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2019, so far as was known to the Directors
or chief executive of the Company, the persons (other than the
Directors or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or
short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO were as
follows:

HEBRITRA
BHE DL

Approximate

FEROBH

Percentage of

Name of Shareholders

Nature of Interest

Total Number of
Shares Held

the Issued
Share Capital

1 B B 38
Evergloss

Fiducia Suisse SA

HILL David Henry Christopher

HILL Rebecca Ann

BEalAA

Beneficial owner

ZEEAN (B it1)
Trustee (Note 1)

NEEGER &R (M 72)
Interest of a controlled corporation
(Note 2)

o (A1AE3)

Interest of spouse (Note 3)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

375,000,000 (L)

74.63

74.63

74.63

74.63

L) Long position
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1. 375,000,000k RIDEHBEEERFE -BEEES F
F B + Yohki Ryokoh Limited ([Yohki )% BI# A& 49
26.70% 2.26.24% ° | K Yohki?d A Fiducia Suisse SA
2 Z2& A 7F] Fiducia Suisse SAEMIEE 1B R ik {E7EH
ZEEA - BN()The Yuen Family 2014 Trust: A&R 54D B
NHEFF LA RLARAREBL T (HARLENHE
AN) BBER @ AR ABIEERE (i) Happyyau Family
Trust BEFAEEGENEEZFREBEAT N ELZEIRE
E-RARNBIEARLNHBBET-

2. Fiducia Suisse SAFHILL David Henry Christopherst 4
B - % #5148 A 503875,000,0000% Ak 17 B % o

3. HILL Rebecca AnnZ 4= AHILL David Henry Christopher
S Y BCAB - 1% 1% 4R A 5A375,000,000 8% A% 15 7 4 B #E

¢
fm ©

B EXPRIREEE SN IR2019F 1231 H - I\ A ER
BRIAL (BEERARARTHABRIN RAR
AR AR D R EBEAREIORE MAREZE
> M R PIEXVER 552 K237 BR 6 XX [A) A8 1~ &) Ko B 52
PR EE - RERIERE 7 R E RO FIB6HLHER AR
ATz B

EEWERMBES ZEF

BRI IRt 8 —HIFT I ER < B RSN - R A]
HAEAIZERR AR B AR RE R R B A RS ER
AREERIANFEEMEREFTZLEM L FEFHE
AR E ZBBH18RAT 2 FRGUEBWEALRF]
FAEREMER Z R K EFER -

Notes:

1. 375,000,000 Shares were held by Evergloss. Evergloss was owned
as to approximately 26.70% by Likang and 26.24% by Yohki
Ryokoh Limited (“Yohki”). Both Likang and Yohki are wholly owned
by Fiducia Suisse SA, which is the trustee of two discretionary
family trusts, namely () The Yuen Family 2014 Trust, which is a
discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yuen whose discretionary objects
are Ms. Lee and Ms. Yuen Ho Yee, wife and daughter of Mr. Yuen
respectively and both an associate of Mr. Yuen; (i) Happyyau
Family Trust, which is a discretionary trust set up by Mr. Yau Shui
Fung whose discretionary objects are Ms. Li Siu King, wife and an
associate of Mr. Yau Shui Fung, and Tung Wah Group of Hospitals.

2. Fiducia Suisse SA was held by Mr. HILL David Henry Christopher
who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 Shares.

3. Ms. HILL Rebecca Ann is a spouse of Mr. HILL David Henry
Christopher who has a deemed interest of 375,000,000 Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, there was no
other substantial shareholders or persons (other than the Directors
or chief executive of the Company) who had any interest or
short position in the shares or underlying shares in the Company
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the option as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Company, any of its
holding company, its subsidiaries and its fellow subsidiaries was
a party to any arrangements which would enable the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate at the end of the Year
or at any time during the Year.
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DIRECTORS’
BUSINESS

INTERESTS IN COMPETING

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors were not aware of any
business or interest of the Directors and their respective close
associates that had competed or might compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflict of interests which any such
person had or might have with the Group.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Board on the basis of their performance, qualifications,
competence and job nature. The remuneration of the Directors is
recommended by the Remuneration Committee and is decided
by the Board, having regard to the financial results of the Group,
individual performance and comparing with market conditions. The
Company has adopted the Share Option Scheme as an incentive
arrangement for eligible employees.

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme of the Group are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued share capital is
held by the public under the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors an annual written confirmation of
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.
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GENERAL DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO RULE
13.18 AND 13.21 OF THE LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2019 and up to the date of this report, the

Group entered the following facility letters containing covenants

relating to specific performance obligations on the controlling

shareholder of the Company which were subject to announcement

disclosure under Rule 13.18 of the Listing Rules and requirements

of disclosure in this annual report under Rule 13.21 of the Listing

Rules, the details of which are set out below:

(i)

On 9 October 2018, EGL Tours as borrower accepted
the facility letter (the “2018 Facility Letter”) issued by a
bank offering for the grant of general banking facilities
and foreign exchange facility in the aggregate amounts
of HK$48,300,000 (collectively, the “2018 Facilities”), the
2018 Facility Letter of which was countersigned by the
Company as a guarantor.

Under the 2018 Facility Letter, EGL Tours has undertaken
to the bank, among others, the following:

(@) any of Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee
shall remain chairman or directors of EGL Tours and
maintain control over the management and business
of the Group; and

(b) Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee shall at
all times collectively maintain, directly or indirectly,
not less than 45% beneficial shareholding of EGL
Tours.

Pursuant to the 2018 Facility Letter, the bank has the
overriding right at any time to require EGL Tours to
immediately make payment and/or cash collateralisation of
all or any sums actually or contingently owing to the bank
under the 2018 Facilities.
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(i

On 17 January 2020, EGL Tours as borrower, the Company,
Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, each as
guarantor or security provider, accepted the renewed and
revised offer from a bank in respect of the general banking
facilities previously granted to, and accepted by EGL Tours
in May 2018. Under the renewed facility letter, the general
banking facilities (including a revolving loan facilities (2020
Revolving Loan Facilities”) and corporate credit card(s)
(“2020 CCD”) in the aggregate amount of HK$50,600,000
(collectively, the “2020 Facilities”) were renewed. The 2020
Revolving Loan Facilities have no fixed term and are subject
to periodic review of the bank and the 2020 CCD is subject
to the terms and conditions issued by the bank’s card centre
to EGL Tours.

Under the renewed facility letter for the 2020 Facilities, each
of EGL Tours, the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen, Mr. Leung
and Ms. Lee has undertaken to the bank, among others, the
following:

(@) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee any one shall remain chairman or
director(s) of EGL Tours and the Company and maintain
control over the management and business of the
Group;

(b) EGL Tours shall ensure that Mr. Yuen, Mr. Huen,
Mr. Leung or Ms. Lee, shall at all times collectively
maintain, directly or indirectly, not less than 45%
beneficial shareholding in the Group; and

(c) the major operating account to be maintained in the
bank with new average bank balance of the companies
which includes EGL Tours, Great Port and the
Company of not less than HK$50,000,000.

The bank shall have right to suspend, withdraw or make
demand in respect of the whole or any part of the 2020
Facilities made available to EGL Tours at any time or
determine whether or not to permit drawings in relation to
the 2020 Facilities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO of the Company after deducting
underwriting commissions and related expenses were
approximately HK$115.8 million and had been fully utilised before
June 2019. The following table lists out the details of use of net

proceeds from the IPO:

HZE2019%
12A31H
EEARE
Utilised up to
31 December
8 IE AR Use of Proceeds 2019
FHT
HK$’000
() IERIHERE ()  Enhancing sales channel
— B RERBRE ST — Refurbishment and face lifting of
existing branches 9,200
—FABE—E2m — Development of a comprehensive online
web portal 17,400
iy FADHIDRAREER (i)  Promoting brand image and recognition
MMz E through market initiatives
—FARZINEREREREN - Conducting marketing initiatives with focus on
ZIHER conventional media channels 9,300
—HEEFEERNIBELE - Employing featured products or signature tours
REAHBEGIREE marketing campaigns with suitable spokespersons
ZIHE 8,100
— ¥ REET &) — Launching reward and incentive scheme 11,500
(i) hpoR & E B (i) Strengthening operational infrastructure
—BBRETLEERE — Improving management information system by
AENEERENRSR implementing enterprise resources planning system 13,900
—REBTEHMERENE LR — Arranging charter flights to destination not served by
1 scheduled flights 25,400
— RS R BELHEEMNEER - Attracting and recruiting experienced employees 5,800
(iv) ZERBIMNEEIRTT (iv) Developing overseas wedding tours 5,700
v) FAEEEEZES REM—KATA (v)  For working capital and other general
A& corporate purposes 9,500
115,800
2019% % Annual Report 2019 049
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme pursuant to an
ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders on 13 November
2014 which shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
from the date of listing of the Shares (i.e. 28 November 2014),
subject to early termination by the Company in a general meeting
or by the Board. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide incentives to Eligible Person (as defined below) and
is established to recognise and acknowledge the contributions
the Eligible Person have had or may have made to the Group.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the Board may offer to grant
an option to any employee, or any secondee, consultant, agent,
representative, adviser, customer, contractor of the Group or any
affiliates; or any business partner/ally/alliance, joint venture partner,
supplier of goods or services to the Group or any affiliates or any
employee thereof (“Eligible Person”).

The number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time shall not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. The maximum number of shares available for
issue under options which may be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or other share option scheme adopted by the Company
must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue
immediately following completion of the IPO (but taking no account
of any shares which may be allotted or issued pursuant to the
exercise of the over-allotment option (as defined in the prospectus
of the Company dated 18 November 2014)), being 50,000,000
shares. The total number of shares issued and which may fall to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted pursuant to the
Share Option Scheme to each Eligible Person in any 12-month
period shall not exceed 1% of the number of shares in issue as
at the date of grant unless approved by the shareholders of the
Company in general meeting.



i+

EERHE

eport of the Directors

8

5y

REBREFIRLZEAREBBRE R NABEE
AHEZSET BIRIRTIRSE : ()REELA
H(ERARLERR) BIAEHREINRARAK
UTE : (ERRL AR AEERA AR AEA
WEFIR PR By FHWmE: Rkt 2HEHE-

REBEMBIER ARABAARRMNUETIERE
R IR 2 (B o A RI IR B R AT 81 2 IR R BB R
EERERLTEERNE RREEZ AR +FEMA
HMENTE - BREZ2TENHESe2RNEE
E-HEABBARLETF-

MR2019%F1 A1H k2019512 HA31H » AR Al & B
BRETESRLERE - RAFE  BETHERER
ERERRERT B L - 1T R e AR

HEAREDH BIFERET BT BT 2 RH A
£50,000,0000% (G AR B 2 #8174 499.95% ©

The subscription price of a share in respect of any particular option
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined
by the Board provided that it shall not be less than the highest
of: (i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of grant, which must
be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

Upon acceptance of the option, the grantee shall pay HK$1 to
the Company by way of consideration for the grant. An option
may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the Share
Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the option
is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of 10 years from that date. The period during which an option
may be exercised will be determined by the Board in its absolute
discretion, save that no option may be exercised more than 10
years after it has been granted.

No option was granted by the Company under the Share Option
Scheme as at 1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019. No share
option has been granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed during the
Year under the Share Option Scheme.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 50,000,000 shares
representing approximately 9.95% of the issued share capital of
the Company.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND DIRECTORS’
INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Details of the connected transactions (including the CCTs) entered
into by, and/or subsisted between, the Group and the connected
persons of the Company during the Year and which are not
exempted under Rule 14A.73 of the Listing Rules are set out
below:

NON-EXEMPT CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS SUBJECT TO ANNUAL REPORTING
AND ANNUAL REVIEW REQUIREMENTS

Certain CCTs in respect of the leasing to the Group (as tenant)
by Great Port (Note 1) as landlord for the occupation or use
of certain premises, car parking spaces and advertising area
subsisted during the Year (including Silver Fortune Plaza 2101-2
Lease Agreement 2017, EGL Tower Lease Agreement 2017,
EGL Tower 10B Lease Agreement 2017, Chevalier House Lease
Agreement 2017 and China Plaza Lease Agreements 2017, all of
which were defined below). As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 30 October 2017, the aggregate annual cap
of the CCTs for the Year (“Annual Cap”) is HK$16,700,000. As
the highest applicable percentage ratios under the Listing Rules
in respect of the Annual Cap exceeded 0.1% but was less than
5%, the CCTs and the Annual Cap are therefore exempted from
the circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
but are still subject to the annual reporting and annual review
requirements under the Listing Rules. Please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 30 October 2017 for further
details.

Set out below are the details of the CCTs which are required to
be disclosed pursuant to Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing
Rules. Each of the rentals under the respective agreements was
determined based on arm’s length negotiations between the
parties and is fair and reasonable, on normal commercial terms
and comparable to and are on terms no less favorable than the
prevailing market rent as confirmed by an independent property
valuer engaged by the Group.
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EREFNRE
R HEER BERBRRES AEERSFH ANHE HERIXZER X5EH (B71)
Consideration
Transaction ~ Counter Party, Paid for the
Name, Date and Term of the Agreement  Party within ~ Nature and Description of Year
No. and Rental the Group the Transaction Transaction Purpose (HKS)
1 HEHZEN2017F10A308 %5 RBBETE DEMRETRTRBRRITH UHERERTTHER 203,880
([FR E52101-2 E i (20175)])
ERRREHBEBE1FHEES2182101-2
HEHE 2017F11A1HE EREMEBLN 699T FREOME
2019123318 (fi##2)
AT 67,9608
Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as a branch office
2017 (“Silver Fortune Plaza 2101-2 Lease
Agreement 2017”) The premises of a total gross floor area of
approximately 1,699 sq.ft. located at Units
Term: From 1 November 2017 to 2101-2, 21/F, Silver Fortune Plaza, No. 1
31 December 2019 (Note 2) Wellington Street, Central, Hong Kong
Monthly rental: HK$67,960
2 HERFER2017510A308 %5 RRERITHE DEBABTRTFRBERTL M E R R 11,247,840
(RREESHERE (2017F)]) ARBEINER SR
EENEBEBESTRBEES()10BARC
HEMR:2017F11A18 ZUR12E 15 RI16E 2 EREEEEL
Z2019512A31H 45816 F AREVIE : (i)21815 - 18E235% (%

BRME: Ri)IMEE 5
A8 937,320 T

Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as its head office,
2017 (‘EGL Tower Lease Agreement 2017”) car park spaces and for
(i) the premises of a total gross floor area  rental of signage at external
Term: From 1 November 2017 to of approximately 45,816 sq.ft. located at  wall for advertising
31 December 2019 Units A & C on 10/F, whole floors of 12/F,
15/F & 16/F; (ii) the premises located at car
Monthly rental: HK$937,320 park nos. P15, P18 to P23 on 2/F; and {iii)

signage at external wall of EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
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F%  HEREE ANRBRERES ARERSH ANEE HERXZER X5 EH (B7)
Consideration
Transaction ~ Counter Party, Paid for the
Name, Date and Term of the Agreement  Party within  Nature and Description of Year
No. and Rental the Group the Transaction Transaction Purpose (HK$)
3 HERZN2017F10A30A %5 RBERITHE DEMAETEATRBERTH IR EREEY 552,000
(IRREES10BRE R (2017F)])
R NEEEESR R RERES10EBER
MEHR 2017F11AIAE BEEEL2,300T 7 REME
2019F12H31H
AT 46,000 T
Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as its head office
2017 (‘EGL Tower 10B Lease
Agreement 2017”) The premises of a total gross floor area of
approximately 2,300 sq.ft. located at Unit
Term: From 1 November 2017 to B, 10/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road,
31 December 2019 Kowloon, Hong Kong
Monthly rental: HK$46,000
4 MERZR2017F10A308 &5 RRERTE DEAARBTETRRERTL IEERERERRATH 2,062,584
(TETREMEERZ (20176F)]) 2R
BENERRER45-51 % T AESET
MEHR 2017F11A1AZE 234 5R6EREEEEAG,366T 7R
2019%F 127318 Gk/ES
A 1718825 T
Lease agreement signed on 30 October EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as a tea party

2017 (“Chevalier House Lease
Agreement 2017”)

Term: From 1 November 2017 to
31 December 2019

Monthly rental: HK$171,882

054 =H=EiERAERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

room and the branch
The premises of a total gross floor area of  office
approximately 6,366 sq.ft. located at Units
nos. 1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6, 5/F, Chevalier
House, 45-51 Chatham Road South,

Kowloon, Hong Kong
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EREFNRE
R HEER BERBRRES AEERSFH ANHE HERIXZER X5EH (B71)
Consideration
Transaction ~ Counter Party, Paid for the
Name, Date and Term of the Agreement  Party within ~ Nature and Description of Year
No. and Rental the Group the Transaction Transaction Purpose (HKS)
5 MDA EHERN2017F10A308 55 RBBETE DEARETATRRRRTE CRF) NUHRERERPRFER 1,950,684
(G ERSEERS (2017F)]) (&F) BRAT BRHEERL
BRARA
ZMEHR 2017F11A1BE RPIH) IO A T $52-6B5: & A 5 5 730-
2019F12A31H 8045 ()10EMENZE RI2 B A2 4)4,460F
HREME: Rt TBEHEEEEELN
@A 167,75TRMT 1,159F T REV M %
Two lease agreements signed on EGL Tours Property leased by Great Port to EGL Tours For using as the Macau
30 October 2017 (collectively, the “China (Macau) (Macau) Company Limited office and call centre
Plaza Lease Agreements 2017”) Company
Limited
Term for each lease:  From (i) the premises of a total gross floor area of
1 November 2017 to approximately 4,460 sq.ft. located at Units
31 December 2019 M & N, 10/F; and (ii) the premises of a total
gross floor area of approximately 1,159
Aggregate monthly rental: MOP167,757 sq.ft. located at Shop B, G/F, Nos. 730-
804 Avenida da Praia Grande, Nos. 2-6B
Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau
it Notes:
1. RETAZRHATEERELE BE4E REERTLZEE 1. Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by Mr. Yuen
SHEFENDT T ADRIFEK26.70% - £23.08% * £ as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to approximately
9.95% & #10.90% K iR 8 - $11TE F H AE 5l KB 174760.63% 23.08%, Mr. Leung as to approximately 9.95% and Ms. Lee as
NEER At RETARTEENHEA EmMRELD to approximately 0.90%, all being the Executive Directors. The
HRAEARDAMBEEAL- Executive Directors together controlled approximately 60.63% voting
power of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is an associate of the
Executive Directors and thus a connected person of the Company
under the Listing Rules.
2. FEES2101- 2 E1%# (20179 ) ER2019F4H1H 2. The Silver Fortune Plaza 2101-2 Lease Agreement 2017 has been

BiE MMENTZEERRCIMAET BHEE—
HHIBHNAARHHA20195F3H29H 2 A e

terminated with vacant possession of the premises delivered to
Great Port on 1 April 2019, further details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 29 March 2019.
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The above CCTs are included in “Rental paid to a related company
— Great Port” in the related party transactions disclosed in note 36
to the consolidated financial statements.

The Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above CCTs entered into by the Group and have confirmed that
these CCTs were entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course
of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms or on
terms no less favourable to the Group than terms available to
or from independent third parties; and (iii) in accordance with
the relevant agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s external auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s CCTs in accordance with Hong Kong Standard
on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The external auditor issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
transactions disclosed in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Given that the leasing to the Group (as tenant) by Great Port (as
landlord) for the occupation or use of certain premises, car parking
spaces and advertising area under the lease agreements all dated
30 October 2017 entered into between the Group and Great Port
(including EGL Tower Lease Agreement 2017, EGL Tower 10B
Lease Agreement 2017, Chevalier House Lease Agreement 2017
and China Plaza Lease Agreements 2017), which were expired
on 31 December 2019. The Group entered into the following
agreements (collectively, the “2020 Tenancy Agreements”) with
Great Port on 8 November 2019 to renew the former tenancies,
each with a term commencing from 1 January 2020 to 31
December 2020

BHERERR
THEB2020E REHBNT N A ES (F5R) A RE
Approximate
Parties to the relevant 2020 Gross Floor Area
Tenancy Agreements Premises (sq. ft.) Monthly Rental Use
R% % ERA
No.  Landlord Tenant
1, REf RRBEMRATH EANESREESRREEEF10BARCE 1282 45,816 7530008 @H FELREERSGELE
E 15182 162 E 21215 18R B8R FE R (Taf
EET FEMRFEE)
Great Port EGL Tours Units A and C on 10/F, the whole of 12/F, (excluding HK$753,000  Head office, car park spaces
the whole of 15/F, the whole of car parking spaces and for rental of signage
16/F, Car Parking Spaces Nos. P15, P18 to P23 and signage areas) areas for advertising
on 2/F and Signage Areas, EGL Tower,
No.83 Hung To Road, Kowloon, Hong Kong
2. KEf RBERTH EENEREERRREEES108BE 2,300 36,0008T  £&H
Great Port EGL Tours Unit B on 10/F, EGL Tower, No.83 Hung To Road, HK$36,000  Head office
Kowloon, Hong Kong
3 KEf FREMRITH BRNERAERG-OIEETAESE1 2345 6,366 13400081 RERRATHER
R6ZE
Great Port EGL Tours Units Nos.1, 2, 3, 4, 5 and 6 on 5/F, Chevalier House, HK$134,000  Tea party room and branch
Nos.45-51 Chatham Road South, Kowloon, Hong office
Kong
4. KEf7 RRERTE (R RPS LA HE2-68% FE A5 H730-8045%10 4,460 66,000%M T  RFBEBRREFEHERL
M)ERAE  BMENE
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) ~ Units M and N on 10/F, MOP66,000  Macau office and call centre
Company Limited  Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande,
Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau
5 KEf RRERTE (R RPB LA S HE2-685 5 EA 5 HE730-804% 1,159 74000%M T RMSTHER
M)ERAE  TBEH
Great Port EGL Tours (Macau) ~ Shop B, G/F, Nos.730-804 Avenida da Praia Grande, MOP74,000  Macau branch office

Company Limited  Nos.2-6B Avenida de D Joao IV, Macau
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Great Port is a majority-controlled company owned by Mr. Yuen
as to approximately 26.70%, Mr. Huen as to approximately
23.08%,
as to approximately 0.90%, all being the Executive Directors.

Mr. Leung as to approximately 9.95% and Ms. Lee

The Executive Directors together controlled approximately
60.63% voting power of Great Port, and therefore Great Port is
an associate of the Executive Directors and thus a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules. Accordingly,
the transactions contemplated under the 2020 Tenancy
Agreements constituted connected transactions for the Company
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are subject to the
reporting and announcement requirements under the Listing
Rules but exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval
requirements. Details of the 2020 Tenancy Agreements and
the transactions contemplated thereunder were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 8 November 2019.

Save as disclosed above, no other related party transactions
conducted in the Year as disclosed in note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements constitute a connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Save as disclosed above,
no transaction, arrangement or contracts of significance in relation
to the Group’s business to which the Company, its holding
company or any of their respective subsidiaries was a party and
in which a Director or an entity connected with the Director had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the Year or at any time during the Year.

Save as disclosed above, (i) no contract of significance was
entered into by, and/or subsisted between, the Company or
any of its subsidiaries with the controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year; and (i) there is no contract
of significance in relation to the provision of services by the
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Group.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during the Year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard
of corporate governance practices. Details of the corporate
governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” on pages 60 to 76 of this annual
report.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

Details of significant event of the Group after the reporting date are
set out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the Year have been
audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment
of BDO Limited as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at
the 2020 AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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The Board is pleased to present the corporate governance report
of the Company for the Year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of corporate
transparency and accountability. The Company is committed in
achieving a high standard of corporate governance and leading
the Group to attain better results and improve its corporate image
with effective corporate governance procedures.

During the Year, the Board is of opinion that the Company has
applied the principles and complied with all the applicable code
provisions of the CG Code as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors. Having made specific
enquiry of the Directors, all the Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF AND DELEGATION BY THE
BOARD

The Board provides leadership, guidance and strategic decisions
to the Group’s activities and oversees its financial performances.
The Board has delegated its powers to the management for the
Group’s daily management and operations.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

According to code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of the
chairman and the chief executive officer should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual. During the Year,
the role of the Chairman is performed by Mr. Yuen Man Ying while
the office of the chief executive officer of the Company is vacated.
The Board will keep reviewing the current structure of the Group’s
management from time to time and should candidate with suitable
knowledge, skills and experience be identified, the Company will
make appointment to fill the post as appropriate.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises four Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-executive Directors. At least
one of the Independent Non-executive Directors possesses the
appropriate professional accounting qualifications and financial
management expertise, which complies with the requirements of
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with Rules 3.10
and 3.10A of the Listing Rules. During the Year, the number of
Independent Non-executive Directors represents more than one-
third of the Board. As such, there exists a strong independent
element in the Board, which can effectively exercise independent
judgement. The Board comprises the following Directors:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman)
Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen

Mr. Leung Shing Chiu

Ms. Lee Po Fun

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric
Ms. Wong Lai Ming

Mr. Yuen Man Ying, the Chairman and Executive Director, is
the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun, an Executive Director. All of the
Executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok
Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun, are interested
in the Company’s shares through their interest in Evergloss, a
substantial shareholder of the Company. All of the Executive
Directors have interests in the shares of Great Port, which has
certain transactions with the Group which constituted CCTs
and connected transactions. Please refer to the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 77 to 80,
“Report of the Directors — Directors’ Interests and Short Positions
in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” on pages 41 to
43 and “Report of the Directors — Connected Transactions and
Directors’ Interests in Contracts” on pages 52 to 58 of this annual
report for more details. Save as disclosed above, the Directors
have no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of his/her
independence pursuant to the relevant guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

The Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development courses and seminars to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills. During the Year, each of the
Directors (namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen,
Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun, Mr. Chan Kim Fai,
Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming) has participated
in appropriate continuous professional development activities
by ways of attending trainings, reading materials or conducting
academic research relevant to (i) the Company’s business
operation; (ii) directors’ duties and responsibilities; and (iii) the
Listing Rules.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

Each of the Executive Directors has renewed his/her service
agreement with the Company on 20 November 2017 for a term
of three years commencing from 28 November 2017. Each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has renewed his/her letter
of appointment on 20 November 2017 for a term of three years
commencing from 28 November 2017.
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The procedures and process of appointment, re-election
and removal of the Directors are governed by the Articles of
Association. The Articles of Association provides that any director
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office
only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting. Any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing
Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general
meeting of the Company (“AGM”) and shall then be eligible for re-

election.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, at each AGM, one-
third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their number is not
3 or a multiple of 3, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third) shall retire from office by rotation at least once every
3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Any
Director who has not been subject to retirement by rotation in
the three years preceding an AGM shall retire by rotation at such
meeting. Any further Directors so to retire shall be those who have
been longest in office since their last re-election or appointment
and so that as between persons who became or were last re-
elected Directors on the same day those to retire shall (unless they
otherwise agree among themselves) be determined by lot.

Accordingly, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, Ms. Lee Po Fun and Mr. Chan
Kim Fai shall retire at the 2020 AGM. All of the retiring Directors,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the same
meeting.

BOARD MEETING

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through
electronic means of communications.

Pursuant to code provision A.1.1 of the CG Code, the Board
should meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least
four times a year.
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If a Director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered
by the Board which the Board has determined to be material, the
Director shall abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions and
he/she shall not be counted as a quorum in the Board meeting
discussing the matter concerned.

ATTENDANCE RECORD OF MEETINGS

Set out below are details of the attendance record of each Director
at the Board meetings, committee meetings and general meeting
of the Company held during the Year:

L/ RIEENE
Attendance/Number of Meetings Held
e RRE EE }E% Ei
BREFAE 2983 ZEgg= ZEgg: ZEBGE Z8e93
Risk
Annual Audit  Management Nomination ~ Remuneration
General Board Committee Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting Meeting
HITEEF Executive Directors
RXEREE Mr. Yuen Man Ying 1/1 6/6 - - 1/1 1/1
BE2%E Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen 11 6/6 - - - -
RAkSIRE Mr. Leung Shing Chiu 11 6/6 - 2/2 - -
EAUT Ms. Lee Po Fun 1/1 6/6 - - 1/1 1/1
BUHNTEE Independent Non-executive Directors
BR {18 5% 4 Mr. Chan Kim Fai il 6/6 3/3 2/2 11 il
Loipow et Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric il 5/6 2/3 1/2 il 171
BEEARL Ms. Wong Lai Ming 11 6/6 3/3 2/2 11 11
BREBEFEXE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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The AGM of the Company is an important forum in which the
management of the Company can engage with the Shareholders.
The most recent AGM of the Company was held on 31 May 2019
(“2019 AGM”).

At the 2019 AGM, all Directors in office on the meeting date,
including the Chairman of the Board and all the chairmen and
members of the Board Committees, attended the meeting along
with senior management and the external auditor. At the 2019
AGM, separate resolutions were proposed for each issue and
were voted on by poll. The procedures for conducting a poll were
explained at the meeting prior to the polls being taken.

The voting results are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established the Audit Committee, the Risk
Management Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. All the Board Committees perform
their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference which are available to Shareholders on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange. The Board Committees
are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their duties
and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 13 November 2014
with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Audit Committee
comprises a total of three members, all being Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang
Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.

The primary responsibilities of the Audit Committee include,
among others, (i) reviewing financial information of the Group; (ii)
monitoring of the relationship between the Group and its external
auditor; (iii) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management and internal control systems; and (iv) developing
and reviewing the policies and practices on corporate governance
with legal and regulatory requirements and requirements under the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee held three meetings during the Year. During
the Year, the Audit Committee (i) reviewed the Group’s audited
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018 and
the unaudited financial statements for the six months ended
30 June 2019 respectively; (i) reviewed the CCTs; (iii) reviewed
the external auditor's reports to the Audit Committee on their
statutory audit of financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 and their independent review of the interim
financial statements for the six months ended 30 June 2019;
(iv) reviewed the audit plan of the external auditor for the year
ended 31 December 2019;
reporting system and internal control system; and (vi) made

(v) reviewed the Group’s financial

recommendations to the Board on the re-appointment of external
auditor and approval of the engagement letter of the external
auditor.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Audit Committee has been appointed by the Board to perform
the corporate governance function. The responsibilities of the
Audit Committee on corporate governance function are set out in
the terms of reference of the Audit Committee. During the Year, the
Audit Committee reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
policies and practices, training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and the senior management and
the Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE

The Risk Management Committee was established on
13 November 2014 with specific written terms of reference. The
Risk Management Committee comprises a total of four members,
being one Executive Director, namely Mr. Leung Shing Chiu, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai (Chairman), Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee
include reviewing the Company’s enterprise risk management
framework, and the guidelines, policies and procedures for risk
assessment and risk management and reviewing the effectiveness
of the risk management function.

The Risk Management Committee held two meetings during the
Year. During the Year, the Risk Management Committee reviewed
the internal control of the Group, the Group’s high-level related
risks and key emerging risks and the controls in place to mitigate
such risks and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance with
the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Nomination Committee
comprises a total of five members, being two Executive Directors,
namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying (Chairman) and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan
Kim Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of the Board, making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy and assessing the
independence of the Independent Non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Nomination Committee reviewed the structure,
size and composition (including the skills, knowledge, experience
and diversity) of the Board, assessed the independence of the
Independent Non-executive Directors and recommended to the
Board on the re-election of all retiring Directors at the 2019 AGM.

As the nomination policy of the Company, the Nomination
Committee will (a) review the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge, experience and diversity) of
the Board at least annually based on objective criteria with
due regard to the benefits of diversity as set out in the Board'’s
diversity policy and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s corporate
strategy; (b) identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and select or make recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for directorships; and (c)
make recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in
particular the chairman and the managing director (if applicable).
Please refer to the sub-section headed “Board Diversity Policy” of
this report for details of the Board’s policy on board diversity.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 13 November
2014 with specific written terms of reference in accordance
with the provisions set out in the CG Code. The Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members, being two Executive
Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Man Ying and Ms. Lee Po Fun, and
three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Kim
Fai, Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (Chairman) and Ms. Wong Lai Ming.
Accordingly, a majority of the members are Independent Non-
executive Directors.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee
include, among others, (i) making recommendations to the Board
on the Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
the Directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a set of formal and transparent procedures for developing
such remuneration policy; (ii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to
the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; and (iii) making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
all the Directors and senior management.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting during the Year.
During the Year, the Remuneration Committee reviewed the
remuneration policy of the Group, reviewed the remuneration
package of the individual Executive Directors and senior
management as well as reviewed the remuneration of Independent
Non-executive Directors for submission to the Board for approval.

REMUNERATION OF THE MEMBERS OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT BY BAND

Pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, details of the
annual remuneration of the senior management of the Company
then in office by band for the Year are as follows:

AE

Number of

M A4R Bl Remuneration band individuals
= 21,000,000/ 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1
1,000,001 JT 22,000,000/ T HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 1
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has established a board diversity policy. The Company
recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board
to enhance the quality of its performance. Diversity of Board
members can be achieved through consideration of a number
of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
All the Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against appropriate criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun has
provided annual confirmations in respect of the compliance with
non-competition undertakings (the “Undertakings”) given by them
in favour of the Company pursuant to a deed of non-competition
undertakings dated 13 November 2014. The Independent Non-
executive Directors have also reviewed the compliance by each
of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po Fun with the
Undertakings during the Year. The Independent Non-executive
Directors have confirmed that, as far as they can ascertain, there
is no breach by any of Evergloss, Likang, Kwok Lai, Mr. Yuen Man
Ying, Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee
Po Fun of the Undertakings given by them.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the Year, the remunerations paid or payable to the external
auditor in respect of its audit services and non-audit services
provided to the Group were approximately HK$2.3 million and
approximately HK$0.5 million, respectively.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY
IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company and of the Group for the
Year. The Directors were aware of the material uncertainty related
to going concern of the Company. As disclosed in note 2(b)
to the consolidated financial statements, which discloses that
the Group’s operations, financial performance, cash flows and
financial position for the year 2020 shall be adversely affected by
the severe measures taken by the governments and authorities
in many cities and countries in the globe after the reporting date
of 31 December 2019 in response to the pandemic of the novel
coronavirus (“COVID-19”). The negative financial impacts caused
by these severe measures to the Group indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

Nevertheless, the consolidated financial statements were prepared
based on the assumption that the Group can be operated as a
going concern and the Directors are of the view that the Group
will have sufficient working capital to finance its operations in the
next twelve months from 31 December 2019, after taking into
consideration of the following:

()  the management of the Group has been endeavouring
to improve the Group’s operating cash flows through
implementing various cost control measures;

(i) on 25 March 2020, the Group entered into a loan agreement
with a related company, Great Port of HK$80 million which is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable 12 months after the
date of signing the loan agreement;

(i) the Group has unutilised banking facilities of approximately
HK$77 million as at 25 March 2020; and

(iv) the management of the Group will endeavour to seek
additional sources of financing.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 81 to 88 of this
annual report.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEMS

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The Board recognises that the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems play a key role in the identification,
evaluation and management of risks faced by the Group, the
assurance of continued compliance with laws and regulations
by the Group, and the provision of reasonable assurance on
the Group against material misstatement, error, loss or fraud.
The Board appreciates that the Group is exposed to risks in
achieving its business objectives and strives to maintain such
risks at acceptable level through the design, implementation
and monitoring of effective risk management and internal control
systems.

The risk management and internal control systems are established
within the Company and its subsidiaries for facilitating effective
and efficient operations, for safeguarding assets against
unauthorised use, for maintaining proper accounting records, for
ensuring the reliability of financial reporting and information, and
for ensuring compliance with applicable laws and regulations.
These systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular
needs and to minimise the risks to which the Group is exposed,
and are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risks
to achieve business objectives and by their nature, can only
provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against material
misstatements or losses.
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The key elements of the Company’s risk management and internal
control systems include the establishment of a risk register to
keep track, record and report identified risks, the assessment and
evaluation of risks, the development and continuous updating of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk management approach is also adopted by the
Company for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that
affect the achievements of its objectives. A risk matrix is adopted
to determine risk rating (L = low risk, M = medium risk, H = high
risk) after evaluation of the risk by the likelihood and the impact of
the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the level of managements,
attention and risk treatment effort required.

During the process of risk assessment, each risk owner is
required to capture and identify the key inherent risks that affect
the achievement of its objectives. Each inherent risk is evaluated
according to the risk matrix. After taking into consideration the
risk response, such as control measures in place to mitigate the
risk, the residual risk of each inherent risk is evaluated again. The
risk register with the risk responses and residual risks is reported
to the Risk Management Committee. The Risk Management
Committee evaluates the effectiveness of the systems and reports
to the Board. The highest category of residual risks is subject to
the Board’s oversight.

During the Year, the Board, through the Risk Management
Committee, reviewed the continued effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems covering all
material aspect of controls, including financial, operational and
compliance controls. The review covered the foreign exchange risk
management and the Group’s surplus cash management.
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During the Year, the Company also engaged an independent
professional consultant to conduct an annual review on the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The review covered the following items within the Group:

- tour operations

cash and treasury management
- fixed assets management
- information technology general controls

Relevant applicable recommendations made by the consultant
during the Year have already been implemented in stages by the
Group to further enhance its internal control policies, procedures
and practices.

As a result of the above review, the Board is satisfied that the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
adequate and effective and have complied with the CG Code
provisions on internal control throughout the Year and the
Company has an internal audit function.

PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the
handling and dissemination of inside information, the Group
conducts its affairs with close attention to the inside information
provisions under the SFO and the Listing Rules. The Directors and
senior management are responsible for determining whether any
particular information is inside information and overseeing and
coordinating disclosure of inside information of the Group. They
are also responsible for taking reasonable measures to ensure
that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group from time to time and that
disclosures are made and/or announcements are published
on a timely basis in accordance with the applicable laws and
regulations, and before such information is fully disclosed to the
public, they shall ensure the same is kept strictly confidential. The
Directors are also committed to ensure that information contained
in announcements are not false or misleading as to a material fact,
or false or misleading through the omission of a material fact in
view of presenting information in a clear and balanced way.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends
after taking into account, among other things, the results of
operations, cash flows and financial condition, operating and
capital requirements, the amount of distributable profits, reserves
available for distribution based on HKFRSs, the Articles of
Association, applicable laws and regulations (including the laws
of Cayman Islands) and other factors which the Directors deem
relevant.

The Company, subject to the factors and considerations above,
pay annual dividends of not less than 50% of the Group’s
consolidated profit attributable to the Shareholders. Any dividends
declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the Shares
on a per Share basis, and the Company will pay such dividends
in Hong Kong dollars. Other distributions, if any, will be paid to
the Shareholders by any means which the Directors consider
legal, fair and practicable. Any distributable profits that are not
distributed in any given year may be retained and be made
available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent profits
are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available for reinvestment in the Group’s operations.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The role of the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) is performed by Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy. The
Company Secretary is an employee of the Company and is
appointed by the Board. The Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating the Board’s processes and communications among
Board members, with Shareholders and with management.
The Company Secretary received at least 15 hours of relevant
professional training to update her skills and knowledge during the
Year.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communications between the Shareholders and the Board.
An AGM shall be held in each year and at the place as may be
determined by the Board.
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SHAREHOLDERS TO CONVENE AN
EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association, an EGM
shall be convened on the requisition of one or more Shareholders
holding, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company having the right
of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall be made
in writing to the Board or the Company Secretary at the head
office of the Company in Hong Kong, which is presently situated
at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon,
Hong Kong, for the purpose of requiring an EGM to be called by
the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
[f within 21 days
of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such

requisition and signed by the requisitionist(s).

meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in
the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PUTTING ENQUIRIES BY SHAREHOLDERS TO
THE BOARD

Shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company for the
attention of the Company Secretary at the Company’s head office
in Hong Kong.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS BY SHAREHOLDERS AT
SHAREHOLDERS’ MEETING

Shareholders are requested to follow Article 64 of the Articles
of Association for putting forward a resolution at an EGM. The
requirements and procedures are set out above in the paragraph
headed “Shareholders to Convene an Extraordinary General
Meeting”.
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SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

No amendment has been made to the Company’s constitutional
documents during the Year.

On behalf of the Board

Yuen Man Ying
Chairman and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yuen Man Ying (“Mr. Yuen”), aged 68, is the founder of the
Group and has been the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Yuen initiated the creation
of the Group in 1987. He is also the chairman of the Nomination
Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board. Mr. Yuen serves as the managing director of EGL
Tours and as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management Group
Company Limited (“EGL Management”), i-Evertravel Company
Limited (“i-Evertravel”), EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited (“EGL
Macau”), EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited (“EGL Japan”),
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited (“EGL Nippon”), EGL Holdings
(Asia) Limited (“EGL Asia”), EGL Investment Group Company
Limited (“EGL Investment”), EGL Trading Company Limited
(formerly known as EGL Investment (China) Company Limited)
(“EGL Trading”) and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also
a director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company. He is responsible for important decision making of the
Group, overseeing both tours and hotel operation development,
promoting the Japanese market, planning for tour itinerary in
Japan, supervising and training tour escorts, and strategic
planning air charter of the Group. Mr. Yuen has over 35 years
of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism industry.
Mr. Yuen is the spouse of Ms. Lee Po Fun who is an Executive
Director.

Mr. Huen Kwok Chuen (“Mr. Huen”), aged 62, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. Mr. Huen
joined the Group in 1987. Mr. Huen also serves as a director of
EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau, EGL
Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Trading
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
Mr. Huen is the spokesman of the Group. He is responsible for
overseeing development of the Group, public relations, specialised
gourmet tourism, hotel operation and the subsidiaries of the
Company incorporated in Macau and Shenzhen respectively.
Mr. Huen has over 35 years of extensive knowledge and
experience in the tourism industry.
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Mr. Leung Shing Chiu (“Mr. Leung”), aged 65, has been an
Executive Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. He is
a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Board.
Mr. Leung joined the Group in 1988. Mr. Leung serves as a
director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL Macau,
EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment, EGL Trading
and other subsidiaries of the Company. He is also a director of
Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He
is responsible for managing the receiving services for outbound
tourism in Japan, frontline sales, customer services, accounting
and administration matters of the Group. Mr. Leung has over
35 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry.

Ms. Lee Po Fun (“Mrs. Yuen”), aged 61, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since 24 July 2014. She is a member of
both the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee
of the Board. Mrs. Yuen joined the Group in 1987. She also serves
as a director of EGL Tours, EGL Management, i-Evertravel, EGL
Macau, EGL Japan, EGL Nippon, EGL Asia, EGL Investment,
EGL Trading and other subsidiaries of the Company. She is also
a director of Evergloss which is a substantial shareholder of
the Company. She is responsible for overseeing the information
technology department, human resources development and
the overall tour operations of the Group. Mrs. Yuen has over
35 years of extensive knowledge and experience in the tourism
industry. Mrs. Yuen is the spouse of Mr. Yuen Man Ying who is the
Chairman and an Executive Director of the Company.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Kim Fai (“Mr. Chan”), aged 61, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 13
November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Risk Management Committee of the Board and a member
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management
of the Group independently. Mr. Chan is currently an independent
non-executive director of Magnificent Hotel Investments Limited
(stock code: 201), Shun Ho Property Investments Limited (stock
code: 219) and Shun Ho Holdings Limited (stock code: 253) (all
these three companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange). Mr. Chan has also served as the sole proprietor of lvan
Chan & Co, CPA since 2001. Mr. Chan is a member of the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and CPA Australia.

Mr. Tang Koon Hung Eric (“Mr. Tang”), aged 74, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 13
November 2014. He is also the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee of the Board and a member of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee and Risk Management Committee of
the Board. He is responsible for overseeing the management of
the Group independently. He is currently an independent non-
executive director of ASM Pacific Technology Limited (stock code:
522), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tang was qualified as a Chartered Accountant in Canada
and is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

Ms. Wong Lai Ming (“Ms. Wong”), aged 60, has been an
Independent Non-executive Director of the Company since 13
November 2014. She is also a member of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and Risk
Management Committee of the Board. She is responsible
for overseeing the management of the Group independently.
Ms. Wong has over 23 years of experience in the legal industry.
Ms. Wong is a non-practicing solicitor in Hong Kong.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Cheang Chuen Hon (“Mr. Cheang”), aged 55, has been
the financial controller of the Group since 1 April 2004. He is
responsible for supervision and management of the Group’s
financial issues. He joined the Group in June 2001 as a finance
manager before being promoted as the financial controller of EGL
Tours in April 2004. Mr. Cheang has over 30 years of extensive
accounting and financial experience, in which 10 years in another
public listed company (whose shares are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange), with latest position as accounting
manager. Mr. Cheang graduated from the University of Hong Kong
with a bachelor degree in social sciences in November 1988 and
later obtained a master degree of science in accountancy from the
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in November 2001. Mr. Cheang
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Finance and Treasury
Professional Senior of the Finance and Treasury Association
Limited.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Wong Cheuk Yee Kathy (“Ms. Wong”), aged 58, has been
the company secretary of the Company since 28 August 2014.
She is responsible for the company secretarial matters of the
Group. Ms. Wong has been the company secretary of EGL Tours
since September 2006, being responsible for its general company
secretarial affairs. Ms. Wong has over 35 years of experience
in the accounting, audit and tax industry. Ms. Wong holds a
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan College
and a bachelor of law degree from Peking University. Ms. Wong
is a Certified Public Accountant (Practising) in Hong Kong and a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY
LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of EGL
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 89 to 221, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING
CONCERN

We draw attention to note 2(b) to the consolidated financial
statements, which discloses that the Group’s operations, financial
performance, cash flows and financial position for the year 2020
shall be adversely affected by the severe measures taken by the
governments and authorities in many cities and countries in the
globe after the reporting date of 31 December 2019 in response to
the pandemic of the coronavirus COVID-19. The negative financial
impacts caused by these severe measures to the Group indicate
that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters. In addition to the matter described in the
“Material Uncertainty Related to Going Concern” section, we
have determined the matters described below to be the key audit

matters to be communicated in our report.

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities

(refer to notes 4(j), 7 and 25 to the consolidated financial
Statements)

The Group’s travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”) includes the following revenue streams with
different revenue recognition basis.

The Group’s revenue from provision of package tours
is recognised over time in which the control of services
are transferred to the customers because the customers
simultaneously receive and consume benefits provided by the
Group’s performance as it performs.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
(Continued)

Revenue from provision of free independent travellers (“FIT”)
products such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of ancillary travel
related products and services, such as sales of admission and
transportation tickets, visa application and travel insurance
arrangements, etc, is recognised at a point in time when the
booking or arrangement services are performed or tickets are
delivered to and have been accepted by the customers.

The Group acts as a principal and recognises revenue on a gross
basis in the provision of package tours and sales of ancillary travel
related products such as admission and transportation tickets
because the nature of the Group’s performance obligation is to
provide the specified goods and services itself.

The Group acts as an agent and recognises revenue on a net
basis in the sales of FIT products and provision of ancillary travel
related services such as car rental, visa application and travel
insurance arrangements because the nature of the Group’s
performance obligation is to arrange for those specified goods and
services to be provided by another parties.

During the year, the Group recorded revenue derived from the
Travel Related Business of approximately HK$1,656,553,000. As
at 31 December 2019, the Group had customer deposits received
(including unexpired discount vouchers) from Travel Related
Business of approximately HK$184,368,000 which are recognised
as contract liabilities.

We have identified revenue recognition for the Travel Related
Business as a key audit matter because revenue is one of the
key performance indicators of the Group and because it involves
highly customised information technology systems to record the
transactions and certain manual procedures to determine the
appropriate recognition point, all of which give rise to an inherent
risk that revenue could be recorded in the incorrect period or could
be subject to manipulation.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continuea)

Revenue recognition and associated contract liabilities
(Continued)

In addition, inappropriate recognition of revenue could result in
misstatement of the contract liabilities received as recorded at the
reporting date.

Our Response

Our procedures in relation to this key audit matter included:

o Performing review of overall information technology general
controls and application controls;

o Performing test of controls and substantive testing on
revenue cycle;

o Conducting analytical procedures on revenue;

o Scrutinising manual journals related to revenue to assess the
timing of revenues recorded; and

o Testing on sampling basis on the customer deposits
received as at the reporting date by tracing the receipts to
the supporting documents and reviewing the recognition of
revenue in the subsequent reporting period in accordance
with the respective recognition policies of the respective
services provided or products sold.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL REPORT
(Continued)

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibilities in this regard.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of
our engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken
on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control;

° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors;



Bz B S
Independent Auditor’s Report

REMMERGEMBRRAREZER
(%)

s MEEERAUSBELERERNEGIIEETRE
EOURBECEDRNELZERE BEETAEK
THEEMENEFHBERL Y SEEFELLEN
ENBRERRE HEAMEERSFEERT
BEE BRAARZBERET IR IERERM
BREANEBERRE HABRESE B
ETRMOER - LAINERDER B EZBED
ﬁiﬂﬂtﬁﬁQM%%ﬁﬁ ﬁ*X?#%%
MAEEY EEETHBEARERLER

o  HAERAMBEmEK (BREMKE) WEBEIIHRS
ft‘ﬁ*%&l*lﬁ’%&%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ%#&%%a nF
SIMBEARSRER: &

e 3 BERBERNSERIAXBEINUBENES
FAENBEENERERE URGAEVBHRRER
BER-BMAAAREE EERHT EXEH
BRI -BAAREMNERERARZZHER
£

BMEERZESR (EPRFE)ERTENE®H
B BRZERBEAEFZER (BRRMANEXBRES
a8 7l BB ES ) (E T BB K IRPE ) ETT R R

BMITMEZZESELER BHEMEETERE
VHERBEER URBHEERAEFERMH
BUMHBEERREMSEE RE@ENSEERE (EA) =
EREZEQETER

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

o conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern;

o evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

o obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Tsui Ka Che, Norman

Practising Certificate Number P05057

Hong Kong, 25 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

HZE2019F12A31H LL & & For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
FB T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
i & Revenue 1,728,328 1,776,614
8HE AR A Cost of sales (1,415,835) (1,461,325)
E R Gross profit 312,493 315,289
E A Ug A R U 25 558 Other income and gain, net 4,479 9,590
HERX Selling expenses (83,683) (86,413)
TBFA X Administrative expenses (216,697) (204,690)
JE(L B S N R EE Share of results of associates 2,198 3,081
A& B AR Finance costs (7,042) (3,913)
B P 18 Bi A& F Profit before income tax 11,748 32,944
FTEfHE % Income tax credit 2,877 2,120
FEEF Profit for the year 14,625 35,064
HEnEHIEEZEEN Other comprehensive income, that
Hih 2w : may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
MEBINETFH Exchange differences on translation of
& X ER foreign operations 957 2,974
FEAE R E G N & R R Share of exchange differences on
b H =58 translation of foreign associates (437) (325)
RemEH P TE. Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
HBR 18 1,180 (2,055)
FEHAM 2 Other comprehensive income for the year,
R T8 net of tax 1,700 594
FEZHKRRLE Total comprehensive income for the year,
MERFIE net of tax 16,325 35,658
EBihFEERR: Profit for the year attributable to:
ViN/NSIEZ PN Owners of the Company 14,001 34,817
FEFE AR A 2 Non-controlling interests 624 247
14,625 35,064
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

H E2019F12A31H IE 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
g2 FTET FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000

B EHER =A% Total comprehensive income

attributable to:
iN/NETE Z =N Owners of the Company 15,660 35,523
FEFE AR 2 Non-controlling interests 665 135
16,325 35,658
RARER AEEER 2 Earnings per share for profit attributable

SRER to owners of the Company

—EARREE (BI) - Basic and diluted (HK cents) 10 2.79 6.93

090 =@misERBERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
R2019%12 A31H As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
izt FE&x FETT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
ERBEE Non-current assets
e Property, plant and equipment 14 456,324 440,994
FREEE Right-of-use assets 15 67,081 =
FRIR Construction in progress 16 129,864 32,782
TAB & N B BE 2 Interests in associates 17 12,371 10,611
RIEFRIEE E Deferred tax assets 18 14,561 8,301
Hk Deposits 21 814 2,669
681,015 495,357
RBEE Current assets
FE Inventories 19 1,855 4,273
Z 5 MR Trade receivables 20 7,144 10,079
Al TENFREMEWKE  Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 21 181,028 162,115
JiE W BgE 2 1 | BR 3K Amount due from an associate 17(c) 6,163 2,348
a] 4[] % 18 Tax recoverable 1,854 1,994
EHRRITER Pledged bank deposits 22 6,702 6,307
RITEFREERFERS Cash at banks and on hand 22 206,119 230,003
410,865 417,119
nBEE Current liabilities
2 5 TR Trade payables 23 47,295 58,749
FEET ZRIE K E {th JE AR Accruals and other payables 24 57,394 64,140
EXOR=Nr Contract liabilities 25 185,080 150,215
JE TS A A BR 3K Amounts due to associates 17(c) 3,732 3,900
HEaE Lease liabilities 156 47,257 =
T IE B Provision for taxation 1,306 3,175
|ITERK Bank borrowings 26 37,620 34,836
379,684 315,015
RBEEFE Net current assets 31,181 102,104
HEEBABERE Total assets less current liabilities 712,196 597,461

20194 %% Annual Report 2019 091



> B 7% 3R 3% FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B R R
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

)

2019512 A31H As at 31 December 2019

2019 2018
ok FE T TFHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FRBEE Non-current liabilities
BE Provision 27 782 779
HRIT 83X Bank borrowings 26 335,255 234,802
HEAE Lease liabilities 15 20,569 =
EEMIBBEE Deferred tax liabilities 18 1,265 1,674
mEsmI A Derivative financial instruments 28 1,304 2,055
359,175 239,310
EEFE Net assets 353,021 358,151
g EQUITY
RATREB A Capital and reserves attributable to
ELEARRFE owners of the Company
fig 7% Share capital 29 50,245 50,245
] Reserves 30 300,332 304,770
350,577 355,015
I 1= IR FE 25 Non-controlling interests 35 2,444 3,136
e AR Total equity 353,021 358,151
REESZS On behalf of the Board of Directors
RYHE Py Sl
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HITES

092 =misERERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

Executive Director

Executive Director
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Consolldated Statement of Changes in Equity

HZE2019F12 A31H IE FZ For the year ended 31 December 2019

KRRERAEL
Attributable to owners of the Company
BA  ROBE AOREE AERE NERE BRRE RERAN @i FERER ERAE
Foreign Non-
Share Share Merger ~ Statutory exchange  Hedging  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve®  earnings* Total interests equity
Tix T TiEx Tin THx T TiEx TiEx THT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
®2019F1A1H At 1 January 2019 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 1,045 3,012 (2,055) 215,647 355,015 3,136 358,151
FEEF Profit for the year - - - - - - 14,001 14,001 624 14,625
At2EHz Other comprehensive income
BEBINEHR Exchange differences on translation
BRER of foreign operations - - - - 916 - - 916 4 957
JE(HAEEINEESATIR)  Share of exchange differences on
BRER translation of foreign associates - - - - (437) - - (437) - (437)
RemEBUNLFE Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
MBHE - - - - - 1,180 - 1,180 - 1,180
FEENRERE Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 479 1,180 14,001 15,660 665 16,325
e Appropriation - - - 112 - - (112) - - -
ENFERRERRS Dividend paid to
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - (1,357) (1,357)
BRRERE (Hi11)  Final dividends paid fnote 17) - - - - - - (20,098  (20,098) - (20,098
2019%12531A At 31 December 2019 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 1,157 3,491 (875) 209,438 350,577 2,444 353,021
#2018F1A1H At 1 January 2018 50,245 145,335 (68,214) 975 251 - 190,949 329,541 2,807 332,348
FEEH Profit for the year - - - - - - 34,817 34,817 247 35,064
By kil g Other comprehensive income
BRERNER Exchange differences on translation
EXER of foreign operations - - - - 3,086 - - 3,086 (112) 2,974
E(RREEINBE DA Share of exchange difference on
EiZE translation of foreign associates - - - - (325) - - (325) - (325)
ReMELMLFE Effect on cash flow hedge, net of tax
MEHE - - - - - (2,055) - (2,055) - (2,055)
FEEEAMRLR Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - 2,761 (2,085) 34817 35,523 135 35,658
vl Appropriation - - - 70 - - (70) - - -
FERERTE Capital injection from
non-controlling interests - - - - - - - - 194 194
BRRE (Hrit11) Dividends paid (nofe 11) - - - - - - (10049  (10,049) - (10,049
1R2018F12831 R At 31 December 2018 50,245 145,335 (58,214) 1,045 3,012 (2,055) 215,647 355,015 3,136 358,15
* ZERERBASRAUBRART R [FHEE] The total of these accounts represents “Reserves” in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows
H E2019F12 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
bt FTHExT FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
EETHEECHERE Cash flows from operating activities
B AT 1S 152 BiD& A1 Profit before income tax 11,748 32,944
KRR Adjustments for:
Y B MEETE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 8 47,245 41,370
FREEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 8 77,285
A& AR Finance costs 8 7,042 3,913
B WA Interest income 7 (222) (358)
HEME BB KR HE Loss on disposal of property,

B 1R )55 plant and equipment, net 8 57 =
IEHEE W Gain on termination of lease 8 (4) -
Hib Uk 2 Bad debts written off in respect of

B i 85 8 AR other receivables 8 74 =
FE(G B & AR A Share of results of associates (2,198) (3,081)
EEESEHRI 2 Operating cash flows before

LEBHEMNE working capital changes 141,027 74,788
FER D Decrease in inventories 2,419 5,642
Z o RIRER D (3E) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 2,976 (5,638)
FICAREANE 9 Increase in deposits, prepayments and

F b pE AR IE N other receivables (26,171) (30,797)
JE LS B & 8 &) BR R N Increase in amount due from an associate (3,815) (1,786)
B SR (ﬁQ\)/i n (Decrease)/increase in trade payables (11,478) 5,619
FEET FRIA K E A FE AR (Decrease)/increase in accruals and

Cm4) /18 m other payables (6,847) 3,645
BHBEEN Increase in contract liabilities 34,842 15,078
FEASTBSE 22 A B BR 3K (Decrease)/increase in amounts due to

(R A) /380 associates (169) 422
eEEAZRE Cash generated from operations 132,784 66,973
BN FEH Income tax paid (5,083) (11,925)
EE T ELE T FEE Net cash generated from operating activities 127,701 55,048

094 =H=@miERERAT  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
Bt it FH& T FHT
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
RETHEEZRERE Cash flows from investing activities
BEYE WEKEE Purchase of property, plant and equipment (5,732) (80,064)
RAERIER Payment for construction in progress (149,709) (28,126)
BHRIRITFR (12 DD ),/ 4 (Increase)/decrease in pledged bank deposits (388) 23,248
B U 2 N B AR Dividend received from an associate = 1,387
B WF S Interest received 241 392
KEZE T BT FeE Net cash used in investing activities (155,588) (83,163)
AMEFTHEEZ2RER % Cash flows from financing activities
BEAAR TT?E*ﬁ)\ Dividends paid to owners of the Company 11 (20,098) (10,049)
B IR AR A R AR Dividends paid to non-controlling interest (1,357) =
IRITIE R PTS5KIR Proceeds from bank borrowings 40 142,942 239,377
BERITEN Repayment of bank borrowings 40 (89,119) (228,525)
ENHEEAR Payment of lease liabilities 40 (74,497) =
EAFE Interest paid 40 (3,466) (3,308)
IR EREE Capital injection from non-controlling interest = 194
#@ETEEL " (FTH)Z Net cash generated from/(used in)

B2 FEE financing activities 4,405 (2,311)
BeRBEEEEYHAFEE  Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (283,482) (30,426)
SMEERFETE Effect of foreign exchange rate changes (402) (2,941)
FURERBEEEEY Cash and cash equivalents at

beginning of the year 230,003 263,370
FRESRBEESEEY Cash and cash equivalents at
end of the year 22 206,119 230,003

20194 %% Annual Report 2019 095



> B 7% 3R 3% FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

>

4= A

A Ay | /\ﬁ ﬂz% $&i§ ’31\‘} E\I
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2019F12 31 H IEFE For the year ended 31 December 2019

1.

—BER

RRmEZERERAT ([ARQE])R20145F7 24
HERSHESIMA Y ARREBREEAA -
AR B YR 4 R R b 1k R PO Box 1350, Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman lIslands - £ £ ZZ £ BN B NLEE
BB 5 B 18835k R Iz B 51548 -

RATHRDA2014F 11 A28ANBBHMERL 5
FTERAR ([BZAT])ER T

ARANEBXRBR/REZER  HWBRARNE
ZEBENGEE M EHRRMEES4 -

ARFNEREREEERAFRRREESEES
RO —HKNRBEZHEESEMRILAAF -

HZ2019F12A31B L FEMEETBHRER
2020F3 A5 HEE E e RE I A -

096 =H=@misERERAT EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

1.

GENERAL

EGL Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 24 July 2014 as
an exempted company with limited liability. The address
of its registered office is PO Box 1350, Clifton House, 75
Fort Street, Grand Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman lIslands. Its
principal place of business is located at 15/F, EGL Tower, 83
Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 November 2014.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding
and the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in
note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding company
is Evergloss Management Group Company Limited,
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 were approved by the board of directors on
25 March 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

2.

B E & 2.

@

)

A HRES
REMBRRIRBAEERNTEMER
SR (AR EEREE SIS HME
FrEERNERELMBEHREER (1FE
MBmEER]) BAEGTENRRE) R
HAAZBHBRENMEEETE (RAHERDD
FMMRFES EMRANERRERER-

@)

BB EE RIS AT SRR (b)
A MBRER RELKAAESR . BITE
SRIETET XA R BEURALE
EE-

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective terms include all applicable individual
HKFRSs, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (‘HKASs”)
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA. The
consolidated financial statements also include the
applicable disclosure requirements of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under historical cost basis, except for a
derivative financial instrument, which is measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

2019% % Annual Report 2019 097



>

)

B #% ¥R & FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H E2019F12A31H IE 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. WmEEE (B

b) FEEERFELERE (B

B20205F 4 5| A E B RS
BE R AEE (T EAS])BERK
RE & ACOVID-19 ° 2202091 A30H -
AT 4 4% = 47 15 COVID- 198 (R 25 51) /5 B %
BENALFERSEH - M2020F3A 11
B - &4 45 A COVID-19%1 B & Bk AR
T2 RZEHEMAMBERNBT XA
P 2EEA R -PEAM - AR
3% E B R BUMNBIR & 18 5ICOVID-19%& 1§
EXCAEZHRERE WEEREHEIR
PRSI MR EROXEREERER
Bl REHISSEHASEIRITAEEER &R
BHE K - AEBE B BUE R SER AT %
EX BT RERORTHBE SRR
o LHZ ER B AR R2020F3 A ¥
HREBFE BEEARRMNETETR
BB ARG EHEBER BRI ERE
EANRELZH ASBEEIUEK HE =
HAE B AMIRITIHEBEE R RRE  BEH
20203 SOH B H £2020F6 817 H Lk ° B
MR SR AR BRIARS BRI 5E
ERIEENTZEXZEY T RBR MK
THBEMERB - WWAEREEERSEH
WEEREMEEREARBEEEER
BT BARZERAZECTE ZEWT
MEROBFRBEIPFIFTEENERER
MEPA20205F B AR R E 1) 258 ~ ISR 1R
enERMERAOEBTIATEEBEE
A HERZESE BB mEitgE B BN EE
BEEHET -
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

There has been an outbreak of pneumonia caused by
a new coronavirus which was subsequently named as
COVID-19 by the World Health Organization (“WHQO”)
since the beginning of the year 2020. On 30 January
2020, WHO declared the outbreak of COVID-19 to
constitute a public health emergency of international
concern. WHO has characterised COVID-19 as a
pandemic on 11 March 2020. The governments
and authorities in many cities and countries in the
globe including Hong Kong, Macau, the Mainland of
China, Japan, South Korea, US and the European
nations have implemented various severe measures in
controlling the spread of COVID-19 such as imposing
travel restrictions and quarantine arrangements to
travellers, home confinement of residents and border
controls that significantly reduce the demand for
travel related products and services of the Group. The
Group cancelled and/or postponed its travel related
products and services to those affected cities and
countries. In particular, the Group cancelled and/or
postponed its travel related products and services to
Japan from 9 March 2020 till tentatively 17 June 2020
as a result of Japan government’s implementation
of quarantine arrangements for visitors from China
including Hong Kong and Macau and suspension
of visa-free visit arrangements to holders of Hong
Kong passport and Macau passport in early March
2020. The Group may continue to postpone selling
travel related products and services to those affected
cities and countries if their control measures are not
lifted. The duration and intensity of this global health
emergency and related disruptions are uncertain. Given
the dynamic nature of these circumstances, the related
adverse impact caused by the severe measures taken
by the governments and authorities in many cities
and countries on the Group’s operations, financial
performance, cash flows and financial position for the
year 2020 will be material, but cannot be reasonably
estimated as at the date of approval of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. mEEEE)

) FTEEERFFELZ R (&)
ZEBBEREAKBEERNAEMBER

EBRTIFEESETEEEME AEEE
BIRHELCERAE 2N TESIRCER
SRS RER AR ERAEPEREE
EREEAE - AT HREeMBmKRIIER
SENAFKELE cREMBER  MEFLK
EZRITIEBEERRASEKEHBRS
LIBE SN BE2019F12A31 BB 5 AR 2K
TZERZEEMF:

) AEEEEEHNEEEEZEMAN
EHIEN AREAEENZERS

s B
1L

HEH

if) %2020@3%25Ev$%laﬁﬁﬁﬁa‘
REARBITAERAR ([ KEFT])FIL
—1980,000,000/% JT ) & 3k 1 3% * #%
BTy ERE - 6 B I AR B R #
AT HE#EFT 212 A AEE

iy  HR2020%3F25H NEBABA 2R

1TREE A #%)77,000,0008 T K

v) AEEE
R e

EESBNSREZESNR

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b)

Basis of measurement and going concern
assumption (Continued)

The negative financial impacts caused by the severe
measures to the Group indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and therefore, it may be unable to realise its assets
and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of
business. Nevertheless, the consolidated financial
statements were prepared based on the assumption
that the Group can be operated as a going concern
and the directors are of the view that the Group will
have sufficient working capital to finance its operations
in the next twelve months from 31 December 2019,

after taking into consideration of the following:

i) the management of the Group has been
endeavouring to improve the Group’s operating
cash flows through implementing various cost
control measures;

ii) on 25 March 2020, the Group entered into a loan
agreement with a related company, Great Port
Limited (“Great Port”) of HK$80 million which is
unsecured, interest-free and repayable 12 months
after the date of signing the loan agreement;

i) the Group has unutilised banking facilities of
approximately HK$77 million as at 25 March
2020; and

iv)  the management of the Group will endeavour to
seek additional sources of financing.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H E2019F12A31H IE 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

2. mMEEEE)

) FHERERFELLRR (&)

REER DABERY GBI RS EEGR
RENAEERSREFRD  ARAREER
A AEEREBERRSERAMEHB
REEESRHEMESTTE-

MAREEIEERFELEEELER
% RIZARGEVMBHRRELARUGEE
BEMBREEZRFE SEMAEEEZ
BINEBEELEE URSIERBEEKIE
MBBENREFIBRRRDEERRS
BE- - WEABRNTELRNGESMBHRE
PR BR

© DEERZIIRHE
REMBHRRALRFBNNEEEETZE
5] o
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2.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuea)

(b) Basis of measurement and going concern

©

assumption (Continued)

Having regard to the cash flow projection of the Group
which are prepared after taking into the aforementioned
financing arrangements, plans and operational
measures, the directors of the Company are of the
opinion that, the Group will have sufficient cash
resources to satisfy its future working capital and other
financing requirements.

Should the Group be unable to continue in business as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
in the consolidated financial statements to write down
the values of the assets to their net realisable amounts,
to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current
liabilities as current assets and current liabilities
respectively. The effect of such adjustments has not
been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. RMEBUHREEL 3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs

@) IRAFTE] A IS ] BB R 2Rl — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
2019151 H2ERX effective 1 January 2019
ARaREMBAR (TXHARE [ AER]) In the current year, the Company and its subsidiaries
RAFEBRNRNATE B S AEHE (hereinafter collectively referred to as the “Group”) have
MBS HNEE] BB M B ME LR %% applied for the first time the following new or amended
EHIEBRAEBRN2019F1 A1B 5 2 1% HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Ha 2 FEHE 2 BB HRK : Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) which are relevant

to and effective for the Group’s financial statements
for the annual period beginning on or after 1 January

2019:
ERGBREEN HE HKFRS 16 Leases
F165%
E5 (BBFHHRE FIEHEENTEEIE HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
“EZEY) Treatments
— 2B 235,
BB IR %R BHERIEIEY Amendments to Prepayment Features with
o5k (BT A ) HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation
BB SR E195 HEEET  HEEEE Amendments to Plan Amendment, Curtailment or
(fE5TA) HKAS 19 Settlement
BB FEMEEL  PREEATRALNELY Amendments to Long-term Interests in Associates
F285% (BFTA) R HEAREZS HKFRS 28 and Joint Ventures
EBHPIERERED BHESEQSEI2HK Annual Improvements to Amendments to HKAS 12 and
2015F 20174 B G ERIFE 2357 HKFRSs 2015-2017 HKAS 23
B ER 2 8 U (EETA) Cycle
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H E2019F12A31H IE 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

3.

RN EBMBREED 2

@) FRAFTEEAEIEE BB R & 2B R —

2019F 151 H4£3% (#)
BB & ERE 169 —HE

() FRAZEHHHREERE 162 &
FEMBHRELENEIGRAEENS
FHREELEAEN  T2EAEADN
BERETE - HEERKEFESHER
FTRIEE] (BB ERFE17
1) BB (BERMBRE2REERE
B)-REFI BEELHELERE
HE] (B2 (BRMBERERESR
BEe)-2BH4%])) BB (EH=
BZEg) 2EBEFIR [£EHE-
BEIRBE(RAREZES) -2
BE27 [ E P RBEERRETAR
ZZAR| - REBAAEME  8BX
MOBER A MR N KR ERRE
AREEEAHERE HHEMBEERE
EREAREEAENHENHES
DEBISME SR 5% R AN PR BR E 5 o 1
HEABEMNS SrTREAMER
BEEREITR R -AEEEM
BHRELEANFIHAEENHTER
BAKE ST RROTEUNRETERM
BHEEAE165E T AFFAEER
MEBIETENFIR B2 AN E

() ZE (V)15
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases

()

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16

HKFRS 16 brings significant changes in
accounting treatment for lease accounting,
primarily for accounting for lessees. It supersedes
HKAS 17 “Leases” (“HKAS 17”), HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease” (“HK(IFRIC)-Int 4"), HK(SIC)-Int 15
“Operating Leases-Incentives” and HK(SIC)-Int
27 “Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease”. From
a lessee’s perspective, almost all leases are
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, with the narrow exception to
this principle for leases of which the underlying
assets are of low-value or are determined as
short-term leases. From a lessor’s perspective,
the accounting treatment is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. For details of HKFRS
16 regarding its new definition of a lease, its
impact on the Group’s accounting policies and
the transition method adopted by the Group as
allowed under HKFRS 16, please refer to sections
(i) to (iv) of this note.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

3.

ENEBUFBREED 2)
@) FRAFTETBACNEG] & BB FE#R & 2E R —

2019F1 51 H £ (&)
iR R E 165 —THE (&)
() IRRB B IREERE 1650 5 &

(%)

KEEBR2019F1 A1 (¥1iBE R
HH)) RERALE BN EE BB BN
SR E165% - IRIBFZ A /% - IRA)
IR FEF A HA:B M PE AR 2E R 1R 52 2%
Al 25T 2R E BT B9 & R 1
HAZ (E) -FE27M2018F 2t
B ERBIE TS W EBERE
BB EAFITHRRBE BT B RS
R 165 BE IR TR R
$&o

Ho

TERBIBEEESM B REERSE
165F% ¥ &l 2201812 H31H £2019
FIATANGREVERAROTE:

3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continueq)

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach with the date of
initial application of 1 January 2019. Under this
method, the standard is applied retrospectively
with the cumulative effect of initial applying as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained
earnings, if any, at the date of initial application.
The comparative financial information presented
for 2018 has not been restated and continues
to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The following table summarised the impact of
transition to HKFRS 16 on the consolidated
statement of financial position as of 31 December
2018 to that of 1 January 2019 as follows:

RTIEE N, CRD)
Increase/(Decrease) in

FHE T
HK$’000

A2019F1 8181 Consolidated statement of financial position

e BB R &K as at 1 January 2019

FHRESE Right-of-use assets 105,187
HEBE (FERE) Lease liabilities (non-current) 36,594
HEAEORE) Lease liabilities (current) 64,125
U Prepayments (4,468)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
H E2019F12A31H IE 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. RPFEMBHREER 2 3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
@ FRANFTE] A NE ] BB IR 2Rl — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
2079¢ 1 ﬁ 1H &UJ? (&) effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)
Z) HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)
() FRABEEBHBHEERFE165 7Y () Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)
ZE(E)
AR $BR B s )R 2018F 12 A31 A FE A The following reconciliation explains how the
BEAeEAFITHREENESERES operating lease commitments disclosed applying
AHEEN20195F1 A1 B ELRE M IS HKAS 17 as at 31 December 2018 could be
%EEEEWE’JBA%MAFEFH HEzHESR reconciled to the lease liabilities at the date of
BEHERER: initial application recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 1 January
2019:
FHET
HK$’000
giEHEREHE Reconciliation of operating lease commitments to
HESEMNHER: lease liabilities:
HZE2018F12831HH Operating lease commitments
2B E A E as of 31 December 2018 105,428
B B R R B R X Less: future interest expenses (4,709)
HE2019F1 A1 K Total lease liabilities
HEBBERE (Hit15) as of 1 January 2019 (note 15) 100,719
BEHEBEEMN2019F1 1B £ The weighted average of the lessees’ incremental
AFERREANANERESEEERN borrowing rates applied to lease liabilities by
EFAAMBFEHESEERFEN R A the relevant group entities recognised in the
5.4% ° consolidated statement of financial position as at

1 January 2019 is 5.4% per annum.
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#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

3. HNEFEMEHEER &) 3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
@) FRAFTET SAANEE] & B R & 2R — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs —
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

20194151 H 454 (#)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

() Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)

FE(E)
R2019FE1 A1 FREEEZE® The carrying amount of right-of-use assets as at
EEEANEHE: 1 January 2019 comprises the following:
FHET
HK$’000
BAUTEEZ2FEHEEE: Right-of-use assets relating to:
HME B R EERE165E  Operating lease recognised upon application
EERNEENE of HKFRS 16 100,719
HENEHEREF OB Reclassified from prepaid lease payments 4,468
R2019F1 A1 B 2 REE Carrying amount as at 1 January 2019
(Kt7#15) (note 15) 105,187
RER By class:
HEWMZE Rental premises 34,840
NS Office equipment 12,008
IRiEEE £ Travel buses 58,339
105,187

Bt RABE BB E LR FE165R1K -
REDTENEERN RS S
(SERTFEART £ TR R E At FE 1R
8RI8 B A1) £)4,468,000/8 7T T & 3
DEEEREEE-

Note:

Upon application of HKFRS 16, the current
portion of prepaid lease payments of travel
buses was previously included in the line item
of deposits, prepayments and other receivables
amounting to approximately HK$4,468,000 was
reclassified to right-of-use assets.
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3. HKMNEBUBREEL w0 3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)
@ FRANFTE] A NE ] BB IR 2Rl — (@) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)
, EHIE165 —HE (&) HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)
() FRABEEBHBHEERFE165 7Y () Impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 (Continued)
ZE(E)

R2019F1 A1 BV EREREEE After the initial recognition of right-of-use assets
MHEaFER AEE (EAEHEAN) and lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019, the
BREANECENRERERIIESE Group as a lessee is required to recognise
A BT ARFEREEENITE interest expense accrued on the outstanding
MIERBBEBER AR R ERERA balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation
BREEHEMEEANEESHA T - of the right-of-use asset, instead of the previous
RNERNEMNET B ERF175RNE policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
EEEL WEREAERESE under operating leases on a straight-line basis
= hEMEEKEZRP 2HNELH over the lease term. This results in a positive
MEEFmMFZE- impact on the reported profit from operations
in the Group’s consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, as
compared to the results if HKAS 17 had been

applied during the year.
TEEmERenEgRP  NEE (EAE In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
HA)EBENMLBEETHENEE S the Group as a lessee is required to split rentals
BERED RF B c ZEZLHen paid under capitalised leases into their capital
HMARBESARLY (WA EFE S element and interest element. These elements
SR E7THRIB NHEDEARE are classified as financing cash outflows, similar
HMEMNBER)  MIELBERS AL (I to how leases previously classified as finance
mEB S ERNEI7THEE NHES leases under HKAS 17 were treated, rather than
AEEHEMNER) - Al HHE S as operating cash outflows, as was the case for
PR EENFIGRETIRSREN operating leases under HKAS 17. The adoption
HEREMERANEIN A BEEE of HKFRS 16 therefore results in a change in
1t - presentation of cash flows within the consolidated

statement of cash flows.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a lease is defined as a
contract, or part of a contract, that conveys the
right to use an asset (the “underlying asset”) for
a period of time in exchange for consideration.
A contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time when
the customer, throughout the period of use, has
both: (a) the right to obtain substantially all of the
economic benefits from use of the identified asset
and (b) the right to direct the use of the identified
asset.

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-
lease components, a lessee shall allocate the
consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-
alone price of the lease component and the
aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
component, unless the lessee apply the practical
expedient which allows the lessee to elect, by
class of underlying asset, not to separate non-
lease component from lease component, and
instead account for each lease component and
any associated non-lease component as a single
lease component.

The Group has elected not to separate non-
lease component and account for all each
lease component and any associated non-lease
component as a single lease component for
leases of the travel buses.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

Accounting as a lessee

Under HKAS 17, a lessee has to classify a lease
as an operating lease or a finance lease based on
the extent to which risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of a lease asset lie with the lessor
or the lessee. If a lease is determined as an
operating lease, the lessee would recognise the
lease payments under the operating lease as an
expense over the lease term. The asset under the
lease would not be recognised in the statement of

financial position of the lessee.

Under HKFRS 16, all leases (irrespective of
they are operating leases or finance leases) are
required to be capitalised in the statement of
financial position as right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities, but HKFRS 16 provides accounting
policy choices for an entity to choose not to
capitalise (i) leases which are short-term leases
and/or (i) leases for which the underlying asset is
of low-value.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and
a lease liability at the commencement date of a
lease.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(ii)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: () the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (i) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are
incurred to produce inventories. Subsequent to
the commencement date, under the cost model,
the Group measures the right-of-use assets
at cost, less any accumulated depreciation
and any accumulated impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liability.
Unless the Group is reasonably certain to obtain
ownership of the leased asset at the end of the
lease term, the recognised right-of-use assets are
depreciated on straight-line basis over the shorter
of useful lives and lease term.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(i)

Accounting as a lessee (Continueq)
Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the
present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments shall be discounted using
the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate
can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group shall use the

Group’s incremental borrowing rate.

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are
not paid at the commencement date of the lease
(i) fixed
payments less any lease incentives receivable; (ii)

are considered to be lease payments:

variable lease payments that depend on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at commencement date; (i) amounts expected
to be payable by the lessee under residual value
guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a purchase
option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the lessee exercising an option to terminate the
lease.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(ii)

(i)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

Subsequent to the commencement date, a
lessee shall measure the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
(i) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase
the underlying asset.

Transition

As mentioned above, the Group has applied
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective
approach and recognised all the cumulative effect
of initially applying HKFRS 16 as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained earnings, if
any, at the date of initial application (i.e. 1 January
2019). The comparative financial information
presented for 2018 has not been restated and
continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and
related interpretations as allowed by the transition
provision in HKFRS 16.

The Group has recognised the lease liabilities
as at 1 January 2019 for leases previously
classified as operating lease applying HKAS
17 and measured those lease liabilities at the
present value of the remaining lease payments,
discounted using the lessee’s incremental
borrowing rate at 1 January 2019.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(a) Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HKFRS 16 — Leases (Continued)

(iv)

Transition (Continued)

The Group has elected to recognise all the right-
of-use assets at 1 January 2019 for leases
previously classified as operating lease under
HKAS 17 at an amount equal to the amount
recognised for the remaining lease liabilities,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or
accrued lease payments related to those leases
recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position immediately before the date
of initial application, and discounted using
the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. For all these right-of-
use assets, the Group has applied HKAS 36
“Impairment of Assets” at 1 January 2019 to
assess if there was any impairment as on that
date.

The Group has also applied a practical expedient
that the Group applied a single discount rate
to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar
characteristics.

In addition, the Group has also applied the
practical expedients such that: (i) HKFRS 16
is applied to all of the Group’s lease contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying
HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 and (ii) not to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were not previously
identified as containing a lease applying HKAS 17
and HK(IFRIC)-Int 4.

Except as described above, the application of the
new or amended HKFRSs below had no material
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int23 — Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

The interpretation supports the requirements of HKAS
12 “Income Taxes”, by providing guidance over how
to reflect the effects of uncertainty in accounting for
income taxes. Under the interpretation, the entity
shall determine whether to consider each uncertain
tax treatment separately or together based on
which approach better predicts the resolution of
the uncertainty. The entity shall also assume the tax
authority will examine amounts that it has a right
to examine and have full knowledge of all related
information when making those examinations. If the
entity determines it is probable that the tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment, then the entity
should measure current and deferred tax in line with
its tax filings. If the entity determines it is not probable,
then the uncertainty in the determination of tax is
reflected using either the “most likely amount” or the
“expected value” approach, whichever better predicts
the resolution of the uncertainty.

Amendments to HKFRS 9 — Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

The amendments clarify that prepayable financial
assets with negative compensation can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income if specified conditions are met
instead of at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 19 - Plan amendments,
curtallment or settlement

The amendments clarify that on amendment,
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, a
company should use updated actuarial assumptions to
determine its current service cost and net interest for
the year. Additionally, the effect of the asset ceiling is
disregarded when calculating the gain or loss on any
settlement of the plan and is dealt with separately in
other comprehensive income.

Amendments to HKAS 28 — Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

The amendment clarifies that HKFRS 9 applies to long-
term interests (“LTI") in associates or joint ventures
which form part of the net investment in the associates
or joint ventures and stipulates that HKFRS 9 is applied
to these LTI before the impairment losses guidance
within HKAS 28.

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 12, Income Taxes

The amendments issued under the annual

improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 12 which clarify
that all income tax consequences of dividends are
recognised consistently with the transactions that
generated the distributable profits, either in profit or

loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
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3. ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

@)

(b)

Adoption of new or amended HKFRSs -
effective 1 January 2019 (Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle
— Amendments to HKAS 23, Borrowing Costs

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to standards where they are currently unclear.
They include amendments to HKAS 23 which clarify
that a borrowing made specifically to obtain a qualifying
asset which remains outstanding after the related
qualifying asset is ready for its intended use or sale
would become part of the funds an entity borrows
generally and therefore included in the general pool.

New or amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or amended HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been
early adopted by the Group:
Amendments to Definition of a business’
HKFRS 3
Amendments to
HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8
Amendments to
HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 7

Definition of material”

Interest Rate Benchmark

Reform’

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and

HKAS 28 Associate or Joint Venture?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020

8 No mandatory effective date yet determined but

available for adoption
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 — Definition of a business

The amendments clarify that a business must include,
as a minimum, an input and a substantive process that
together significantly contribute to the ability to create
outputs, together with providing extensive guidance on
what is meant by a “substantive process”.

Additionally, the amendments remove the assessment
of whether market participants are capable of replacing
any missing inputs or processes and continuing to
produce outputs, whilst narrowing the definition of
“outputs” and a “business” to focus on returns from
selling goods and services to customers, rather than on
cost reductions.

An optional concentration test has also been added
that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is not a business.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 — Definition of
material

The amendments clarify the definition and explanation
of “material”, aligning the definition across all HKFRS
Standards and the Conceptual Framework, and
incorporating supporting requirements in HKAS 1 into
the definition.
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3.

ADOPTION OF HKFRSs (Continued)

(b) New or amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
— Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments modify some specific hedge
accounting requirements to provide relief from potential
effects of the uncertainties caused by interest rate
benchmark reform. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify the extent of gains or losses
to be recognised when an entity sells or contributes
assets to its associate or joint venture. When the
transaction involves a business the gain or loss is
recognised in full, conversely when the transaction
involves assets that do not constitute a business the
gain or loss is recognised only to the extent of the
unrelated investors’ interests in the joint venture or
associate.

The Group is not yet in a position to state whether
these new pronouncements will result in substantial
changes to the Group’s accounting policies and
financial statements.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@

(b)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the Group’s interests in associates.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

The carrying amount of non-controlling interests
that represent present ownership interests in the
subsidiaries is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus such non-controlling interest’s share
of subsequent changes in equity. Total comprehensive
income is attributed to such non-controlling interests
even if this results in those non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present: (i) power over the investee; (i) exposure, or
rights, to variable returns from the investee and (iii)
the ability to use its power to affect those variable
returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in
any of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable during the
year.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor
a joint arrangement. Significant influence is the power
to participate in the financial and operating policy
decisions of the investee but not control or joint control
over those policies.

Associates are accounted for using the equity method
whereby they are initially recognised at cost and
thereafter, their carrying amounts are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in the
associates’ net assets except that losses in excess of
the Group’s interest in the associate are not recognised
unless there is an obligation to make good those
losses.

Profits and losses arising on transactions between the
Group and its associates are recognised only to the
extent of unrelated investors’ interests in the associate.
The investor’s share in the associate’s profits and
losses resulting from these transactions is eliminated
against the carrying value of the associate. Where
unrealised losses provide evidence of impairment of the
asset transferred they are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an associate above the fair value
of the Group’s share of the identifiable assets, liabilities
and contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised and
included in the carrying amount of the associate.
Where there is objective evidence that the interest in
an associate has been impaired, the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the same
way as other non-financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@

(€

Foreign currency translation

Transactions entered into by group entities in
currencies other than the currency of the primary
economic environment in which they operate (the
“functional currency”) are recorded at the rates
ruling when the transactions occur. Foreign currency
monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
rates ruling at the end of the reporting period. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are not re-translated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange
rates for the year, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during the year, in which case, the rates
approximating to those ruling when the transactions
took place are used. All assets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated at the rate ruling at the end
of the reporting period. Exchange differences arisen,
if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve
(attributed to non-controlling interests as appropriate).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
less subsequent accumulated depreciation and any
accumulated impairment losses.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance, are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off costs over their estimated useful lives, using
a straight-line basis, at the rates shown below per
annum. The estimated useful lives and depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of the reporting period. The useful lives are as
follows:

Hotel and other buildings 2%
Leasehold improvements  30% or over the lease term,

whichever is shorter

Office equipment 20%
Computer equipment 20%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
Freehold land is not depreciated.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(€

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount.

HEWE BMEMEZEERMELHWESS The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,

518 - ]S&Hj%ﬁﬁ@;mﬁggﬁgﬁiﬁ BRI E plant and equipment is the difference between the

ZHAE TREERNERTER- net sales proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

N HEEILE () Construction in progress
EETIRREEERAEEET BRI Construction in progress represented hotel building
{Ejj%ﬁﬁ)ﬁi@;gﬂ;ﬁljﬁﬁoﬁj‘z$@%§}§§_ﬁ;§ under construction and is stated at cost less any
A A RREEMLEARE R EOERE accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises
H-B8EERARTERRMENEBIER direct costs of construction as well as borrowing
KR ZER A TNBEMNE M costs capitalised during the periods of construction
TRHRAEBREYE KELRENEE S and installation. Capitalisation of these costs ceases
Bl FEETIZN T KA IZEERRFER 2 and the construction in progress is transferred to the
Bl NEETIRITE - appropriate class of property, plant and equipment

when substantially all the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
completed. No depreciation is provided for in respect
of construction in progress until it is completed and
ready for its intended use.

@ A HE (F2019%F1H1HEEH S (9) A. Leases (accounting policies applied from 1
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January 2019)
Accounting as a lessee

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
consolidated statement of financial position as right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities.

The Group recognised a right-of-use asset and a lease
liability at the commencement date of a lease.
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4. FTEGHEBR®) 4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
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January 2019) (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling
and removing the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease,
unless those costs are incurred to produce inventories.
Subsequent to the commencement date, under the
cost model, the Group measures the right-of-use
assets at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of lease liability. Unless the Group
is reasonably certain to obtain ownership of the leased
asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised
right-of-use assets are depreciated on straight-line
basis over the shorter of useful lives and lease term.

Lease liability

The lease liability should be recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid at
the date of commencement of the lease. The lease
payments shall be discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily
determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined,
the Group shall use the Group’s incremental borrowing
rate.
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(Continued)
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January 2019) (Continued)
Accounting as a lessee (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right to use the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any
lease incentives receivable; (i) variable lease payments
that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of
a purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain
to exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties
for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, a lessee
shall measure the lease liability by: (i) increasing
the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease
liability; (ii) reducing the carrying amount to reflect
the lease payments made; and (i) remeasuring the
carrying amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(9) B. Leases (accounting policies applied until 31

(h)

December 2018)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the
terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership to lessee. All other leases are
classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

The total rentals payable under the operating leases
are recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Lease incentives received are
recognised as an integrated part of the total rental
expense, over the term of the lease.

Financial instruments
() Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component)
is initially measured at fair value plus, for an
item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A
trade receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4. FEEFHR#) 4.

h LEIAE

(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(0 SR (42) () Financial assets (Continued)
EXTA Debt instruments
BB ITAENEBAERTIFAEFTEIE Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
BEMEFBEAULRZEENIRSR depends on the Group’s business model
EREMTE - AEEEZANTERIG for managing the asset and the cash flow
SEHEEKIA: characteristics of the asset. There is only one
measurement category into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:
BEm A WA NBEESREASB Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
HmSENEE BEE AR BT of contractual cash flows where those cash
ENRZBReRERBHKATTE - flows represent solely payments of principal and
BRHEK AT EN SR EERBRKE interest are measured at amortised cost. Financial
BERFEEGT S - RIS WA - B U ES assets at amortised cost are subsequently
FEENERERER PR - EH measured using the effective interest rate
R EFE R R a9 R B2 R T BA method. Interest income, foreign exchange
TR - gains and losses and impairment are recognised
in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
recognised in profit or loss.
i =z (B 15 (i) Impairment loss on financial assets
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The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables and other financial assets measured
at amortised cost. The ECLs are measured on
either of the following bases: (1) 12-month ECLs:
these are the ECLs that result from possible
default events within the 12 months after the
reporting date and (2) lifetime ECLs: these are
ECLs that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.
The maximum period considered when estimating
ECLs is the maximum contractual period over
which the Group is exposed to credit risk.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instrurments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows
that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables using HKFRS 9’s
simplified approach and has calculated ECLs
based on lifetime ECLs. The Group has
established a provision matrix that is based on
the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific
to the debtors, current creditworthiness of the
debtors and the economic environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-month ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers the following as constituting
an event of default for internal credit risk
management purposes as historical experience
indicates that financial assets that meet either
of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable:

° when there is a breach of financial
covenants by the debtor; or

o information developed internally or obtained
from external sources indicates that the
debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking
into account any collateral held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group
considers that default has occurred when a
financial asset is more than 90 days past due
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held) or (2) the financial
asset is more than 90 days past due.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(i)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non-credit-
impaired financial assets, interest income is
calculated based on the gross carrying amount.

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the debtor is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, e.g. when the debtor has
been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of
trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice
where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at amortised
cost are initially measured at fair value, net of
directly attributable costs incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(iv)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, accruals, other payables,
amounts due to associates, lease liabilities and
bank borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is re-measured. The gain
or loss on re-measurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow hedge
accounting, in which case recognition of any
resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of
the item being hedged (see Note 4(h)(vii)).

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial
asset or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(v)

(Vi)

(vii)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

Cash flow hedges

Where a derivative financial instrument is
designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability or
a highly probable forecast transaction or the
foreign currency risk of a committed future
transaction, the effective portion of any gains
or losses on re-measurement of the derivative
financial instrument to fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
separately in equity in the hedging reserve.
The ineffective portion of any gain or loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued)

(vii)  Cash flow hedges (Continued)

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a non-financial asset
or non-financial liability, the associated gain or
loss is reclassified from equity to be included in
the initial cost or other carrying amount of the
non-financial asset or liability.

If a hedge of a forecast transaction subsequently
results in the recognition of a financial asset or
a financial liability, the associated gain or loss
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss in the
same period or periods during which the asset
acquired or liability assumed affects profit or loss
(such as when interest income or expense is
recognised).

When a hedging instrument expires, or is sold or
terminated, or when a hedge no longer meets the
criteria for hedge accounting, hedge accounting
is discontinued prospectively, any cumulative gain
or loss remains in equity at that time is accounted
for according to the nature of the underlying
transactions (as discussed above) once the
hedged cash flow occurs. When a forecast
transaction is no longer expected to occur, the
cumulative gain or loss that has been reported in
equity is reclassified to profit or loss immediately.



%= 2 f

B 765 R R B 5E

INZN= A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.

()

0

EEHEKR#)
Ve =y
FEAIRR AR BE R AR 28

FEMEPZBREERR - KABEMER
FB RN % 5 13 B K 2 L IR 3 B e BUR
SRS EE AR 2 BB AR o FRARTO(E A S A ST
WA E - A BRFERENBEXRGBEE
Rt EER AT HERMRRX -

W zs TR

KEEF &M NS e RS R0 ZE 5
EERTEPHERRTASERHREREE R
SR MBEEBLIRNORESRE T AER  H
TEERRE=Z7TRIHN TR - Kt HE
FERERKEMEEN WK EARS
P o

BFANER R A QERNER  EmAR
745 1 122 Il M T B By ] 8 A oo 10 2R M s PR 3
B -MASEENBATERL AEMR%K
AR 75 B0 22 Il HEE BB s FR] B8 7%

s EFPRARERILERANEEBOME
L Fzs

s AKREEMAERER -BANAKH
BHORREFPEFNEE: K

e AEBCZBAVEAGEHASEAES
BERAZCEEB RSB ASHNIT
HEREFKEZS BIEERBLE D 2K
I8 o

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(1)

0)

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the first-in-first-out method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or services is transferred
over time if the Group’s performance:

o provides benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

o creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

0

Revenue recognition (Continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or services.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to
the Group, revenue recognised under that contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For
contracts where the period between the payment and
the transfer of the promised goods or services is one
year or less, the transaction price is not adjusted for
the effects of a significant financing component, using
the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

() Package tours

Revenue for package tours is recognised over
time in accounting period in which the control
of services is transferred to the customer
because the customer simultaneously receives
and consumes benefit provided by the Group’s
performance as it performs. Payment is made to
the Group before the customers enjoy the tour
services.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Revenue recognition (Continued)

()

(i)

Hotel room rental

The Group provides hotel accommodations, food
and beverage and other hospitality in Japan.

The Group self-operates its hotel. Revenue
from hotel room rental is recognised over time
in the accounting period in which the hotel
accommodation services are provided to the
customer.

Sales of FIT products, ancillary travel related
products and services

Revenue from free independent travellers (“FIT”)
packages, individual travel elements (together
with FIT packages referred to as “FIT Products”)
such as sales of air tickets, hotel accommodation
and hotel packages, etc, and provision of
ancillary travel related products and services,
such as car rental, visa application and travel
insurance arrangement, etc, is recognised at a
point in time when the booking or arrangement
services are performed or tickets are delivered to
and have been accepted by the customers. The
Group is the agent in these transactions and the
revenue is recognised on a net basis.

Where the Group acts as a principal in certain
transactions, including sales of admission and
transportation tickets and merchandise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the control
of the products is transferred to the customers,
being when the goods are sold to the customers,
there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect
the customers’ acceptance of the goods, the
customers have obtained the physical possession
or the legal title of the goods and the Group has
present right to payment.

The Group does not provide any sales-related
warranties. There is no right of return by
customers under the Group’s standard contract
terms, except for sales of certain train tickets.

20194 %% Annual Report 2019 135



> B 7% 3R 3% FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

)

AR
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H E2019F12A31H IE 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

4.

EETHR (&)

0 MHa ﬁﬁﬁ (4&)

v)

lig g %5
AEBERBAERARED L Rk
ErREK AN IRES L RBREHT
B PR s B R R o

Vi

BERARFEREHERIIRBER
1TJ-HTTE€E/L‘/\O

MEBEWARKEERAE®
RIREEERS -

78 LA A A

BRIRIE

REFEFPITVANEK AEEERFR
EFRBRENERN WAEREF
BEEmAIRERBOBEHERL %
FHEN K B K Z TS BUR T R eh 4 71 82
BHEBZEOBRELRAELEEF
BEXBEEFE - IHREETELPOR
BHRANGHABRERNETFPKE
RIZRAEF WK ER LD ER
B RET IR ER

136 =EmiE®RAER~LE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Revenue recognition (Continued)

(v)

(v)

Travel bus services

The Group owns its travel buses in Japan. Travel
bus service revenue is recognised over time in the
accounting period in which the travel bus services
are provided to the customer.

Other income

Commission income is recognised when the
goods or services on which the commission is
calculated are delivered.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Contract liabilities

Upon entering into a contract with a customer,
the Group obtains right to receive consideration
from the customer and assumes performance
obligations to transfer goods or provide services
to the customer. The combination of those
rights and performance obligations give rise to
a net asset or a net liability depending on the
relationship between the remaining rights and
the performance obligations. Contract liabilities
are recognised for services to be provided
to customers represented by the excess of
consideration received from the customers
according to agreed customer billing schedules
over cumulative revenue recognised.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

Income tax

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for recognised assets and liabilities that affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to
the expected manner in which the carrying amount of
the asset or liability is realised or settled and that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

(m)

Income tax (Continued)

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are
also recognised in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand as well as short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.

Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the reporting period in which the employees render
the related service. Short-term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees render the
related service.

Defined contribution retirement plans

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a
separate entity.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(m) Employee benefits (Continued)

Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who
are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme in
Hong Kong. The Group has no legal or constructive
obligations to pay further contributions after payment
of the fixed contribution. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries to the maximum mandatory contributions as
required by the MPF Scheme. Liabilities or assets may
be recognised if underpayment or prepayment has
occurred and are included in current liabilities or current
assets, respectively, as they are normally of a short-
term nature. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme.

The subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Macau makes monthly contributions to the social
security fund managed by the relevant authority of the
local government, which undertakes the retirement
obligations of the its employees. The Group has no
obligation for payment of retirement benefits beyond
the monthly contributions. The contribution payable is
charged as an expense to profit or loss as and when
incurred.
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Defined contribution retirement plans (Continued)

According to the existing relevant regulations in
Taiwan, a subsidiary of the Company incorporated in
Taiwan is required to participate in the retirement plan
or scheme operated by the government of Taiwan
(the “Taiwan Scheme”) for the provision of pension
benefits to its employees. The Taiwan subsidiary is
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll
costs to the Taiwan Scheme to fund the benefits. The
Group has no further payment obligations once the
contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in Japan are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by a government-
affiliated corporation (the “National Pension Scheme”).
This subsidiary is required to contribute certain
percentage of employees’ salaries to the National
Pension Scheme. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiary which
operated in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government (the
“Central Pension Scheme”). This subsidiary is required
to contribute certain percentage of employees’ salaries
to the Central Pension Scheme. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid.

All contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or loss
when the services are rendered by the employees and
when they fall due under the relevant regulations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)

Impairment of non-financial assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
reviews the carrying amounts of the following assets
to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss or an
impairment loss previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

o property, plant and equipment;
° right-of-use assets;

o construction in progress; and
° interests in associates

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use) of an
asset is estimated to be less than its carrying amount,
the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately, unless the relevant asset
is carried at a revalued amount under another HKFRS,
in which case the impairment loss is treated as a
revaluation decrease under that HKFRS.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately, unless the relevant
asset is carried at a revalued amount under another
HKFRS, in which case the reversal of the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation increase under that
HKFRS.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n) Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future
cash flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the

asset.

(o) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of

economic benefits that can be reliably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
the existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is

remote.

(p) Related parties

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s

family, is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel

of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(b) Related parties (Continued)

(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the

following conditions apply:

(i

(if

(i)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others);

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member);

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity); or

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Company’s parent.

20194 %% Annual Report 2019 143



> B 7% 3R 3% FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

iR R M R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

H E2019F12A31H IE 4 Z For the year ended 31 December 2019

4. FEEFHR#)

) FET (&)
—BALTHEOBREERATERERERS
B AR ERRZALEZENTKERK
g 8f:

) RALHFREEBIRERZHF:

(i) RALTEBRREBHN T K

(i) ZALTHRATEBRIEBHAOX
%O

@ UKRGABERZ

tmE B RIZEEUURK 2 b A L5 H
BRE NEHBBRs BREARLERTIE
SEHABRE  UREST(ESBRER
HBETEMEESE -EMEGEBEGER
FERBHEAREAREBE BT AN
HEME USRKEFBHHBERZR
AREDERNRRERSB CEREHSEM
B -MBEBIRE AT ARBEEREZ A
AEE - REMBEMEBIRGEERL 8
TwmEEBGT SR EENTEIRA
o RErAX T g AREK TS FEBIEGM
T o

11 8 P 2 R K M fER A1 7 L T 5 B A 8
B EERERERAI MR EZBRER
AEEZBRERTSER NFBRET AR

144 =H=HERAER-DE  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

@),

Related parties (Continued)

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic
partner; and

@iy dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees and
others providing similar services, the fair value of the
options at the date of grant is recognised in profit
or loss over the vesting period with a corresponding
increase in the employee share option reserve within
equity. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into
account by adjusting the number of equity instruments
expected to vest at the end of the reporting period so
that, ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised over
the vesting period is based on the number of options
that eventually vested. Market vesting conditions are
factored into the fair value of the options granted.
As long as all other vesting conditions are satisfied,
a charge is made irrespective of whether the market
vesting conditions are satisfied. The cumulative
expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified
before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the
options, measured immediately before and after the
modification, is also recognised in profit or loss over the
remaining vesting period.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@

(r)

Share-based payments (Continued)

Where equity instruments are granted to persons
other than employees and others providing similar
services, the fair value of goods or services received
is recognised in profit or loss unless the goods
or services qualify for recognition as assets. A
corresponding increase in equity is recognised. For
cash-settled share-based payments, a liability is
recognised at the fair value of the goods or services
received.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to be ready for their intended use or sale, are
capitalised as part of the cost of those assets.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss in the

period in which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs include interest charges and other
costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of
funds.
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5.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and judgements concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
judgements that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

() Depreciation

The Group depreciates the property, plant and
equipment in accordance with the accounting policies
stated in note 4(e). The estimated useful lives reflect
the management’s estimates of the periods that the
Group intends to derive future economic benefits from
the use of these assets. The management reassesses
the estimated useful lives at the end of the reporting
period.

(i) Impairment of receivables

The Group determines the provision for impairment
of trade and other receivables based on assumptions
about risk of default and expected loss rates. The
provision matrix is determined based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the trade receivables with similar credit risk
characteristics and is adjusted for forward-looking
estimates. The ECLs of other receivables is based
on the 12-month ECLs. In making the judgement,
management considers available reasonable and
supportable forward-looking information such as actual
or expected significant adverse changes in business
and customers’ financial position. At every reporting
date, the historical observed default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed by the management.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(i)

(v)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

Significant judgements are required in determining
the amount of the provision for tax and the timing
of payment of the related tax. Where the final tax
outcomes are different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Classification of freehold land, hotel building
and construction in progress

As disclosed in notes 14 and 16 in respect of the
freehold land, hotel building, hot spring bath building
and construction in progress of hotel building, these
items are not classified as investment properties as the
Group retains significant risks of running the business,
i.e. exposure to variation in the future cash flows
generated by the operations. Although the Group has
outsourced day-to-day administrative functions to a
hotel management company, the Group is not a purely
passive investor. Accordingly, management considered
that these items should be classified as owner-
occupied property. Once the construction in progress
is completed, it would be transferred to property, plant
and equipment.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(v)

(Vi)

Impairment assessment of property, plant
and equipment, right-of-use assets and
construction in progress

Judgement is required in the area of asset impairment,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (2) whether the carrying value
of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, being the higher of fair value less costs to
sell or value-in-use, which is the net present value of
future cash flows which are estimated based upon the
continued use of the asset in the business and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash
flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions used to determine
the level, if any, of impairment, including the discount
rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test and as a result affect the
Group’s financial condition and results of operations.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments
as at FVTPL

The financial instruments at FVTPL are valued by
independent professional qualified valuers at the end
of each reporting period. Such valuation is based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the
applicable notes.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(vii) Determining the lease term

As explained in the above accounting policies, the
lease liability is initially recognised at the present value
of the lease payments that are not paid at the date
of commencement of the lease. In determining the
lease term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group, the
Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the renewal
options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for
the Group to exercise the option, including favourable
terms, leasehold improvements undertaken and the
importance of that underlying asset to the Group’s
operation. The lease term is reassessed when there is a
significant event or significant change in circumstance
that is within the Group’s control. Any increase or
decrease in the lease term would affect the amount of
lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised in
future years.

SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group has identified its operating segments based on
the regular internal financial information reported to the chief
operating decision-makers about allocation of resources to
assess the performance of the Group’s business.

The Group has two reportable segments. The segments
are managed separately as each business offers different
products and services and requires different business
strategies. The following summary describes the operations
in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Travel and travel related services business (“Travel
Related Business”)

Hotel operation (“Hotel Business”)
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

Management assesses the performance of the operating
segments based on the measure of segment results which
represents the net of revenue, cost of sales, other income
and gain, selling expenses, administrative expenses, share of
results of associates and finance costs directly attributable to
each operating segment. Central administrative costs are not
allocated to the operating segments as they are not included
in the measure of the segment results that are used by the
chief operating decision-makers for assessment of segment
performance.

Segment assets include all assets with exception of
corporate assets, including cash at banks and on hand, and
certain prepayments and other receivables which are not
directly attributable to the business activities of any operating
segments as these assets are managed on a group basis.
Likewise, segment liabilities exclude corporate liabilities, such
as certain other payables, which are not directly attributable
to the business activities of any operating segments and not
allocated to segments.
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6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(a) Business segments

RIEE R E EIE TS HE
Travel
Related Hotel
Business Business Total
FET FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
B E2019F12831H For the year ended
LFE: 31 December 2019:
W &= Revenue
IREINERE P From external customers 1,682,389 45,939 1,728,328
IR B 9z W Inter-segment revenue (25,836) 25,836 =
] 2 3|2 U &= Reportable segment revenue 1,656,553 71,775 1,728,328
A 2| P Reportable segment
w7 (EE) profit/(loss) 29,444 (14,003) 15,441
M= NMREITE  Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment 9,866 37,379 47,245
FREEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 77,285 = 77,285
JEML B S QAR EE Share of results of associates 2,198 = 2,198
& AR AX Finance costs 3,483 3,559 7,042
FBRAL (FE) Income tax expense/(credit) 1,279 (4,183) (2,904)
2o EEE Reportable segment assets 477,572 612,652 1,090,224
AEZMoHEE Reportable segment liabilities 356,447 379,901 736,348
NEBEIERBDEE Additions to non-current assets 43,752 152,296 196,048
JE{REE L N Al EEFE  Share of net assets of associates 12,371 - 12,371
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6. SEBE A 6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)
@) FHESE(E) (a) Business segments (Continued)
I3 48 B 2R 75 B JE T st
Travel

Related Hotel
Business Business Total
FHT T FHET
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000

HZE2018F12831H For the year ended

IFFE: 31 December 2018:
& Revenue
TR B INBR From external customers 1,735,154 41,460 1,776,614
RE D82 W as Inter-segment revenue (25,764) 25,764 -
7] 2} 7 Z U &= Reportable segment revenue 1,709,390 67,224 1,776,614
] 2} 5 B Reportable segment

wmFL(EE) profit/(loss) 39,345 (2,142) 37,203

W% B NZEITE  Depreciation on property,

plant and equipment 11,891 29,479 41,370
FE{R B E N R ELE Share of results of associates 3,081 = 3,081
A& KR Finance costs 891 3,022 3,913
Frsfims /(%) Income tax expense/(credit) 4,237 (6,484) (2,247)
AZ2W|DBEE Reportable segment assets 422,460 487,814 910,274
AR MBEE Reportable segment liabilities 272,964 278,473 551,437
RNEIEMBEE Additions to non-current assets 3,375 105,692 109,067
JE(EEE 2 N A& EFE  Share of net assets of associates 10,611 = 10,611
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(b)

A 2# 0 ez B BEREIEZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

Eyzid profit or loss, assets and liabilities
2019 2018
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
W= Revenue
] 2o abh Reportable segment revenue 1,728,328 1,776,614
iR e e Consolidated revenue 1,728,328 1,776,614
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
FRATS B RNER Profit before income tax
Al £ #2565 A Reportable segment profit 15,441 37,203
H ez K B8 Other gain and loss 1 4
ROMEERT Unallocated corporate expenses (3,694) (4,263)
B TSR AI 4R & i A Consolidated profit before income tax 11,748 32,944
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
BE Assets
AIZ2WDEBEE Reportable segment assets 1,090,224 910,274
ROMBEEE Unallocated corporate assets 1,656 2,202
HAEMEE Consolidated total assets 1,091,880 912,476
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6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue,

HIEE (&) profit or loss, assets and liabilities (Continued)
2019 2018
F#ET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
afE Liabilities
AZMmoEEaE Reportable segment liabilities 736,348 551,437
Al aE Unallocated corporate liabilities 2,511 2,888
REBasE Consolidated total liabilities 738,859 554,325
I B (c) Geographic information

TREJIAKRBRENFEFP R NFE
MEEMEERBAEE (FENFERBE

E])INIEREBEEDN -

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s

revenue from external customers
assets other than financial assets

and non-current
and deferred tax

assets (“Specified non-current assets”):

RENBEF R RENFERBERE
(REFFR#EHLES) (RERREHES)
Revenue from Specified

external customers
(by customer location)

non-current assets
(by physical location)

2019 2018 2019 2018
FEx FET FTER FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’'000

BB RN Hong Kong and Macau
(FrEs) (place of domicile) 1,647,231 1,703,859 76,586 13,098
BA Japan 78,199 69,372 577,010 461,423
Hit Others 2,898 3,383 12,044 9,866
1,728,328 1,776,614 665,640 484,387

PIEMDE2EREERREERL - HE
REBD & &K EE P ORI E M EE -
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The place of domicile is determined

by referring to the

place the Group regards as its hometown, has the

majority of operation and centre of management.
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6. DEPERE (&)

@ FHEEEERFZEN
HEZ2019F12A31H IEFE RE B ET
ME—FFBRANEE10%A Iz (2018

€

6.

SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued)

(@)

Information about a major customer

The Group did not have any single customer
contributed more than 10% of the Group’s revenue

Fdm) o during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil).
Wozs 59 (e) Disaggregation of revenue
e AR B BIEEHE @t
Travel Related Business Hotel Business Total
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
TEx THT TEr THT TEx THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEWEMS Primary geographical markets
BB AR Hong Kong and Macau
(Fr7Est) (place of domicile) 1,647,231 1,708,859 - - 1,647,231 1,708,859
AK Japan 6,424 2,148 71,775 67,224 78,199 69,372
Hity Others 2,898 3,383 - - 2,898 3,383
1,656,553 1,709,390 71,775 67,224 1,728,328 1,776,614
I 2 e 5 O Timing of revenue recognition
B 1 26 At a point in time 188,828 212,527 - - 188,828 212,527
BEEHEER Transferred over time 1,467,725 1,496,863 71,775 67,224 1,539,500 1,564,087
1,656,553 1,709,390 71,775 67,224 1,728,328 1,776,614
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7.

WEEEMBINRWEFE 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN,
NET
WEHBFERTE S RTHEER URH Revenue includes the net invoiced value of package tours,
HAERE MR RERE: BHTE ancillary travel related products, and hotel room rental
BB RITHEE RSN TSR IBERE o AN F and ancillary services; the net proceeds from FIT Products
EREIANZTITEWZBROSEIHY T : and ancillary travel related services. The amounts of each
significant category of revenue recognised during the year
are as follows:
2019 2018
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
W &= Revenue
IRTT Package tours 1,467,725 1,496,863
BEfTER (#:) FIT Products (note) 17,827 22,720
5 B 1 Bk 1T 4B A 2 om X AR 7 Ancillary travel related products and services
(Ktaz) (note) 171,001 189,807
AR IR % 5 & 8 Bh M AR 7S Hotel room rental and ancillary services 71,775 67,224
1,728,328 1,776,614
Bl REBBERTESRE THEKRTHEBRG Note: The Group’s revenue from FIT Products and certain ancillary
EEMBSERABEASRERNRREZFEAWE travel related services is considered as cash collected on
IS AMmEt A %8 o U R EIFRERIE 4 behalf of principals as an agent, and thus recorded on a net
BT : basis. The gross proceeds received and receivable are as
follows:
2019 2018
FHE T TFET
HK$’000 HK$’'000
B K W AT 1S S 42 R Gross proceeds received and receivable 286,975 360,216
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7. WHEEHEMBNRIWEEEE (&) 7. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAIN,
NET (Continued)
TREFIEBEFEKRERKLKAZESANEL The following table provides information about trade
BEEHNER: receivables and contract liabilities from contracts with
customers:

20195 20184
12A31H 12H31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
5 RWER (K7#20) Trade receivables (note 20) 7,144 10,079
BRBE (H:t25) Contract liabilities (note 25) 185,080 150,215
2019 2018
FET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

Hi A RS FEE Other income and gain, net
B 5, Uy 5 F 58 Exchange gain, net 2,437 6,117
BRI U A Handling income 555 582
AT BCR B A Interest income on bank deposits 222 358
8 75 1= 40 Rebate from a supplier 351 1,552
A Sundry income 914 981
4,479 9,590
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8. BRFTSHLuIiEF 8. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX
BREFS AR A HMBR A TIEREH : Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging:
2019 2018
FET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
2% SR = BN Auditors’ remuneration 2,288 2,193
H b AR 2 Bad debts written off in respect of
[ €icp= A other receivables 74 —
RAERAITNFEERR Cost of inventories recognised as expenses 13,598 25,553
M- BERERETE Depreciation on property, plant and equipment 47,245 41,370
FHEEENE Depreciation on right-of-use assets 77,285 =
HEME KELRERESE Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 57 =
LIFFRE W= Gain on termination of lease 4 =
ERIRIBEEAGTERFE175R Operating lease rental for leases previously
NEREEHEZHEHETH classified as operating leases under
EEHEMS HKAS 17 in respect of:
- - Premises - 28,029
YN - Office equipment - 3,623
—IREEE L — Travel buses = 60,789
& BN Finance costs:
—HEBBEAEN — Interest expense incurred on
MEF (Hat15) lease liabilities (note 15) 3,355 -
—TESRTAESER — Interest expense incurred on
FERZ derivative financial instruments 462 =
—RITERELR — Interest expense incurred on
MERZ bank borrowings 3,583 4,039
— B AR IR ZENEEEF B - Less: Imputed interest capitalised into
(KizE16) construction in progress (note 16) (358) (126)
7,042 3,913
BERAK (BIEHE128 Employee costs (including directors’
EFHM) : emoluments in note 12):
— ¥ hEMEMER — Salaries and other benefits in kind 135,236 131,234
— RIRET &I 3K — Retirement scheme contributions 5,941 5,847
141,177 137,081
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9. FiEHiMKRE 9. INCOME TAX CREDIT
2019 2018
F#& T FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BRI TE — BB RBH Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax
—RFEHIEA — Tax for the year 1,974 3,992
—BEFEREREE — Over-provision in respect of prior year (1,436) (364)
538 3,628
BIEARIE — RIS MR Current tax - Macau Complementary Tax
—ARFEHIA — Tax for the year 37 123
BB -/ EE RIS EMEH  Current tax - Taiwan Profit - Seeking
Enterprise Income Tax
—RFEEHIA — Tax for the year 236 549
BIHARIE — A AR FBF Current tax — Japan Profits Tax
—REEHIA — Tax for the year 2,528 2,467
IEFET IR Deferred tax
—RAFEEERFTA — Credit to profit or loss for the year
(#13%18) (note 18) (6,216) (8,887)
(2,877) (2,120)

REFSHEREBHARREN LR RHES
HELRRBHEBAREESEMKINEEER

The group entities incorporated in the Cayman Islands and

B

the BVI are tax-exempted as no business is carried out in the

REERRAESEEMNABRARESETER
BEHRRHIEA -

HZE2019F K2018F 12 A31 H I F & (A5TERT
i 189 B2,000,0007% T0128.25% T B &S 15
i - A T FE 5T B % 7 8 82,000,000 7T B 38 75
A1Z16.5%T H - T & FHEH MR B AR E
B H= 2 A v I W F S A 1R 16.5% ) Bl R
e

Cayman Islands and the BVI under the laws of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI respectively.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first
HK$2 million of estimated assessable profits and at 16.5%
for the portion of the estimated assessable profits above
HK$2 million for the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018. The profit of group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered profits tax rates regime continued to be taxed at
16.5% for both years.
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al

EhiE#HikE (&)

HE2019F12A31 B ItFE - BPIFTS Mo
B35 7R Y 22 18 B9 BT B8 A B A 1 51 B 5 A 0 Al 4%
12% (20184F : 12% ) 9B Rt & -

REEH B EMESH BTN E & E R B
RN E R G ETE R DR F3225% (20184F : 25% ) HY
FRRAE-HE2019F12A31B IEFEE AEE
FA R B I O B BB X B A E AE A T B AT A T
(2018%F : 48 ) ©

HE2019F12A31HILFE A BLEFEEME
FRTHIRIE R & /2 & 8 B M B & B A {51 /B 5T R
AIR20% (20184 : 20% ) VT Rt & o

RBAEENNBRARABMBEANTERS
BMoHMERNERBNETENERREER (T
NHEBIAAFNER]) ZERERAFERE
TER RERENIEAKEREAEMEHE R
T 4930.6% = #134.6% (20184 : 4931.1% = 4
34.6%) °
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9.

INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)

Macau Complementary Tax is calculated at 12% (2018: 12%)
on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary operating
in Macau for the year ended 31 December 2019.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at 25% (2018:
25%) on the estimated assessable profit of a subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year. The Group has no
estimated assessable profit arising from the subsidiary
operating in the PRC for the year ended 31 December 2019
(2018: Nil).

Taiwan Profit — Seeking Enterprise Income Tax is calculated
at 20% (2018: 20%) on the estimated assessable profit
of a subsidiary operating in Taiwan for the year ended 31
December 2019.

Subsidiaries operating in Japan are subject to corporate
income tax, prefectural and municipal inhabitant taxes
and business tax. (hereinafter collectively referred to
as “Japan Profits Tax”) in Japan, which, in aggregate,
resulted in effective statutory income tax rates ranging
from approximately 30.6% to approximately 34.6% (2018:
approximately 31.1% to approximately 34.6%) for the
year based on the existing legislation, interpretations and
practices in respect thereof.
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9. Fife®iikeE (&) 9. INCOME TAX CREDIT (Continued)
HERRERAENMERE R LSRN RN Reconciliation between income tax credit and accounting
T: profit at applicable tax rates:
2019 2018
FET TR
HK$’000 HK$'000
B P 15 B¢ A i ) Profit before income tax 11,748 32,944

BB BB E16.5% (20184 :  Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of

16.5% ) st E # T 18 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) 1,938 5,436
REMRDAE B & LB B A 7] Tax effect of different tax rate of subsidiaries
Z TR EZ R & operating in other jurisdictions (2,317) (914)
NAHIRIE R NRBRE Tax effect of non-deductible items 1,133 1,253
BARBEBENNREZE Tax effect of non-taxable items (1,368) (2,799)
RERERHMEEZENT BT E Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised 147 369
ﬂiﬁﬁ ARIEEENTH B E Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (98) 938
BERERRIBEENE A Utilisation of tax losses previously
not recognised (966) (2,847)
iﬂ?fiﬁﬁ@éw MIBEEIEER A Tax effect of previously unrecognised
BEEFIBEEENT BT E tax losses now recognised as
deferred tax assets (168) (3,986)
BABE AR IEA A Effect on deferred tax balances resulting from
FrEERMTE an increase in applicable tax rate - 475
MEFEBERE Over-provision in prior year (1,436) (364)
H A Others 258 319
(2,877) (2,120)
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10. EiRAEF

10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

2019 2018
FE T FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000
2R Earnings

KRRIER NS & F Profit attributable to owners of the Company 14,001 34,817
2019 2018
F 1z T &
’000 '000

B% 0 2 B Number of shares
LRI E A Number of ordinary shares 502,450 502,450

HE2019F K2018F12A31H ILFE » KA R
EHEBERG NERBEEAFELERERE
MR o

Diluted earnings per share were the same as the basic
earnings per share as the Company had no dilutive potential
shares during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
2018.

1. IE82 11. DIVIDENDS
2019 2018
F#ET TET
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
B 2018 F R EARR B &A1 1L 2018 interim dividends of HK1 cent
per share paid - 5,024
22018 F R EIIR B FM4EN 2018 final dividends of HK4 cents
(20184 : 20175 R HARR =2 (2018: 2017 final dividends of HK1 cent)
BB per share paid 20,098 5,025
20,098 10,049

ER B IR B2018F R ER BT R1IB I K
2018F AR B FRABW EFSETREE
2018512 A31H IEFEME2FE RS TREHBL
EETEBRNEE2019F12831 B IEFEHR
HARR B (20184  47811l) °
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Together with the 2018 interim dividends of HK1 cent per
share and the 2018 final dividends of HK4 cents per share
have been paid, the board of directors declared payment
of a full-year dividend of HK5 cents per share for the year
ended 31 December 2018. The directors do not recommend
payment of final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 (2018: HK4 cents).
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12. EEFHM 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS
BEEHMIETENT Directors’ emoluments are disclosed as follows:
HeREM BiER
ENEA REARA
ik (Hiita) (Hzto) BARGEIBER act
Salaries Discretionary
and other and
benefits performance  Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b) contributions Total
THET TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
2019
HITEZE Executive directors
RXHE Yuen Man Ying = 2,071 336 97 2,504
BEZ Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,639 288 80 2,007
28l Leung Shing Chiu - 1,607 288 78 2,063
X Lee Po Fun - 1,682 288 78 2,048
- 7,089 1,200 333 8,622
BUFHTEE Indlependent non-executive directors
B e Chan Kim Fai 200 - - - 200
B Tang Koon Hung Eric 183 - - - 183
HEH Wong Lai Ming 173 - - - 173
556 - - - 556
556 7,089 1,200 333 9,178
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12. EFHM ) 12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

FeRAM BB R
ENER  REARL
kA (Hita) (Hizb) RIGHEIL

Salaries  Discretionary

E

LR 5t

<

and other and
benefits  performance Retirement
in kind bonuses scheme
Fee (note a) (note b)  contributions Total
FHT TET THT TET THT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

2018
HITEE Executive directors
R Yuen Man Ying - 1,976 896 93 2,965
BEZ Huen Kwok Chuen - 1,615 768 77 2,460
275 Leung Shing Chiu - 1,661 768 74 2,503
FEX Lee Po Fun - 1,605 768 74 2,447
- 6,857 3,200 318 10,375
BUFHTEE Independent non-executive directors
RiRE Chan Kim Fai 195 - - - 195
b Tang Koon Hung Eric 179 - - - 179
=EH Wong Lai Ming 168 = = = 168
542 - - - 542
542 6,857 3,200 318 10,917
Biat - Notes:
@ EREEASEEKEDNKENEARANITES (a) Being “Salaries and other benefits in kind” paid or payable to
ZHeREMEDEA] - executive directors of the Company in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Group.
b) HBERRBEADZEARNEBERBILHFMESR (o)  The discretionary and performance bonuses are determined
SREMERE - by reference to the Group’s performance and approved by the
remuneration committee.
RELZE2019F X2018F 124318 L FE I EE No directors waived any emoluments during the years ended
EREAAE 31 December 2019 and 2018.
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T B

13. AE&EeHFMAL 13. THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
AEBRAEERFHHMALH  ME (201845 : Y Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
BIRKRRAIES RENE HN - XXHF12 Group, four (2018: four) were directors of the Company
Netrh N —%& (2018F : — &%) ATHBE T whose emoluments are included in the disclosures in note

12 above. The emoluments of the remaining one (2018: one)
individual were as follows:

2019 2018

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

HeREMEYMET Salaries and other benefits in kind 962 931

18 e R IRAEAL Discretionary and performance bonuses 348 390

BRIRETEI K Retirement scheme contributions 18 18

1,328 1,339

EomIEEEA T FESEEMT The emoluments of the highest paid non-director fell within

the following band:

2019 2018

A8 AEL

Number of Number of

Individual Individual

1,000,0017% 7T £ 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1

ENKENTEREEEAE (TEEARTE The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

E)WEFMEERDT management (excluding directors of the Company) were
within the following bands:

2019 2018

A8 AEL

Number of Number of

individual(s) individual(s)

= %1,000,0007% 7T Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1

1,000,001 7t 2= 1,500,000/ 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1 1
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14. W% BB R

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

KAKE &&
1 BERT HEMEEE RORE EhEE g EEkE @&t
Freehold Hotel Leasehold Office Computer Motor Furniture
land building  improvements equipment equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201851718 At 1 January 2018
A Cost 135,822 133,034 120,240 18,003 39,309 20,089 13,266 479,763
25tHTE Accumulated depreciation - (444) (41,097) (12,164) (29,154) (3,166) (6,266) 92,291)
REFE Net carrying amount 135,822 132,590 79,143 5,839 10,155 16,923 7,000 387,472
HE018F12A31A L EE For the year ended
31 December 2018
ENEEFE Opening net carrying amount 136,822 132,590 79,143 5,839 10,155 16,923 7,000 387,472
HE Additions 72,102 4448 1,793 408 1,205 - 859 80,815
Vil Depreciation - (2,816) (27,869) (1535) (3,264) (4,108) (1,778) (41,370)
ERHRE Exchange adjustment 6,696 4,268 2,290 133 7 492 191 14,077
FRRAFE Closing net carrying amount 214,620 138,490 55,357 4,845 8,103 13,307 6,272 440,994
20185128318 R At 31 December 2018 and
201951818 1 January 2019
A Cost 214,620 141,784 124,618 18,560 40,520 20,708 14,333 575,138
ZitHiE Accumulated depreciation - (3,294) (69,261) (13,715) (82,417) (7,396) (8,061) (134,144)
REFE Net carrying amount 214,620 138,490 55,357 4,845 8,103 13,307 6,272 440,994
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14. W15 - BB Rkt (#0) 14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Continued)
XAKE BER GER
1 HtEF EENREE  BORE  BERE e EEXE &3t
Hotel
Freehold and other ~ Leasehold Office  Computer Motor Furniture
land buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles  and fixtures Total

TERL TR TRL TERL TR TRL TERL TEL
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BE019512A31BLLER For the year ended
31 December 2019

ENEEFE Opening net carrying amount 214,620 138,490 55,357 4,845 8,103 13,307 6,272 440,994
BERIREA Transfer from construction

(frit16) in progress (nofe 16) - 271,215 26,108 473 - - - 53,796
HE Additions 303 149 958 1,461 2,135 1 725 5,732
& Disposal - - (53) (1) - - ) (57)
& Depreciation = (3,319) (32,784) (1,684) (3,391) (4,160) (1,907) (47,245)
A% Exchange adjustment 1,032 1,154 773 43 1 67 34 3,104
EXRETE Closing net carrying amount 215,955 163,689 50,359 5137 6,848 9,215 5,121 456, 324
12019812531 At 31 December 2019
AR Cost 215,955 170,312 150,884 20,541 42,657 20,798 15,070 636,217
2iHE Accumulated depreciation - (6623) (100525  (15404) (35809  (11,589) 0949 (17989
REFE Net carrying amount 215,955 163,689 50,359 5,137 6,848 9,215 5121 456,324
20195124318 REEE o 5l E R R E F As at 31 December 2019, freehold land, hotel and other
B #215,955,0007% 7T (20184F : 140,255,000/% buildings and motor vehicles of the Group located in
JT) ~ 163,689,000/ 7T (2018%F : 138,490,000/ Japan with a net carrying amount of approximately
70 ) }.6,459,0007% 7t (20184 : 8,861,000/% 7T ) of HK$215,955,000 (2018: HK$140,255,000),
R BE AR KAZERE L BEREMEFT NS HK$163,689,000 (2018: HK$138,490,000) and
BAERASBEERRITERK (KH5E26) ° HK$6,459,000 (2018: HK$8,861,000) respectively, were

pledged to secure the bank borrowings granted to the Group
(note 26).
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15. ERESE HEARE 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

REEN2019F1 A1 B RMNE AU EREEDNE
16575 WRBI L RE T - FHBE2019F1 811
FRERARBEMEZRHA (RHES3@) - R
hEF B (A12019F1 A1R ) R EA M S
R FERMIEE4(9)(A) °

HEZBHI1tE (AABAZ17)
AEBREEEMEMNREZEERAEEST
ME-BHANTRHEAERETH -

AR B VA EE TR R R SRR R
AEE-BERRBLEEEREANNTE
RET

HKFRS 16 was adopted on 1 January 2019 without
restatement of comparative figures. For an explanation of the
transitional requirements that were applied as at 1 January
2019 (see note 3(a)). The accounting policies applied
subsequent to the date of initial application, 1 January 2019,
are disclosed in note 4(g)(A).

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of properties in the jurisdictions
from which it operates. The periodic rent is fixed over the
lease term.

The Group also leases certain items of plant and equipment,
including travel buses and office equipment. Leases of plant
and equipment comprise only fixed payments over the lease

terms.

1 5 12 & 2 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
RIEBEERNOMNERAEEE Z R FEN

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by

T class of underlying asset is as follows:
20195 720194
12A31H 1H1H
As at As at
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
FHE T FET
HK$’000 HK$’000

FIEEHRMAE Leased for own use,
LAYT & R AN B R carried at depreciated cost:

HEME Rental premises 25,016 34,840
PN RN Office equipment 9,292 12,008
i Travel buses 32,773 58,339
67,081 105,187
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N

15.

FREEE HE&E®)

HEZBHI1EE (AABASZ ) (#)

(Continued)

(Continued)
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Movements of right-of-use assets during the year:

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

HEM WARE R#ES

Rental Office Travel

premises equipment buses

FET FET TER

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

20191 A1H At 1 January 2019 34,840 12,008 58,339
NE Additions 19,158 - 21,091
HE Disposal (596) - -
HENRERE2FE Effect of modification to lease payments (497) = =
4 Amortisation (27,913) (2,715) (46,657)
B 3, Exchange adjustment 24 1) -
M2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 25,016 9,292 32,773

HE B (& LEASE LIABILITIES
AREENZKZIBESTAT : The analysis of the present value of future lease payments is
as follows:

120195 20194

12831H 1H1H

As at As at

31 December 1 January

2019 2019

FHET THET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

mBaE Current liabilities 47,257 36,594
ERBERE Non-current liabilities 20,569 64,125
67,826 100,719
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15. EREEE HEER @ 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)

HEZERMEE (UABAET) (&) Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

(Continued)

FR-HEBBEZZEBHWNT : Movements of lease liabilities during the year:

HEME MO DL
Rental Office Travel
premises equipment buses
TET FTAERT FTHET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
120191 81H At 1 January 2019 34,840 12,008 53,871
NE Additions 19,158 - 20,150
HE Disposal (600) - -
MENFEE 2 XE Effect of modification to lease payments (497 - -
FERAX Interest expense 1,346 689 1,320
MERK Lease payments (28,615) (2,801) (43,081)
b 5 AR Exchange adjustment 38 - -
12019128318 At 31 December 2019 25,670 9,896 32,260
THAREEEFTEN Variable payments not included in the
FEN R measurement of lease liabilities = = 4,507
AREENRZEEEHAOT ¢ Future lease payments are due as follows:
REHREMH AE B{E
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
FTHET TET FTART
R2019%F128318 (#/:#) At 31 December 2019 (note) HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A —F Not later than one year 49,127 1,870 47,257
HBE—FRMELA Later than one year and
not later than two years 12,811 703 12,108
BRMERAEFAA Later than two years and
not later than five years 8,876 415 8,461
HBBAF Later than five years - - -
70,814 2,988 67,826
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15. EREEE HEAE @) 15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES
(Continued)
HEZEREE (LA T) (&) Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)
(Continued)
MHEEE (&) LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)
REHEENK FE HE
Minimum
lease
payments Interest  Present value
TERT TR TET
201951818 (Hfit) At 1 January 2019 (hote) HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THEA—F Not later than one year 67,001 2,876 64,125
HA—FRMEUAA Later than one year and
not later than two years 21,516 1,175 20,341
BBRERAFAA Later than two years and
not later than five years 16,606 1,004 15,602
il F Later than five years 654 3 651
105,777 5,058 100,719
REHEENRK FE RE
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
THET FHET TET
20185128318 (#/7t) At 31 December 2018 (note) HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
AR —F Not later than one year = = -
iR —F RMFAA Later than one year and
not later than two years = - -
HEmE R AFAN Later than two years and
not later than five years - - -
HBiBhF Later than five years = = =
Bat: AEBEEHERBKEIIENEVIREREEMB Note: The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the modified

&L F1658 W E2019F1 1B 2 RE & F
B EL AR UHERELAIRIER B ST
EAFI7THRO AL EHE HERBHEE
B

retrospective approach and adjusted the opening balances
of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 to recognise lease
liabilities relating to leases which were previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17.
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15. EREEE HEAE @

HEZEEE (UAEAS17) (8)

HZE2019F12A31H I FERIBEPERN SR

15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS/LEASE LIABILITIES

(Continued)

(Continued)
LEASE LIABILITIES (Continued)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The following are the amounts recognised in profit or loss for

R the year ended 31 December 2019:
2019
FET
HK$’000
FREEENE (K/i78) Depreciation on right-of-use assets (note 8) 77,285
HEBBEEANFERSZ (A1i28) Interest expense incurred on lease liabilities (note 8) 3,355
RERPERNELE Total amount recognised in profit or loss 80,640
16. EETE 16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
2019 2018
FET T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
M1A18 At 1 January
FHERHEE Opening carrying amount 32,782 4,578
= Additions 150,067 28,252
EEREYE - WE NG Transfer to property, plant and equipment
(Htst14) (note 14) (53,796) -
ME B Exchange adjustment 811 (48)
M12H31H At 31 December 129,864 32,782
M12831H At 31 December
DN Cost 129,864 32,782
2t REEE Accumulated impairment losses = =
R FE Net carrying amount 129,864 32,782
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N

16.

17.

EEIR & 16. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (Continued)
R2019%12 A31 H A EZE T2 55 B 2 48 Bl 72 Construction in progress as at 31 December 2019
R R o represents hotel building being constructed in Okinawa,
Japan.
HE2019F12A31AEFE HEFMEY For the year ended 31 December 2019, imputed interests
358,000 7T (20184F : 126,000/ 7t) (i 5£26) of approximately HK$358,000 (2018:HK$126,000) (note 26)
BEERNAERETRE- were capitalised in construction in progress.
REZE2019F12A31BIEFERN IRRARNERD During the year ended 31 December 2019, the construction
=ik BREERKRA (ERaEE B AR EF B ) B of hot spring bath building was completed and the related
BEWE WENMRE- costs including capitalised interests were transferred to
property, plant and equipment.
REENBER 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
fE1E & EFE Share of net assets 12,371 10,611
JFE Uk B 2 X B BR X Amount due from an associate 6,163 2,348
FESTBSE 2 R R BR 3K Amounts due to associates 3,732 3,900
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17. REENBER (&) 17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)
@ F2019%F K2018%F 12 A31H KBt & A R &7 (a) Particulars of associates as at 31 December 2019 and
BT 2018 are as follows:
Gy R A i i
AR 4 i 2 Bolk FEEK
Place of Percentage of
incorporation/ interest held
Name of company operations indirectly  Principal activities
RRERTHBERER AR ([EGLER]) 72 38% REBEEREREARIRTE
EGL Tours Korea Co., Ltd. (“EGL Korea”) Korea Provision of inbound

package tours in Korea

KA EHEGURAE* ([EGLHAE]) =[N 38% FBZARMABIR M
NIRRT
Kabushiki Kaisha EGL Okinawa* Japan Provision of inbound
(“EGL Okinawa”) package tours in

Okinawa, Japan

®RRetB B ([ABE#E]) =[N 41% RAREHEMIRTE
Niti Niti Travel Co., Ltd. (“Niti Niti Travel”) Japan Provision of local package
tours in Japan

* XA TEE AR * English name for identification purpose only
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17. REtEANRIER (#)

(&

ABEERE

TXEERBEEARNBE QR Z

MBERBE

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continuea)

(b)  Summarised financial information

Set out below is the summarised financial information

of the associates which are accounted for using equity

method:

EGL#E] EGLHE HRE @gt
EGL EGL Niti Niti
Korea Okinawa Travel Total
THER THER THET THER
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HZ2019F12831A LFE For the year ended
31 December 2019
AEEBEARBSE Aggregate amount of the
Group’s associates:
— BN EE ~ Profit or loss 5,789 79 (77) 5,791
—Hih2ERE — Other comprehensive income (1,172) 8 12 (1,152)
FHEKEEE Total comprehensive income 4,617 87 (65) 4,639
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17. REE AR R (#)

b HEEHBE (&)

17. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued)

(b)  Summarised financial information (Continued)

EGLE EGL#H 48 HH i a5t
EGL EGL Niti Niti
Korea Okinawa Travel Total
FHIT FHT FHT FHT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
HZE2018F12831HILEE For the year ended
31 December 2018
NS e AN FCE R Aggregate amount of the
Group’s associates:
— &N BB ~ Profit or loss 8,374 56 (299) 8,131
—HEt2ERE - Other comprehensive income (842) 19 (30) (853)
ZHEREEE Total comprehensive income 7,532 75 (329) 7,278

© [EWTENEEE R AR BEER 2

BRZEKIEE-

(c) Amounts due from/to associates are

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on

demand.

176 =EEERAERLDE  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



AV BImRN T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

N

18

EEHREEE &AfE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

RAFEMBEFEREEHBAEENRE CHER

REBEENT :

Details of the deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised

and movements during the current and prior year are as

follows:
B
I EN BRAE
k% EEIR Hity (Hst) st
Tax losses
Property, carried
plant and Construction forward
equipment in progress Other (note) Total
FET FET FAET FET FET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
201851818 At 1 January 2018 (4,522) (20) 591 1,528 (2,423)
RAEERBEFA/ (k) Credit/(charged) to profit or loss
(K1#£9) for the year (note 9)
—EARBOEREERE ~ Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 4,607 (66) 467 3,403 8,411
—HEREFPNTE - Effect of change in tax rate 256 ) 21 203 476
4,863 (70) 488 3,606 8,887
BE 5 E Translation adjustment 26 ®) (17) 156 163
M20185F12A31H At 31 December 2018 367 (92) 1,062 5,290 6,627
H2019F181R At 1 January 2019 367 (92) 1,062 5,290 6,627
RAEERZF A/ (MB)  Credit/(charged) to profit or loss
(H7:29) for the year (note 9)
—EERBEERTER - Origination and reversal of
temporary differences 9,229 92 (1,519) (1,586) 6,216
FAFEAER Credit to equity for the year - - 462 - 462
BE 5, 3 B Translation adjustment (15) - @) 10 )
H2019F12A31H At 31 December 2019 9,581 - 1 3,714 13,296
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18

EEREESE Q& ®)

SA TR Bk B 7 825 7 L 2 M AE B 5 85 5 7 -

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

(Continued)

The following is the analysis of deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

2019 2018

FE T FAET

HK$’000 HK$’ 000

EIEFR A E B Deferred tax assets 14,561 8,301
EEHIEEE Deferred tax liabilities 1,265 1,674

RAREHR AEEREBELETEEBL
12,002,000 7T (20184 : 11,125,000% 7T ) * A]
R HA PR VE K S 2 AR S 1R 0 A B B 2R 2R FE AR o s
| o 7N 62 B IR AR B B A B TE 5 181 493,296,000
7T (20184F : 3,688,000/ JT.) #5 7 B F W EI & -
LA K FA B 7S EE A 85 18 #912,081,000% 7T (2018
£ 119,526,000/ 7T ) R L E 1+ 4F (20185 : S
) A EER - B4 B R 2R B AR B R ) o 2 B B BT
BARIRBAWBAREEXA2HEEEYER
ZIBESERIE & EE 9 51 498,738,000/ 7T (20184F :
7,904,000 JT ) & 497,081,000 JT (20184 :
11,537,000 7T) * BB T 2B EE (BRER
B RB R HAEAMNE R REL 2 HIEEE) fm
T BERZERQRIRNE R AR A L E & ER
i A AR SE B TR A 18 - B0 R T A TSR IR I B 1E
BEE-
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group has tax losses
arising in Hong Kong of approximately HK$12,002,000
(2018: HK$11,125,000) that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies
in which the losses arose. The Group also had tax losses
arising in the PRC of approximately HK$3,296,000 (2018:
HK3,688,000) that will expire in five years and losses
arising in Japan of approximately HK$12,081,000 (2018:
HK$19,526,000) that will expire in nine to ten years (2018:
nine years) for offsetting against future taxable profits,
respectively. Deferred tax assets have been recognised
for tax losses arising from a subsidiary in Hong Kong of
approximately HK$8,738,000 (2018: HK$7,904,000) and
from a subsidiary in Japan of approximately HK$7,081,000
(2018: HK$11,537,000). Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the remaining tax losses, including
the tax losses arising from the other subsidiaries in Hong
Kong, the PRC and Japan, as it is not probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised in the foreseeable future.
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N

19.

20.

& 19. INVENTORIES
2019 2018
FET FHTT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
A 4 55 6 /Y S SR Merchandise for sale 1,855 4,273
8 5 EYER 20. TRADE RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
THET &I
HK$’000 HK$’'000
H 5 rWER Trade receivables 7,144 10,079

REZZEH RHBEHPR - AKE2EHEK
FRABENRE DT

The ageing analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables

as at the end of the reporting period, based on invoice date,

is as follows:

2019 2018

FET FAT

HK$’000 HK$’000

0—90X 0 - 90 days 7,081 9,672
91—180K& 91 — 180 days 63 326
181 —365K 181 — 365 days - 81
B #E365K Over 365 days - -
7,144 10,079
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20. E 5Bk &)

AEEFFGETESSEFPEEHNERE BEA
10REQX-REZNHB NEBEE HEUWEKRR
BRI

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

The Group has a policy of granting trade customers with
credit terms of generally 10 days to 90 days. The ageing
analysis of the Group’s gross trade receivables, based on
due date, is as follows:

2019 2018
FHET FHT
HK$’000 HK$’000
i) 7 18 5 Not yet past due 1,371 1,347
BEA=EA AR Past due within three months 5,723 8,334

mEARE = AERNMEAMA  Past due more than three months but
within six months 50 317

BHER B SE A ER —F AR Past due more than six months but

within one year - 81
7,144 10,079

M2019F12A31H - BN &S EERK A Lil
BEMNEAE AOPNEZFEREEASB L
BERFEHE MESHASEERERINRSER
ke —MME AEEUTREZEHRERFFL
AR E M5 FARE -

AEEEREB MBS REERIFW PR ARG
EERBREEBRELBE ZRELFY
BB ZRERRAFRATRMEEBIRRE-
RIAERHEERR ESRUEREREXEBRE
EREFUERASHRES R -BREEEETE
AT L& R - R2019F12A31H AARES
RANEZRERECRIFENBRHAEEBEYL
REK-
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The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December
2019 was the carrying amount mentioned above. Trade
receivables that not yet past due related to a large number
of independent customers that had a good track record
of credit with the Group. In general, the Group does not
hold any collateral or other credit enhancements over these
balances.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permit the use of
lifetime ECL provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the ECLs, trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
ECLs also incorporate forward-looking information. As at
31 December 2019, the directors of the Company consider
ECLs against the gross amounts of trade receivables are
immaterial.
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21.

T4 TR e FE R

21. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
FE T T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FREBEE Non-current asset
& (Kiat) Deposits (note) 814 2,669
REEE Current assets
H th & I AR Other receivables 25,151 14,728
& (Mat) Deposits (note) 11,155 11,670
SEENEN Prepayments 144,722 135,717
181,028 162,115
RIS HEEEN TS EERR Y il S5 E The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is
BEMBR (B - ANEE W BmIHFHF T RIEEFR- the carrying amounts of each class of receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.
Htit: ZeBeEL2,117,0008 T 46— KEER Note: The amount included rental deposits paid to a related
A REBTHWHEEZR S (20184 : 2,771,000 company, Great Port, of approximately HK$2,117,000 (2018:
TC) e RIS AEER 2B RN HEBERRE HK$2,771,000). The amount due is unsecured, interest-free

2o

and repayable at the end of the rental periods.
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22, KR ITEFURRITHERREGFHSE 22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS AND CASH AT
BANKS AND ON HAND

2019 2018
FTHERT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RITEFER Cash at banks 208,696 227,896
BERE Cash on hand 4,125 8,414
212,821 236,310
o ERERITE K Less: Pledged bank deposits (6,702) (6,307)

HRAVBRREZ Cash at banks and on hand per
BRITEFEAREFRE consolidated statement of financial position 206,119 230,003
NREENR S LB SEEWEREERERETE The Group’s cash and cash equivalents comprise bank
M EIDZ B M K=+ B R 1T R R IR @m T 5 deposits carrying interests at floating rates based on daily
FZE BB EIETER  R2019F12H831 1 - bank deposit rates and short-term bank deposits carrying
HENMENF0.01%E2.75% (2018%F : 0.15% & interests at prevailing market interest rates ranging from
2.75%) " REIEAHAR A =B A AR © 0.01% to 2.75% (2018: 0.15% to 2.75%) per annum as at
31 December 2019, with an original maturity of three months

or less.
MN2019F 128318 ANEBE FTHRITIFZD As at 31 December 2019, certain bank deposits of the
6,393,000/ 7T (20184 : 6,307,000/ 7T ) 3K # 45 Group amounting to approximately HK$6,393,000 (2018:
BT EBERARERAEENE TE=FHEER HK$6,307,000) were pledged to banks as securities for
IR R AR EERITERAER - letters of guarantee issued to certain third parties on behalf
of the Group and as securities for bank borrowings of the
Group.

R2019F 12 A31H » AN & B E # # £7309,000/% As at 31 December 2019, bank deposit of the Group
T (2018%F B )R 1T HINERAEEBE TR amounting to approximately HK$309,000 (2018: Nil) was
1T1ER (MIEE26) o pledged to secure the bank borrowing granted to the Group

(note 26).

182 =EmiE®RAER-LE EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED



AV BImRN T
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
#H E2019F12 531 H IE & E For the year ended 31 December 2019

N

23.

24.

B SR

B 5 B RREV(E B BRI 2 [R) 41 8 Py 22 A RO R
RERMAR - BES/IREIOK - RIBEFHOR
BHER BRFREERAH )  RESHK
AEEE S RMNEROREINAOT :

23. TRADE PAYABLES

The credit terms of trade payables vary according to the
terms agreed with different suppliers, which normally range
from 1 day to 30 days. Based on the receipts of services and

goods, which normally coincided with the invoice dates, the
ageing analysis of the Group’s trade payables as at the end

of the reporting period is as follows:

2019 2018
THET FB7T
HK$’000 HK$’000
0—90K& 0 - 90 days 43,217 55,105
91—180K& 91- 180 days 2,238 2,117
181—365K 181 — 365 days 1,818 1,339
B 3#E365K Over 365 days 22 188
47,295 58,749

JEstFE R HE M ETER 24. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES
2019 2018
THET F&TT
HK$’000 HK$’000
fEst A Accrued expenses 13,303 13,406
H b fE A BR Other payables 44,091 50,734
57,394 64,140
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25. EHEE 25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES
2019 2018
FHET F&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
BHEaBEEER: Contract liabilities arising from:
i el Travel Related Business
—IRfTE - BEBRTEmKX — Sales of package tours,
IRITHEBAEMEE FIT Products and travel related products 176,294 141,842
—REHT % — Unexpired discount vouchers 8,074 7,878
B JE T Hotel Business 712 495
185,080 150,215
HENEBLEBRYEY —RIMNEROT: Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of

contract liabilities are as follows:

(@) KPR R (a) Travel Related Business
O IEITE - BETTESKE ' =i ()  Sales of package tours, FIT Products and
7=h= travel related products
AEHBEBAERMRRARFIZERISE K Contract liabilities represent advance payments
EnBEEEHNAEBRERER  IE received from customers for services that have
BEZFEMNRK- not yet been performed to the customers or the

control of the products have not been transferred
to the customers.

AREBFERR —FHXAARNE R The Group expects to deliver the goods or
REBRIEABITZEESNEEZHT services to satisfy the remaining obligations of
E-Fr these contract liabilities within one year or less.
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aHEaE )
@ iﬂﬁfﬁf?%ﬁ ( ﬁ)

)

(i)

REE M E T P IR ke 48 B ¥ 15
sz - AEEEEHEISN KK
P BB MR 1T B s R TT AR B E
ZERERN YIREHZBEHEB
HEBLEEK ERARANAE:
EHREREFPHALRRERIR
R N E B HRS RER A -

R2019F12 8318 » & Bt & 81 & 5
MHHEACRTRARBHORSE
1% 48 58 & #98,074,0007 JT (20184 :
7,878,000 7T) - HRZEZEMMH B
WER=TPOER - ANREBER =11
& A ARz U E= o

B I
AHIBEARAREEREEERSE Ik
BEF ZEMKe

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

@)

(b)

Travel Related Business (Continued)
(i) Unexpired discount vouchers

The Group provides discount vouchers to certain
customers for Travel Related Business. The
Group determines this offer represents a material
right to purchase additional package tours or
travel related products in the future two years
and recognised as a contract liability based on
the relative stand-alone price of the performance
obligations in the contract. The contract liability
recognises as revenue when the customer
redeems it for goods or services or when it
expires.

As at 31 December 2019, the aggregate amount
of the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligation in connection to the
unexpired discount vouchers is approximately
HK$8,074,000 (2018: HK$7,878,000) and the
Group will recognise this revenue within 24
months as the discount vouchers are effective for
24 months.

Hotel Business

Contract liabilities represent advance payments
received from customers for hotel services that have
not yet been rendered to the customers.

The Group expects to deliver the services to satisfy the

remaining obligations of these contract liabilities within
one year or less.
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25.

26.

= I-RAC )

TERFAINAHNABEZE

25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (Continued)

The table below details movements in contract liabilities:

2019 2018
F#ET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
M B1H At 1 January 150,215 183,187
AR BN FE W Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of
(GTAFETEHARE) recognising revenue during the year that
mEka a8 E2 D> was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (146,342) (131,441)
A AR 1% 18 8 2 75 RO IR E 75 Increase in contract liabilities as a result of
FEWH (PEERAFE billing in advance of Travel Related
BEERAAEWZZIEE ) MERK Business and Hotel Business,
EHBEZEM excluding those recognised
as revenue in the current year 181,207 146,519
M12831H At 31 December 185,080 150,215
RITIE 26. BANK BORROWINGS
2019 2018
F#ET FAET
HK$’000 HK$'000
mE Current
RITER B HER Bank borrowings, secured 37,620 34,836
FERE Non-current
RITREH 2 Bank borrowings, secured 335,255 234,802
372,875 269,638
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T B

26. SRITEM (&)

2019412 831 H + 49372,875,0007% 7T (2018
% : 269,638,000/ 7T ) KIFRIT & T 2 Al LA 8 BR
[ 8 £7386,103,0007% 7T (20184 : 287,606,000
#or) (M 3E14) % 49309,0005% JT (201845 : &)
(FFsE22) HE TH 2 - BE KR EMERRITE
AEE AR o BEAN - 52 FIRIT1E FE R 494,862,000
77T (20184 : 6,585,000/ 7T ) Jh 1 — K H A& K
BARM — BRI EIERAR R 2 W E B -

2019612 A31H » REBEEE B RIRPIRIT
IR FER —RIBITHEE INERERQRE
AREHAFE R4 5 /142,438,000 7T
(20184F : 142,438,000/ 7T ) * s SRt B IA T E
BIERER:

o  ARFERERHMDEEER:

s RXREAE BERAL REREEERT
B AL RENER:

o #75,672,0007 7t (20184 : 5,609,000/
o)A BEEN T RIER

R20194F 2018512 A31H » st Lt &S MR
RITBELNRMERGEM S BERDNZERTE

=+
e

ARBE(HKREELANBERRE

RITIERIA R
 HRRA B ORI A

BRA) 5 E

B

26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continuea)

As at 31 December 2019, the bank borrowings of
approximately HK$372,875,000 (2018: HK$269,638,000)
were secured by charges over certain property, plant and
equipment and pledged bank deposits with aggregate
carrying amounts of approximately HK$386,103,000 (2018:
HK$287,606,000) (note 14) and approximately HK$309,000
(2018: Nil) (note 22) respectively. In addition, among these
bank borrowings, an amount of approximately HK$4,862,000
(2018: HK$6,585,000) was also secured by a property of a
former non-controlling shareholder of a subsidiary in Japan.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group accepted the facilities
letters issued by banks in Hong Kong and Macau offering
for grant of guarantees, general banking facilities, foreign
exchange facilities and corporate credit cards in aggregate
amounts of HK$142,438,000 (2018: HK$142,438,000) and
the facilities were secured by:

° corporate guarantees provided by the Company;

° undertakings provided by Mr. Yuen Man Ying, Mr. Huen
Kwok Chuen, Mr. Leung Shing Chiu and Ms. Lee Po
Fun;

° a charge over deposits owned by the Group of
approximately HK$5,672,000 (2018: HK$5,609,000).

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, none of the bank
borrowing has been drawn down in relation to the above
facilities letters issued by banks in Hong Kong and Macau.

The bank borrowings are initially measured at fair value,
net of directly attributable costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.
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26.

MITE (&) 26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)
BITEREBERAETREFER0.79%E1.67% The bank borrowings are subsequently measured at
(2018F 1 1.22% 5 1.67% ) IR SE K AT 2 - & amortised cost using effective interest rate of 0.79% to
AEREILREZE R EMET B % 4358,0007% 7T 1.67% (2018: 1.22% to 1.67%) per annum and imputed
(20184 : 126,000/ 7T ) © interest of approximately HK$358,000 (2018: HK$126,000)
was capitalised into construction in progress during the year.
REREHR RITEREBETNXAREETE At the end of each reporting period, total bank borrowings

FEREE were scheduled to repay as follows:

2019 2018
FHE T FET
DWT (HEt) - Analysed into (note): HK$’000 HK$’'000
—F A Within one year 37,620 34,836
—F A FENBIERF Over one year, but within two years 34,844 29,176
MEN BT BERE Over two years, but within five years 101,664 85,607
FEFUE Over five years 198,747 120,019
372,875 269,638
Krat: & Note: The amounts due shown in the repayment schedule are

BEHERED R ESIE NIRE XS RNTE
EERA ,Hﬁﬂfw
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based on the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreement.
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26. RITER (&) 26. BANK BORROWINGS (Continued)

PR2019FE12 A31 H MR ITERFIBIHY W T - Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2019 are

stated below:

JAREEHENER

LLoan denominated in JPY

ERNE=AE=AH
RERTRERE
£ FF2£0.5%

119,841

3-month Tokyo
Interbank

Offered Rate

+ 0.5% per annum

g ZilpS BRR
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
TER
HK$’000
B EFEMER Loan denominated in Japanese Yen (*JPY’) 248,172 SEREA=EAH ARTZER
RARTEAEFE EE
mEEFZE1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years
Offered Rate
+1.0% per annum
B EFEMER Loan denominated in JPY 4,862 Bl & F 5 2 ARBER
1.2% B2
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years

ARZTARER
&z

Payable within
26 years
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26. SRITIE ()

R2018F 12 A31HHRITERFFEBEII AT -

26.

BANK BORROWINGS (Continuead)

Details of the bank borrowings as at 31 December 2018 are

stated below:

i M= BRHER
Principal Interest Repayment
amount rate terms
THT
HK$’'000
B EEEHER Loan denominated in JPY 263,053 FHELH=1EAH BRTZFR
RRBITRERE &
0 E M E1.0%
3-month Tokyo Payable within
Interbank 12 years
Offered Rate
+1.0% per annum
MAEEFEMER Loan denominated in JPY 6,585 Ehkyilp: BRRER
1.2% (L3
Fixed rate Payable within
1.2% per annum 5 years
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27.

28.

B

720194 K 2018512 A31H » st B AN S W3
ZISERARFELOEE  HREESERKNE
HERSEEZHENEZERBMARTOMETK
o EBREEBRAGTENERERKESE
B ANE o

TEEMIA

MR20195F12A81H  AEERELREGNE
¥4 #)215,966,0007% 7T ( 493,032,880,000H [&)
(20184 : 233,899,000/ 7T ( #3,300,400,000H
[B) ) B R B B B) &= [E T2 F) = 42 2 DR > A1 =
BN BARE HIPRITIERA I HIE RN
201951 H4 8 £ & m B Bl 220235412 A 31
E! o

?\/E

MR2019F12A31H  AEBERZEF =
EHNAEINESREEKRTAE MA ﬁ%‘;ﬁ%@
1,304,000 7T (20184 : 2,055,0005 7T 7
“'Lo

201912 A31 B RE AR K2 iR A R B 1E
H—RBUBXFHEMARZESERTHEERA
AEHEE - FIREHNAAEBEATNEET R
AERMNERIEHENTNTNEETRE R
MEMRK RS OEGRMSZ N 2 HETE
o

27.

28.

PROVISION

As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, there is a provision for
reinstatement cost of a leasehold property in Japan, which
relates to the estimated cost of restoring the leasehold
property to its original state at the end of the lease term
in accordance with the lease terms. The main uncertainty
relates to estimating the cost that will be incurred at the end
of the lease term.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had outstanding
floating-to-fixed interest rate swap with a notional contract
amount of approximately HK$215,966,000 (approximately
JPY3,032,880,000) (2018: HK$233,899,000 (approximately
JPY3,300,400,000)) to reduce the impact of interest rate
fluctuation on the secured bank borrowings in Japan. The
swap started on 4 January 2019 with a maturity date on 31
December 2023.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group recognised such
interest rate swap contract as an effective cash flow hedge
with fair value of approximately HK$1,304,000 (2018:
2,055,000) deferred in equity.

The fair value of the outstanding interest rate swap as at 31
December 2019 was valued by Roma Appraisals Limited,
an independent firm of professional valuers. The fair value
of interest rate swap is the estimated amount that the
Group would receive or pay to terminate the swap at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account observable
interest rates and the current creditworthiness of the swap
counterparties.
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29.

30.

B% 2% 29. SHARE CAPITAL
£ qE] &5
Number Amount
T FET
‘000 HK$’000
EE Authorised
/R EH0.1)8 T2 AR Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each
20181 A1H  2018F & At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018
2019412 A31H and 2019 1,000,000 100,000
28 +58
Number Amount
T i F&T
‘000 HK$’000
ERTRBEZEBR Ordinary shares, issued and fully paid
MR2018%F1A1H + 2018%F & At 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018
201912 A31H and 2019 502,450 50,245

&

AEERBEIZABIANGORREDRA-
BEANREEERENAT:

K7 18
AEBE KOG EBREARBZEITRDAFHRIER
BARBEBTRMDEEZ LD

A GHE R
AEBEHRABENMNBAT ZRERAEARE
BMEARMNEBETRATEZHNER-
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30. RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Group’s reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
The natures and purposes of reserves within equity are as
follows:

Share premium

The share premium account of the Group represents the
excess of the proceeds received over the nominal value of
the Company’s shares issued.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the investment costs in subsidiaries and the
nominal value of the issued share capital of the Group’s
subsidiaries.
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30. f##& (&)

SME ot 5
AEBERMIMNERBRREBINEERBERRS
ARBZINEEHEN Z5 -

Ep
b B FR AR B MY 54 () (Vi BT &R & i = e
FTER AN & 5T ISR - MAERFTENRIR S REA AR
BeREWTFHEFTAAANBERZTFEHH
B -

JEEEE
AEEMEERBRERFIEMRIN—KER
MEBAR REERTHE ORFT) BRAFRE
BEBEMK LN —RERMB AR ELIRTHE
R BRDE DL -

BIERPT (BIAE) F37715 B AR AR &
Vo5 B BAEREERE EEREEIZ
R AR A50%H) 7K F o 7220194 K 2018412 A 31
H ATREBEIWNERRRARNS0% 525 T
EETTAED K-

RIEABERESR  ARA—RRAEEMATZ
S 2% )7 8 1096 B e A M
EERBEIAEREA ARAHAT -

BEPBE QL BRERTE R BRAQF]
(R RFMEL 2B AR ) BREFEEEERHE
FA(EEEATEEEEERRZ)BE10%E AT
FEE - EEACHESHEEITEIMELRN
50%FF « BRI B E HEH#E — P BE - A EFEE
A AREEBEFEBBIGEMTMER A
M ZELERESNEREDAREEREER
#35 AT E R EI50%7K F - B 220194 2018
F12A31B IEFE @ BRHERITHE ORI ERAD
AIBEEEERF

30. RESERVES (Continued)

Foreign exchange reserve

Foreign exchange reserve of the Group represents the
exchange differences on translation of the foreign operations
and associates into presentation currency of the Company.

Hedging reserve

Hedging reserve comprises the effective portion of
the cumulative net change in the fair value of hedging
instruments used in cash flow hedges pending subsequent
recognition of the hedged cash flow in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for cash flow hedges in
Note 4(h)(vii).

Statutory reserve

Statutory reserve of the Group is contributed by EGL Tours
(Macau) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated in
Macau and limited by quotas, and Hit Travel Service Co. Ltd,
a subsidiary incorporated in Taiwan and limited by quotas.

Under the Macau Commercial Code Article 377, a subsidiary
is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of profit after
taxation to the statutory reserve until the balance of the
reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of the company’s
share capital. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the
statutory reserve has reached 50% of the subsidiary’s share
capital. Statutory reserve is not distributable.

According to the laws and regulations of Taiwan, a subsidiary
of the Company incorporated in Taiwan is required to set
aside 10% of its profit after taxation to the statutory reserve
until the balance of the reserve reaches a level equivalent to
the company’s share capital.

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC, EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited, a subsidiary incorporated
in the PRC, is required to appropriate 10% of the annual
statutory net profit after taxation (after offsetting any prior
years’ losses) to the statutory reserve fund. When the
balance of the statutory reserve fund reaches 50% of
the entity’s registered capital, any further appropriation is
optional. The statutory reserve fund can be utilised to offset
prior years’ losses or to increase the registered capital.
However, such balance of the statutory reserve fund must
be maintained at a minimum of 50% of the registered capital
after such usages. For the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, there was no profit generated by EGL Tours
(Shenzhen) Company Limited.
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31.

B EsraEl

AR AR AR R R AT 8 (7T 8] ) 2014511
FA13R BB RALAE -

&SR -

H2014F11 A28R R S EMNBRABATF R
Bitdl EF2EMNBERLAMNSERSEEYT
MEEERBARARONELY RBETER
LW H&EeE: (AR aRMRBHERECELD
HEAEBE X FT B SR FTRAUTIE ¢ ()RR AR
MRBEERLERECZENRAPATAEE (BT
632 BT B 3R & AT R A9 E 9 IR T (B R (i AR D E A ©
REOBREZENTRENBBHE=-+/\BRE
o

ERDHBERERERESMHRA (AE2014
F11A28B Bt THF) 2 HXMH A EITE -2
ROBERENTENROBESETYMEREL
B A AR AR - HERX B MR B BB AR 3%
HBEHIER T F 2 BIE W RIER R IE 2R
B o

RAGEITE MM HREITERA M ARTTENRE
PR 328 [R) N A W) 3R PR AR R A 1] EL b BB AR A 5 81 AT
EREMEREMNKE TERTNRNBEESTE
BREERIKBERENMLBEITIEXNELRRALR
BITRDAI10% (ETET REBREEEREETH
%15 ) » BN50,000,0008% °

REERBAFEHEBRBEE L EMER
o FA20194F K2018F 12 A31H « Mt E T iR &
SRR A = RIT R RS AR - BB IR E BRI T 15
EATAWEKREHERRAE LIRFEREF -
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31.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) adopted by the
Company was approved by the shareholders on 13
November 2014.

A summary of the Scheme is set out below:

The Scheme became effective for a period of 10 years
commencing on 28 November 2014. Under the Scheme, the
directors shall, in its absolute discretion select and make an
offer to any eligible participants to subscribe for shares of
the Company at a subscription price being not less than the
highest of (i) the closing price of shares of the Company as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the
date of the offer of grant; (i) the average closing prices of the
shares of the Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets for the five business days immediately
preceding the date of the offer of grant and (iii) the nominal
value of the share. The offer of a grant of options may be
accepted within 28 days from the date of the offer.

The options granted shall be exercisable in whole or in
part in the effective option period (i.e. 10 years from the
commencing date on 28 November 2014). The exercise
period of the options granted is determined and notified by
the directors to the grantee thereof at the time of making an
offer provided that such period shall not exceed the period
of 10 years from the date of the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

The maximum number of shares to be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted at any time under
this Scheme together with options which may be granted
under any other share option schemes for the time being
of the Company must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue immediately following the
completion of the global offering and the capitalisation issue
(but taking no account of any shares issued upon over-
allotment), being 50 million shares.

No share options were granted under the Scheme during
the current and prior years. As at 31 December 2019 and
2018, there were no outstanding options granted under the
Scheme. Share options do not confer rights to the holders to
dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.
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32. BRIKFHE

AEBEERBEBATMELES ([RES])F
2IE B B 1 E B B2000F12 A1 8 48 2 58 fil 14
NERTEGH2EE BB RESTAEE
ZEESE REAEREERNK -BERES
e EXTEREEEBREEBHEARZS%E BN
ZEtEIt R (ZRREETABERAABKE) - &
AARA LB LR A30,0008 T BEETEAH
HEEEFE TIREMA -

BREBBREDEN ARETANRRESAE
ATERHNBETENLERM 828 PER
B A R E HFRKEE

RAREE  REE S (B H KB FH5,941,000
BT (20184 : 5,847,000/ 7T ) » ANFEHEE B IR
AT ISR A e

32.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”)
Schemes Authority in Hong Kong, with effect from 1
December 2000, the Group participates in the MPF Scheme
operated by an approved trustee in Hong Kong and
makes contributions for its eligible employees. Under the
MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are each
required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant income
is HK$30,000. Contributions to the MPF Scheme vest
immediately.

In addition to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, the Group
is also required to contribute a certain percentage of
employees’ monthly basic salaries to the defined contribution
retirement schemes in Macau, Taiwan, the PRC and Japan.

During the year, the aggregate amounts of employer’s
contributions made by the Group were approximately
HK$5,941,000 (2018: HK$5,847,000). No forfeited
contribution was available for offset against existing
contributions during the year.
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33. KRB ZMBNRRKREHEE 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY
@ ARELZABEMRIE (a) Statement of financial position of the Company
2019 2018
ok FE T FHT
Notes HK$ 000 HK$ 000
EEREE ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FRBEE Non-current asset
REB AR ZIKRE Investment in a subsidiary 61,198 61,198
REEE Current assets
AR Prepayments 459 484
JE W Bt /38 A B BR 3K Amounts due from subsidiaries 36(c) 178,797 173,200
AJ Ug [B] £+ 18 Tax recoverable 206 232
RIOTTFERREFRE Cash at banks and on hand 3,134 30,602
182,596 204,518
REEE Current liabilities
FE T 3R I8 K E 4th JE TR Accruals and other payables 3,659 6,016
FERTHT B A Bl BR 3K Amount due to a subsidiary 36(c) 1,100 1,100
4,759 7,116
RBEEFE Net current assets 177,837 197,402
BEFE Net assets 239,035 258,600
g EQUITY
[N Share capital 29 50,245 50,245
] Reserves 33(b) 188,790 208,355
R EEE Total equity 239,035 258,600
RRESFE On behalf of the Board of Directors
RXH 2 &
Yuen Man Ying Leung Shing Chiu
HITES HWITES
Executive Director Executive Director
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33. ARRZMBRREREE &) 33. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
b) AR EIREE (b) Reserves of the Company

B R E REBEF Foy

Share Retained
premium earnings Total
FHET FHT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
72018F181H At 1 January 2018 145,335 72,511 217,846
FE i F Profit for the year = 558 558
ENRE (Haz11) Dividends paid (note 11) - (10,049) (10,049)

2018F12H31A & At 31 December 2018 and

201951 81H 1 January 2019 145,335 63,020 208,355
F S5 F Profit for the year = 533 533
BERARERE (Hfat11) Final dividends paid (note 71) - (20,098) (20,098)
20195128318 At 31 December 2019 145,335 43,455 188,790
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34. B QA 34. SUBSIDIARIES
R2019F12A31H » AR AR T5IH B "ﬁﬁ&ﬁ As at 31 December 2019, the Company had direct or
EHEABEEDS ZERQFEELAEBRA indirect interests in the following subsidiaries, all of which
HEAFBEHWT : are private companies with limited liability, the particulars of
which are set out as follows:
ML/
AR ETE BEmy ERITRARRE 1L IR 1E IEEH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
Hi f
Directly Indirectly
RREERSEBRAA REEAREHS 337,025 M0 100% - REEK
£ $£337,025% T
EGL Management Group BVI 337,025 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling United States dollar
(‘US$") 337,025
RRERTIHARAR BB 3,315,000 & &% - - 100% {REIRITE B RITERREY
£ ££3,315,000% 7T AT A B E o B BRS
EGL Tours Company Limited Hong Kong 3,315,000 ordinary shares Provision of package tours, FIT
totalling HK$3,315,000 Products and ancillary travel
related products and services
RRERTH (BR)BRAF BB 221 R E AR - - 100% REHBANLRRITE BH
BB TEmREMERTHEEE R
KR %
EGL Tours (Japan) Company Limited Hong Kong 221 ordinary shares Provision of outbound package
totalling HK$221 tours, FIT Products and
ancillary travel related products
and services in Japan
BRERTHERAA BiE 550,0008% & i@ - - 100% EEEE
£ #£550,000/ 1
i-Evertravel Company Limited Hong Kong 550,000 ordinary shares Inactive
totalling HK$550,000
RRERITHE CRP)BRAF RP 1,800,000 7T - 100% {REIRITE B RITERREY
WIRITIER E o R RS
EGL Tours (Macau) Company Limited Macau Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) Provision of package tours, FIT
1,800,000 Products and ancillary travel

related products and services
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34. HBAR (&)

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

A&/
AR AR gemd BRTRARRA FE 1 PR TEEH
Place of
incorporation/  Issued and fully paid
Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
¢ %
Directly Indirectly
RBRERITH (RIDBRAF" H BARRAE - 100% RPEREAR RS IRTE
AE#3,850,0007C
EGL Tours (Shenzhen) The PRC Paid up capital of Renminbi Provision of inbound and local
Company Limited"* (‘RMB") 3,850,000 package tours in the PRC
RREER (BR)BERAR EEEBRES 10081 - 100% REER
& #1,000% T
EGL Holdings (Nippon) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
A €4 Zipang. S. §* ([Zipang |) AR 475R XD - 80% R BARRMRER RS
£ £23,750,0008 [E
Kabushiki Kaisha Zipang. S. S* Japan 475 shares Provision of travel bus services in
(“Zipang’) totalling JPY23,750,000 Japan
RBEER (M) ERA EEEBRES 10081 - 100% REER
& #1,000% T
EGL Holdings (Asia) Limited BVI 100 shares Investment holding
totalling US$1,000
EVRTHRD AR AT =y 2,000,0008% f& 17 - - 62% REBREARKTE
(MEumkITAE]) £ 20,000,000 & #
Hit Travel Service Co. Ltd* Taiwan 2,000,000 shares Provision of inbound package
(“Hit Travel”) totalling Taiwan dollar tours in Taiwan
20,000,000
RRERESEERAA EEEBRHES 10081 - 100% REER
AH100ET
EGL Investment Group BVI 100 shares Investment holding
Company Limited totalling US$100
REBEBSERAH B RE R - 100% EEEG
(AITE [RRERE (R E) CESbow
BRRAE])
EGL Trading Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Inactive
(formerly known as “EGL Investment totalling HK$1
(China) Company Limited”)
BESBRERAH EBERRHS 1RRMN 6H81ET - 100% REER
Ebisu Holdings Company Limited BVI 1 share totalling US$1 Investment holding
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34. BT (&)
SMR/

34. SUBSIDIARIES (Continuea)

RNEEE e ERTRAZRA FEA5 R & TEXH

Place of

incorporation/  Issued and fully paid

Name of company operations share capital Attributable equity interest  Principal activities
Hi I
Directly Indirectly
BESREABRRA BB 1REBR - 100% JZEER
AHIET
Ebisu Investment Company Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share Investment holding

totalling HK$1

Ebisu Growth Limited* B B2 52 410,000,000 - 100% #H FEREEERBE
([ Ebisu Growth |)

Ebisu Growth Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
(“Ebisu Growth”) JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan

East Global Limited" B B2 i 410,000,000 - 100% #H - FEREEERBE
([East Global ])

East Global Limited* Japan Paid up capital of Ownership, development and
(‘East Global”) JPY10,000,000 management of hotel in Japan

* FR XX T A R S
# BHBEEREMNINEBEEDRE

HE2019F K2018F 12 A31B It EEMEH B HE
IEPNGI

BENE A RN RSHRBETEMNERES -

35. IFERER

2019412 A 31 A FE 4% IR 25 48 58 492,444,000
7570 (20184F : 3,136,00078 70 ) * H AR ZipangIEiZ
% # 2= JE {5 & & 7 {5 49270,000/% 7T (2018%F :
538,000/ 7T) * M= S HRITHEFEIE R EZSFEIEE
B #92,714,0007% 7T (20184 : 3,674,000/
TL) o ZEMB AR ZEERERT TR REK
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35.

English name for identification purpose only
s registered as a wholly-foreign owned enterprise under the
PRC law

There was no addition or disposal of subsidiary during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
the end of the reporting period.

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The total non-controlling interests as at 31 December 2019
is approximately HK$2,444,000 (2018: HK$3,136,000), of
which net liabilities of approximately HK$270,000 (2018:
HK$538,000) is attributable to the non-controlling interest
of Zipang and net assets of approximately HK$2,714,000
(2018: HK$3,674,000) is attributable to the non-controlling
interest of Hit Travel. The non-controlling interests of these
subsidiaries are considered to be immaterial.
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36. ARG 36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
BARIGEMBERERNEMEDRERECZX IR In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
AEeRIN BARFE HET 2R ZW0T elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

following transactions were carried out with related parties:

@ RAEFEEXBEET XS (@) Significant related party transactions
auring the year

2019 2018
Bz FTEx FET
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
XNTHERARIZHE Rental paid to a related company
—RE1T - Great Port () 16,017 16,629
FHIRMIRTTE  AAITEMN&  Amount received for provision of
BWENERITHBER R package tours, FIT Products and
REMBEERRMEI 28 ancillary travel related products and
services from a related company
—RET — Great Port (i) 134 126
FHIRHIRTTE  BMR{TEMM  Costs charged by associates regarding
BB RITHBER KR the provision of package tours, FIT
AR5 FR B = A AIUE 2 & A Products and ancillary travel related
products and services
—EGLH 48 - EGL Okinawa (i) 22,179 27,772
—EGLEE ~ EGL Korea (i) 21,685 33,239
) B 2 1 ) 8H 6 Bk 7T AR B Sales of travel related products and
Em &R services to associates
—EGL*H 4B - EGL Okinawa (i) 3 8
—EGLEE _ EGL Korea (i) 3 3
B—REEQRKR 2 Advertising sponsorship income from
EEEHRA an associate
—EGL% - EGL Korea (il 729 493
Al — 5K B 1 A /E L ER B Purchase from a related company
—Hush Home Hong Kong - Hush Home Hong Kong Limited
Limited (i) 9 -
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36. ABARG (7)
@ REFEEAFELKX S (B)
Wizt -
() ZXNTHAEQRRAZHEESRAIZIRNEEES

BREPBEASEEFEEARRITZHEE
ek IR SRAETT o

(i) ZEXSHERETHTE ZIERKETT

ARABATEERALE BELE RELEM
FULNARBETZEETAURHARNETZ
Pt o

Hush Home Hong Kong Limited Z M — & &
BBREENRR-

B EXFTREEIN RAFRLEAFER
ERE R NA B SE MK E QRS ER]
VEARREEZFEEARDIEERN-

b) FTEEEAEZFHY
REE EENHEMTIEERABKEZH

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

@)

(b)

Significant related party transactions
aduring the year (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Rental expenses paid to a related company were
conducted in the normal course of business and in
accordance with terms of the lease agreements entered
into between the Group and the related company.

(i) The transactions were conducted on the basis of
mutually agreed terms.

The executive directors of the Company, Mr. Yuen, Mr.
Huen, Mr. Leung and Ms. Lee, are also directors and
have equity interests in Great Port.

The sole shareholder of Hush Home Hong Kong
Limited is the daughter of Mr. Huen.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party, and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of directors and other members of

BT : key management during the year was as follows:
2019 2018
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
52 HfE B 18 A Short-term employee benefits 10,061 11,750
BERZ T Post-employment benefits 351 336
10,412 12,086

©) JEK - TENHIE L AR /SRR £
ERZEBINEER
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()

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on
demand.
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37. EXRREEHERKIE 37. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS
@ EAXRE (a) Capital commitments
BRAANEENEEVE BMEMIHEARE Capital commitments in respect of capital expenditure
EIRENEARS 2 EREAEMT of acquisition of property, plant and equipment and

construction in progress for the Group are as follows:

2019 2018

FHET AT

HK$’000 HK$’000

ERTAE R B Contracted but not provided for 136,120 33,318
201912831 H » Full EAEIEF B EHER As at 31 December 2019, the capital commitments
HAMGEZNBEETEE - above mainly related to the construction of hotel

building in Okinawa, Japan.
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)

37. EXREEHREKRIE &)

©)

EETHEHRIE
TERATHNA
REER018FRBEEEHEMHES T
ME -WARBRIREE T HEZVIFH
HeE—Z=RF-

AEETARERELEHER THRE
REEENFERINABLT:

37. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
As leasee

The Group leases a number of premises, office
equipment and travel buses under operating leases in
2018. The leases run for an initial period of one to five
years.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments
under those non-cancellable operating leases falling
due as follows:

2018
FE T
HK$’000

HEYE Rented premises
—F A Within one year 27,141
FEZFEERAF(EHEMTE)  Inthe second to fifth year, inclusive 6,449
33,590

WA Office equipment
—F A Within one year 2,839
F_FEERAF(EEREMF) In the second to fifth year, inclusive 11,270
14,109

HERED L Rented travel buses

—F A Within one year 36,274
F_FE2FERF(SEEEME)  Inthe second to fifth year, inclusive 21,455
57,729
st Total 105,428

204 =EEERAERLDE  EGL HOLDINGS COMPANY LIMITED
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37. EXREEHEKIE#)

b) EBEHEARE (&)
TERATN (&)

AEBARETYE RAREBEREEERLZ
HERFEBA BB REEESEER]
FITENFEALEBERE - AEECHALE
B AIE B S B HRE RIS 165% o
WRIEZ 7% - A& B 201961 A1 8 2 RE
BNBOAESKELARUEREEZEA
E2HEBE (RMHE3@)) - 5201951 A
18 RIETE R E4QA) Z R - K2R
HENRRGEVBRARTERAEE
BE MABASERRBENKFBRH
158 -

38. B fAEE

AEEZESEEBRER:

(@) MERAREFELEZEN UHERKRR
B3 B 5 J 73 EL A 45 0 B 75 KR 2

b) ZRFAEENBELRER: K

© RNBAKERERERENEHRES-

AEERBEBRESHEREEAN KD BER
B RN BEAEERSREMEANRZ
REBERBERERE BEAEHRSLERE
BARER  ARRENGEMRRE Rz B2 8
IKF o REEE R R EATEABBERE -

37. CAPITAL AND OPERATING LEASE
COMMITMENTS (Continuea)

(b) Operating lease commitments (Continued)

As leasee (Continued)

The Group is the lessee in respect of a number of
premises, office equipment and travel buses held under
leases which were previously classified as operating
lease under HKAS 17. The Group has initially applied
HKFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach.
Under this approach, the Group adjusted the opening
balances of retained earnings at 1 January 2019 to
recognise lease liabilities relating to these leases (see
note 3(a)). From 1 January 2019 onwards, future
leases payments are recognised as lease liabilities
in the consolidated statement of financial position in
accordance with the policies set out in note 4(g)(A), and
the details regarding the Group’s future lease payments
are disclosed in note 15.

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives include:

(@)

(b)

(©)

to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders;

to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the
Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its

capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and

shareholders’ returns, taking into consideration the future

capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,

prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating

cash flows and capital expenditures, and potential strategic

investment opportunities. The Group does not currently

adopt any formal dividend policy.
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38. EEEREIE »)

AEEEREAER  WRELEN A Z L
HEEEZRRBSHBYHLETRE RERHH
REAGER AREHRNBRZEESRELY
AR ARRREEAR BT MMEEHL
EEENRE-

AAREEEREXZBLEREAR-RK2019
F K2018F12A31H ZEARSE N A AL
353,021,0005% Jt 358,151,000/ /T & B B 4%
ZREFZEReRENERNRAT RBERE S

REWER RRBIERKF-

39. M EREL
ASEERAEXBARTEHENE F5 RE
B RINERR -EF2FEHNEEUDNT RFIE
EREEEAKRBAEE 2T SRR (BREMNER
SNEERFAEBAES) FERBRIADHESE

%o — MM T @ A B R bR E IR FEVR ST IR A

@ FERE
AEEEASIEBITERMNEENTERE
BEEFEESRTERMEENRESRE
1) 2= & g o

20195 - REE SRR E B F BEER

ZEE LB ATRE M SR o K =

ENBREMGBERAEE  BERER

Tﬁﬁ%ﬁ& M) 2= 4= 53 AR LA 9 ) o B 350 BB 2R
B {8 RN R 2 R
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38.

39.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions
and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets. In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders, issue new shares, raise new debts or
sell assets to reduce debt.

Management of the Company regards total equity as
capital. The amount of capital as at 31 December 2019
and 2018 amounted to approximately HK$353,021,000
and HK$358,151,000 respectively, which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
operating cash flows and capital expenditures and the
potential strategic investment opportunities.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Exposures to interest rate, credit, liquidity and foreign
currency risks arise in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The board of directors meets periodically to
analyse and formulate measures to manage the Group’s
exposure to market risk (including principal changes in
interest rates and foreign currency rates), credit risk and
liquidity risk. Generally, the Group employs a conservative

strategy regarding risk management.

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk arising from
bank deposits and cash flow interest rate risk arising
from bank borrowings at floating rate.

During 2019, the Group aimed to maintain a suitable
proportion of fixed and floating rate borrowings in order
to stabilise interest costs. Interest rate hedging ratio is
determined after taking into consideration of the market
trend and the Group’s cash flow pattern. Interest
rate swap was employed to hedge exposures or to
modify the interest rate characteristics of the Group’s

borrowings.
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39. B RERER &)

@

()

FIE 2 ()
AEBEHRITERARNRITERNRTH
BRE RS MAZRSRE 2N XRER K
SHESRRAREEERRITHERT X
BRI NEKR RHRAGEBRITHERER L
BrREBIEEE-

118 1) = pA G 40 38 I SRR 5% 1M T A Lt B]
SHRERRF[FILE  AAEEHNFEEF
AR B & 5 38 40 2k 4 #9149,0007% 7T
(20184 : 161,000 L) - BEEETEME
b F) B A58 N kR 4> 4918,00078 7T (2018
F:6,00087T) o BREZFIEE B i
HmHpogimes-

BN LeNREEHFNEE TEES
HIRFIE A B AR BB AL -

=B
EERRE-—HERIAZRIHUTHESR
FERRTEEBTEEELHAEEERK
a2 Bk -

AEEHEGEzEREERREIZRENA
FEEBRTAEFETEE ERNEE
HIRER 2 &R EE 2 REE (A0 FE39()
Bt ) o

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

@

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)

The Group’s bank balances expose it to cash flow
interest rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank balances. The directors of
the Group consider the Group’s exposure to interest
rate risk in respect of bank balances is not significant
as interest-bearing bank deposits are within short
maturity periods in general.

If the interest rates had been increased or decreased
by 5% at the beginning of the year and all other
variables were held constant, would increase
or decrease the Group’s profit for the year and
retained earnings by approximately HK$149,000
(2018: HK$161,000) and the capitalised interest on
construction in progress would have been increased
or decreased by approximately HK$18,000 (2018:
HK$6,000). The assumed changes have no impact on
the other components of equity.

The increase or decrease by 5% represents directors’
assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest
rates over the year until the end of next reporting
period.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge its
obligation under its terms and cause a financial loss to
the Group.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk mainly
arises from granting credits to customers in the
ordinary course of its operations and is limited to the
carrying amounts of financial assets recognised at the
end of the reporting period, as summarised in note
39(f).
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390. B EREE 2

b EEERE (&)
REBEBEHERE 5 ME M B YR AR 2
EXEERRREST AEEAREERE
Al fE Bl 2 5 ¥ F AL A RS RIZ R
SHFEHIIBZENEREERR KAEE
ZRITHERTFRNEE RF - E BA
REBERRT AKELREBRLOEX
EERR-

REE B e F B M 5 S 2RI E 95 P AT BB
M ER B EEBIRELBE % £
At TR B 2 RUREAFRATERE
EERBHE AEE-ERSBERAERER
NEREEEENE S RERTE2EHER
- BHRUEZAREEBRI2EER
ANBENBORERETR BHREEE
BIR2Z T EEBABERKIRED
M —REBEEFRIL T RATEEER 5
SAERMEEER 85 RUKERN I E205
BZREERBERREESR BRI REH
REDHE-

2 5 e W AR ) T8 B B 18 & 58 30K - 60
K Q0K HA I B iB0K B » £ 58 5 Bl
t 50.5% 1% 5% %10% - NF [E & 5 &
WHRZ B EEEEEEEE) T Z2HR
REHEEEEXRET 2 ESRKE 2B
TRNEBEREY ARAESRAEE
20194 K2018%F 12 A31B L FEE FEW
IR BB IREBEHEL~EKR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Crediit risk (Continued)

The Group’s trade and other receivables are actively
monitored to avoid significant concentrations of credit
risk. The Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk from any single counterparty or any group
of counterparties having similar characteristics. The
Group’s bank balances are deposited with major banks
in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC, Japan and Taiwan.
The Group has no other significant exposure to credit
risk.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits
the use of the lifetime ECLs provision for all trade
receivables. The Group always measures the loss
allowance for trade receivables at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs. The ECLs on trade receivables are
estimated by reference to past default experience of
the debtor and current market condition in relation to
each debtor’s exposure. The ECLs also incorporated
forward-looking information with reference to general
macroeconomic conditions that may affect the ability of
the debtors to settle receivables. To measure the ECLs,
the trade receivables have been grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due
according to the ageing as disclosed in note 20.

Expected loss rate of trade receivables are assessed to
be 0.5%, 1%, 5% and 10% for the amounts less than
30 days, 60 days, 90 days past due and over 90 days
past due respectively. There is no change in the ECLs
rate for trade receivables during the year mainly due
to no significant change in the historical default rates
of trade receivables based on which the ECLs rate is
determined. The directors of the Company considered
the loss allowance provision for trade receivables was
immaterial during the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018.
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39. B RERER &)

(b)

1= B (%)
AEEEERBEEEDTHELAEEER
(@A) PINAEEEZRER ZH FHE
REZBEENR YEHER AEEZ
AEBHMBEYRZEEEERRYE TE
R AEBEFEEMEYKIEZEERR B
RRERARRERBIEZMAZORBRER
At RE+—EABREEHEEN &
EFRUEERZEMEEBERY TERARM
18 F 2 I £ e R B PR A HR B 4 o

BHERXZBERF 2 ERBRRLE
BB RS TR R BRI E B T 2R
[~ & AR A B 7R 5= [ 5 e M BR TR 4 (R
ZREBRRLBIR -

FhE MR E N B R HE 2 AR BR B Bz 1=
BERE ENX5HFERLER T RME
AR AEEHRARNRZHFEEE
WElEZEERRAR BAAKETER
ZEEBARWBRE|IBEKREBE-

AEERSTEZR/FRRNBERELHESR
BRERAFRzeBEE Rt ASEL T
BEHEFEREERR-

RAFE AEE-—HEBTREEERE
BREFBRREARE -

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group takes into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate, for example the Group considers
the consistently low historical default rates of
counterparties, and concludes that credit risk inherent
in the Group’s outstanding other receivables is
insignificant. The Group has assessed that other
receivables do not have a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition and risk of default is
insignificant, therefore the ECLs for these receivables
were immaterial under the 12-month ECLs method and
no loss allowance provision was recognised for both
years.

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss
experience over the past 5 years. These rates are
adjusted to reflect differences between economic
conditions during the period over which the historic
data has been collected, current conditions and
the Group’s view of economic conditions over the
expected lives of the receivables.

With respect to credit risk arising from the amounts
due from a related company and an associate, the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from repayment
default of counterparties is limited as the counterparties
have good credit history and sound financial position,
and the Group does not expect any significant loss of
uncollected advances from these entities.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit
risk associated with cash at banks since they are
deposited with credit worthy financial institutions.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group
throughout the year and are considered to be effective.
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39. MFREREIE 2)

© HEEHEZEE
nBETRRYRASEELRITEER
RetHttemEERATeRABHEBZ
REMEEMER -

ehEERERERPHZTE-

AEEZBRAEHMERREARERARE
R RS ESR L - AREZRPESE
EEEEERAREERSREZE NN
BITHEEBRE AREREANEEZE
EERRDESZEERIR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or
other financial assets.

The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and
mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements in the short and long
terms. The liquidity of the Group is primarily dependent
on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows from
operations to meet its debt obligations. The Group
relies on internally generated funds as a significant
source of liquidity.
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39. B RERER &)

©

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

TR E TR (&) (c) Liquidity risk (Continued)
TREYREARAEEETAELCREABER The following tables show the remaining contractual
MESBARERBERURReRE (BEMN maturities at the end of the reporting period of the
SR KRS AREFEHIRTHE (EF)) Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and derivative
FIstEmANENT) SHENFEEE 4 Em B financial liabilities, based on undiscounted cash
HARAREESBYNMNEEHE: flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current
at the reporting date) and the earliest date the Group
can be required to pay:
—EE WENRL
BHRER —FUR BTEE  BFIEB
REE RERELE Lk WE hE TENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year oneyear  two years
Carrying undiscounted oron  butwithin  but within Over
amount  cash flows demand  twoyears  fiveyears five years
TEL TER TER TER TER TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2019
FTESREE: Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
BHRAE Trade payables 47,295 47,295 47,295 - - -
i3 EF”EMW 18 Accruals and other payables 57,394 57,394 57,394 - - -
BN Amounts due to associates 3,732 3,732 3,732 - - =
RITER Bank borrowings 372,875 378,234 37,991 35,691 103,063 201,489
HEGR Lease liabilities 67,826 70,814 49,127 12,811 8,876 -
549,122 557,469 195,539 48,502 111,939 201,489
WFBLEE2TESBERE  Net-settled derivative
financial liabilities:
MEEH Interest rate swap 1,304 1,350 M7 363 570 -
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390. B EREE 2
© FEELER (%)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

—FH0E WEML:
BHRER  —FNUN BTER  ETEB
REE RenzRd Bl MmE hE RAENE
Total Within Over Over
contractual one year one year two years
Carrying  undiscounted or on but within but within Qver
amount  cash flows demand two years five years five years
THT TR THT TR THT THR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2018
FITESREE: Non-derivative
financial liabilities:
EHEME Trade payables 58,749 58,749 58,749 - - -
FER IR R H e (TR Accruals and other payables 64,140 64,140 64,140 = = =
RN K Amounts due to associates 3,900 3,900 3,900 - - -
RITER Bank borrowings 269,638 271,598 35,236 29,532 86,378 120,452
396,427 398,387 162,025 29,532 86,378 120,452
WEFBLE 2 TESRERE Net-settled derivative
financial liabilities:
ilkgeri Interest rate swap 2,055 1,821 469 417 932 3
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39. B RERER &)

@ SMEERE
SNERBRE-EEBIAZARBERA
KRR RBEINEEZS B EERD
Z BB

REBFAZINER - ZFRMR KB AFER
SEERNNEEB EKRERTE -
BHRTER REC RS S EKRTH
BEMEBRBEEZ WS  AERNBEER
Ko B B 14 7 T AR B AR A 2 RIS AR N o AN EF
& ANEMH51.7% (20184 : 53.1% ) Z R
AN #8.4% (20184 : 8.0% ) 2 W zk LA FEAR
SEERNNEEE 2 BEITE-

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates.

The Group has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the revenue from provision of
package tours, FIT Products, travel bus services,
ancillary travel related products and services as well as
costs of services consumed in hotel accommodation
and ancillary hotel related services in currencies
other than the group entities’ functional currency.
Approximately 51.7% (2018: 53.1%) of costs and
approximately 8.4% (2018: 8.0%) of the Group’s
revenue are denominated in currencies other than the
group entities” functional currency for the year.
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@ SMEESR (&)
AEERKEENERR - ZZRRKAR
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39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(d)  Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The Group also has foreign currency exposures. Such
exposures arise from the balances of assets and
liabilities in currencies other than the group entities’
functional currency. The carrying amounts of the foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities at
the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019 2018
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EE Assets
| JPY 45,228 45,054
AR RMB 3,976 6,247
49,204 51,301
af& Liabilities
=] JPY 24,306 30,221
AR RMB 199 96
24,505 30,317

EEEEBTYERINEER 2 EFHEAR
SMNERB - BEEEEHIRIEE RESEE
BERENGEER ZINERR -

HAEPITEBTE SRS EN EERR
AREEFRFT INERBATEKX
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The management monitors foreign currency exposure
by closely monitoring the movements of foreign
currency rates. The management has set up a policy to
require group entities to manage their foreign exchange
risk against their respective functional currency.

The directors consider that the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk in respect of MOP is not
significant because MOP’s fluctuation with HK$ is
immaterial.
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39. B RERER &)

(@

SNE RS (%)
TR2JIARARERREMRAZEAR
RZINEER QAR E)  AEE 2 F
A R R BN AW HIR 2O - 8
REDMBRAETRETNEERE 2N
SEHFENAEB AR ZHRAER - TXIE
R RETT AR E R THENRE T M A
SAIR N HRB T A B R R E A
A REMESELRSHRTE TRE
B AR INEE KRR I G RANM
TEEEASERAINERR  KKRERE
ERBEINERE R B HEH M RETNE -

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(@)

Foreign currency risk (Continued)

The following table indicates the approximate change in
the Group’s profit for the year and retained earnings in
response to reasonably possible changes in the foreign
exchange rates to which the Group has significant
exposure at the end of the reporting period. The
sensitivity analysis includes balances between Group
companies where the denomination of the balances
is in a currency other than the functional currencies of
the lender or the borrower. A positive number below
indicates an increase in profit and other equity where
HK$ strengthens against the relevant currency. For a
weakening of HK$ against the relevant currency, there
would be an equal and opposite impact on the profit
and other equity, and the balances below would be
negative. The 5% change in foreign exchange rate is
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally
to key management personnel and represents
management’s best assessment of the possible
changes in foreign exchange rates.
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39. B ERRER @) 39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
@ SIMEE SR () (d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)
AR SR E 9 3T 5 AR 38 % 5 4 X ¥ JINEE [ The following sensitivity analysis has been determined
R7BREABDLLEDET  WRBEFEER based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
BHAE exchange rates taking place at the beginning of the

reporting year and held constant throughout the year.

2019 2018
FERANRRERF FERMNRRE BT
®m,/ (D) #Em/ i)
Increase/(decrease) Increase/(decrease)
in profit for the year in profit for the year
and retained earnings and retained earnings
H AR =| ARE
THER THER T TERT
JPY RMB JPY RMB
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EXEE: Changes in exchange rate:
BT R INEFHES% HK$ appreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies (873) (158) (619) (257)
I RN B E5% HK$ depreciates by 5% against
the foreign currencies 873 158 619 257
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39. B RERER &)

© AIEE
TREIBRBEAALBESZSRIEAALEET

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(e) Fair value

The following table provides an analysis of financial

BRZERT AN instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value
hierarchy:
F—8: HREEXBEINERMS 2R Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
B (CREFHE) markets for identical assets or liabilities;
F-4: BTE—LRABEEZHREN Z Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included
BEENBEZTERE ASUE within Level 1 that are observable for the
A AEE (BNER) ki (A asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)
BEERE) & or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and
E=4: BENABEBETIIERBUEZEMT Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are
35 2 & A EUE (A B R A 2R not based on observable market data
%) e (unobservable inputs).
20194 20184
12H31H 12A31H
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
=R Liability B_H
TASRmIT A Derivative financial instrument Level 2 1,304 2,055

H E2019%2018FE12A31H ILFE £ 4
ZEWEER -

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there was no transfer between levels.
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)

390. B EREE 2

Y

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

HEFIE 7z i EERE EHE () Summary of financial assets and liabilities by
category
SEEMBRARF 2N ZETEY RIAT The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated

TREERTRAGBER:

statement of financial position related to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

2019 2018
TET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
SREE Financial assets
R HK AT E 2 Financial assets measured at
TREE: amortised cost:
B 5 YR Trade receivables 7,144 10,079
A1 N H At B U AR Deposits and other receivables 37,120 29,067
JFE Lk B 5 X B BR X Amount due from an associate 6,163 2,348
EHRRITER Pledged bank deposits 6,702 6,307
BT EALRBEFER® Cash at banks and on hand 206,119 230,003
263,248 277,804
TRIBEE Financial liabilities
BEHEKAGTEZ Financial liabilities measured at
TRBE: amortised cost:
B 5 EMNER Trade payables 47,295 58,749
FEET IR K E A FE AR Accruals and other payables 57,394 64,140
JE A~ B 2 1 B BR 3R Amounts due to associates 3,732 3,900
RITRERK Bank borrowings 372,875 269,638
HEBE Lease liabilities 67,826 -
549,122 396,427
BEAZAABETABRRZD Financial liability designated at FVTPL:
CRIAE:
AR HE 4 Interest rate swap contract 1,304 2,055
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40.

METIMELEARZHE

TEHIASEARETHFELREED Y

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

ZEi arising from financing activities:
RITIENR PTEAR
Bank Derivative
borrowings liability
(Hi:326) (Hiat28)
(note 26) (note 28)
FHET FHET
HK$ 000 HK$’000
M2018F181H At 1 January 2018 250,931 -
RMEREREL T Changes from financing cash flows:
PG IRITE KSR Proceeds from new bank borrowings 239,377 =
BERITER Repayment of bank borrowings (228,525) =
EAIFE Interest paid (3,308) =
BMERSREZ AT Total changes from financing cash flows 7,544 =
ME W A Exchange adjustment 7,661 =
H b E B - Other changes:
FMEHAZ Interest expense 3,913 =
HmENERER Other borrowing costs prepaid (388) =
BERLEREA Capitalised borrowing costs 126 =
JE A~ A1 B Interest payable (149) =
NABEESE Fair value change = 2,055
H & Eh4aza Total other changes 3,502 2,055
720185128316 At 31 December 2018 269,638 2,055
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40. MEFHMELEABEZHER &)

40. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Continued)

RITIER HEAE fTEAE
Bank Lease Derivative
borrowings liabilities liability
(Ht:E26) (Kt7t15) (K1:t28)
(note 26) (note 15) (note 28)
FHET FHBT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
M2018F12H31H At 31 December 2018 269,638 - 2,055
VIR FER BB ME LR Initial application of HKFRS 16
F1655% - 100,719 -
R2019%F1 818 At 1 January 2019 269,638 100,719 2,055
MERSNESEFEE: Changes from financing cash flows:
IR 1T 8 NPT 15 FE Proceeds from new bank borrowings 142,942 = =
EEBRITER Repayment of bank borrowings (89,119) - -
ENAERRE Payment of lease liabilities - (74,497) —
B F B Interest paid (3,004) = (462)
MERSRELBER Total changes from financing
cash flows 100,819 (74,497) (462)
PE X 35 & Exchange adjustment 2,766 38 33
H B EhEE - Other changes:
B Interest expense 3,225 3,355 462
HEaIE T ERER Other borrowing costs prepaid (3,848) = =
BEXREERER Capitalised borrowing costs 358 - _
EEERE Addition of lease liabilities - 39,308 -
HEHREARE Disposal of lease liabilities - (600) -
BIIHENRZF & Effect of modification to
lease payments - (497) -
f FE Interest payable (83) - -
ﬁ:fﬁﬁa%@ Fair value change - - (784)
Hib S eh@za Total other changes (348) 41,566 (322)
M2019%F12H31H At 31 December 2019 372,875 67,826 1,304
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41.

HEER

BT FE2(b) AT B - 20204 F )& B
COVID-19 © 2t 5 2 [E 3 T M B R 8 BN & B 7
P ABHICOVID-19ZIEELEE EEZHRER
e EREH| S A BIRITTABE N ERBEHNTE

EEREHRBENIEE M EE & RE ZIEHA
BEE W ASHEHE2019F12A31B ILFEZ
2 A

41.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

As disclosed in note 2(b), there is an outbreak of COVID-19
since the beginning of year 2020. The governments and
authorities in many cities and countries in the globe have
implemented various severe measures in controlling the
spread of COVID-19 that significantly reduce the demand for
travel related products and services of the Group.

The implementations of these severe control measures are
non-adjusting events after the financial year end and do
not result in any adjustment to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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Glossary

2020 R WA F K&
2020 AGM

A ERAA
Articles of Association
oy

Board

RERBRES
BVI

BEBERS
CCT(s)
EERTAI
CG Code

ENNCTE RS ¥ 22 e

Company or EGL Holdings

5=

Director(s)
OB BEIRITAL

EGL Tours

12T 12

Evergloss

BT
FIT

B HB1TE M
FIT Products

RET
Great Port

RAREEBRBFRE
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company

KRB NRETRET REBEIABZZAA
the amended and restated articles of association of the Company, as amended from
time to time

Exg

the board of Directors

REERRES
British Virgin Islands

AR BRASERAFERNBEATHER RERAZIIBREFBERERS
non-exempt continuing connected transaction(s) of the Company in respect of the
lease and/or tenancy leased by the Group from its connected person during the Year

EHRAIM 4P EE B EE AT A
Corporate Governance Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

RREERABR AR (BRH R 6882)
EGL Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6882)

RRAREE

the director(s) of the Company

RBRERTHBERAR] ARG zEEEZEWE R A
EGL Tours Company Limited, being an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company

REEEEBARDGF ARRZHEBER (TR REHFLBEE)
Evergloss Management Group Company Limited, being an associated corporation
(as defined under the SFO) of the Company

BY B AR
free independent travellers

BHRTERRERKRETE

FIT packages and individual travel elements

RETHAERRA BITEFTZIHEA

Great Port Limited, being an associate of the Executive Directors
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REE /NS D BN NG|

Group the Company and its subsidiaries

BT B BAETEY

HKD/HK$ Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

FEMBHREER EEGHMASRMN (FENBREERD)

HKFRSs Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants

BRARES RREERERAFAEE

IPO initial public offering of EGL Holdings

=i HE BAREESH

JPY Japanese yen, the lawful currency of Japan

Bl R BHEZERERAR BEEERR 2 —

Kwok Lai Kwok Lai Holdings Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

)5S MEERAR BEEERR 2 —

Likang Likang Limited, being one of the shareholders of Evergloss

AR A A PrRE 7 ET AR A

Listing Rules the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

R AE ST B FHRRAIMEIOPEM LR BEITAEFETESF R HNIRLETR

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

RPITT RPT ORPDEE B

MOP Macau Pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

ABRIED R HE 5 Osaka Hinode Hotel ( KBREDFEE) - REBERBAER 2 & RHBEE

Osaka Hinode Hotel Osaka Hinode Hotel ( KERIZDFEJE ) , the Group’s first-owned hotel in Japan
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Glossary

o
PRC

&5 R B A
SFO

B

Share(s)

BB AT 2
Share Option Scheme

B
Shareholder(s)

FAHR
sq. ft.

75 K
sqg. m.

B <2 P
Stock Exchange

REE

Year

hEARANE
the People’s Republic of China

BHEBERN (FEEPFET1E)
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

AR F A
the share(s) of the Company

RATB20145F 11 A SR e BB A G 2l
share option scheme adopted by the Company since November 2014

EESEIN
the holder(s) of the Share(s)

THR
square feet

Tk
square meter(s)

ERBMERSABERAA
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

HZE2019F12A81A L& E
the year ended 31 December 2019
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Rm =R AR A A
EGL Holdings Company Limited

(REIEREEMMALNERAE)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AP X5E Stock Code : 6882

RmEEER AR AT EGL Holdings Company Limited

it - BB NEBIEBEESIN RmEES 1518
Address : 15/F, EGL Tower, 83 Hung To Road, Kwun Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong

#uh Website : www.egltours.com/travel/pages/investor_relations/#eng

REEM
RE AR
R F IR 6045 35

waS(:é FSC™ C111999
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